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The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates as of June 30, 2010, was approximately
$6.6 million as computed by reference to the average bid and ask price of the common stock as quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board on such
date.

As of April 15, 2011, the number of outstanding shares of common stock, $0.00001 par value per share, of the registrant was
23,288,480.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the definitive information statement of eLandia International Inc. relating to the 2011 annual election of directors to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after the end of the registrant’s 2010 fiscal year are incorporated by
reference into Part III of this Form 10-K.
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1

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and are subject to risks, uncertainties, and other factors which
could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements. See “Item 1A. Risk
Factors.” Unless otherwise indicated in this Annual Report or the context otherwise requires, all references in this Current Report to

2 < 2 <

“eLandia,” the “Company,” “us,” “our” or “we” are to eLandia International Inc.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

eLandia is a provider of Information and Communications Technology (“ICT”) products and services to small, medium-sized and large
businesses as well as government entities and service providers, primarily in Latin America. We have presence in over 17 countries, including
Argentina, Colombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Peru, Venezuela and the United
States. eLandia also operates in the South Pacific region through our wholly-owned subsidiary, AST Telecom, LLC (“AST”) which offers
mobile communications, Internet services and cable TV services (Moana TV) in American Samoa under the Bluesky Communications brand.
In addition, we also own 66 2/3% of the American Samoa Hawaii Cable, LLC (“ASH Cable”) in partnership with the American Samoa
Government, providing high-speed networking connections between the territory of American Samoa and the rest of the world.

Our company enables innovative technology solutions that empower our customers and help them increase efficiency, improve business
agility, decrease costs, and maximize their existing ICT investments while enhancing their competitive advantages. Our solutions portfolio
currently consists of three core Technology Solutions, three Business Practice Solutions and a complete array of professional services to
ensure our customers achieve the full benefits of their technology investments. We also hold more than 38 company accreditations and
specializations from leading technology vendors, including Cisco Systems, Inc. (“Cisco”), VMware, Ciena, Microsoft Corporation
(“Microsoft”) and many others.

eLandia corporate headquarters are located at 8200 NW 5ond Terrace, Miami, Florida 33166. The telephone number is (305) 415-8830.

Company background

Our current operations began in 2006 when eLandia acquired Datec and AST (also known as Bluesky Communications). AST
represents our operations in American Samoa. In 2007, we expanded by completing the acquisition of a 70% majority interest in eLandia/
Desca Holdings, LLC (“Desca”), a network integration company with operations in Latin America. We acquired the remaining 30% of Desca
on July 17, 2009. On July 1, 2008, we acquired Transistemas S.A., an Argentine network integration services provider, through Desca. On
October 15, 2008, we acquired Center of Technology Transfer Corporation (“CTT”), a leading Latin American information technology
education company. On March 27, 2009, we acquired the assets of Pacific Island Cable, a cable TV operator located in American Samoa,
through American Samoa Entertainment, Inc.

Recent Events
Strategic Alliance Agreement — Amper, S.A.

On May 24, 2010, eLandia and Desca, entered into a Strategic Alliance Agreement (the “Strategic Alliance Agreement”) with Amper,
S.A. (“Amper”). Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Agreement, the parties established an alliance aimed at expanding each party’s access to
the Latin American and Caribbean markets and providing the parties the opportunity to offer their combined portfolio of products, services,
technology solutions and technical resources throughout the region. Amper, a Madrid, Spain based company, is a leader in the design and
implementation of integrated solutions and information systems for civilian and military communications. Medidata Informatica, S.A.,
Amper’s majority-owned subsidiary (“Medidata”), offers integrated communications solutions to telecommunications operators, corporations,
financial clients and governments in Brazil. The regional alliance established by the Strategic Alliance Agreement allowed Amper to expand
into the 17 local markets in the Latin American and Caribbean region in which eLandia currently operates under its wholly-owned Desca and
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CTT brands. The alliance allows us to provide enhanced support to our regional customers in Brazil. Additionally, eLandia expects to utilize
the experience and knowledge of Amper’s Homeland Security business to address the growing opportunities in critical public safety projects
throughout the region and the sales of Amper’s Access equipment products to its service provider customers. The initial term of the Strategic
Alliance Agreement was six months and was renewed until April 30, 2011.

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Agreement, each party designated the other as its non-exclusive agent or distributor to promote the
sale of the parties’ products and services in the Latin American and Caribbean region. Each of the parties is entitled to sales commissions or
product discounts for their sales and promotional efforts under the Strategic Alliance Agreement. The amount of the commissions or discounts
is negotiated on a case-by-case basis based on product line, customer and other factors.
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In addition to the marketing and sales opportunities expected to result from the alliance, the parties also agreed to evaluate a potential
equity transaction pursuant to which we would acquire all or a part of Medidata in exchange for the issuance to Amper of a majority of our
capital stock. In consideration of our exclusivity covenants, Amper advanced to us the sum of $5 million (the “Exclusivity Advance”), which
was funded by Medidata to Amper. The repayment of the Exclusivity Advance is subject to the terms set forth in the Strategic Alliance
Agreement. The amounts outstanding under the Exclusivity Advance accrue interest at 12% per annum until repaid to Amper.

On December 9, 2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Strategic Alliance Agreement (the “SAA Amendment”). Pursuant to the
SAA Amendment, which was effective as of December 2, 2010, the exclusive dealings covenant set forth in the Strategic Alliance Agreement
was extended until April 30, 2011.

Contribution Agreement — Amper, S.A.

Following the Strategic Alliance Agreement, on July 29, 2010, we entered into a Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution
Agreement”) with Amper. Pursuant to this Contribution Agreement, Amper agreed to acquire 150,745,913 shares of our newly issued
common stock in exchange for the contribution to eLandia by Amper of approximately 90% of the outstanding capital stock of Hemisferio
Norte Brasil, S.L. (“Hemisferio”). Hemisferio has one wholly-owned direct subsidiary, Hemisferio Sul Participacoes Ltda. (“Hemisferio
Sul”), and two indirect subsidiaries, Medidata and XC Comercial e Exportadora Ltda. (“XC”). Hemisferio Sul owns 88.96% of Medidata, and
Medidata owns 100% of XC. Hemisferio, Hemisferio Sul, Medidata and XC are collectively referred to in the Contribution Agreement as the
“Contributed Entities.” The shares of our common stock to be issued to Amper under the Contribution Agreement represent approximately
85% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock following the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution
Agreement.

The Contribution Agreement contains standard representations and warranties from each of the parties including securities investment
representations from Amper as well as representations from each of the parties regarding financial statements, regulatory filings, legal
compliance, pending litigation and tax matters. Under the Contribution Agreement, we are required to register the shares of our common stock
being issued to Amper pursuant to the terms of a mutually agreeable registration rights agreement.

Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement, we were granted an option to acquire the balance of Amper’s interest in Hemisferio for
an option price equal to $8.9 million. The option may be exercised for a six-month period following the closing and the option price is payable
by us through the issuance to Amper of additional shares of our common stock at a price per share equal to the fair market value of our
common stock as of the option exercise date.

The closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement was subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions
including, among others, the following: (i) the parties obtaining all applicable third party consents including the approval of the U.S. Federal
Communications Commission (“FCC”) and eLandia obtaining a consent to the Contribution Agreement and general release and
acknowledgment from the receiver for Stanford International Bank Ltd. (“SIBL”), (ii) execution of new employment agreements by our chief
executive and chief financial officers, (iii) certain of our executive officers waiving their severance rights under their current employment
contracts, and (iv) our receipt of a fairness opinion from an investment bank.

On December 9, 2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution Agreement Amendment”).
Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement Amendment, which was effective as of December 2, 2010, the termination date of the Contribution
Agreement was extended to April 30, 2011. In addition, the Contribution Agreement Amendment provided that if Amper expected that the
FCC consents necessary to complete the transactions under the Contribution Agreement could not be obtained prior to February 1, 2011,
Amper could seek to acquire Desca Holdings and CTT Holdings in an alternative transaction. We agreed to use all commercially reasonable
efforts to finalize the terms and conditions of such alternative transaction by February 1, 2011.

In addition, certain conditions to the closing of the Contribution Agreement transaction were modified or deleted. In this regard, we
were required to take the following actions prior to the closing of the transaction, including among others: (a) establish a senior management
compensation plan for our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer as well as variable compensation plans applicable to all of our
employees and (b) obtain evidence of the termination of that certain Voting Trust Agreement by and among SIBL, Pete Pizarro and the
Company dated February 6, 2009. In addition, pursuant to the Contribution Agreement Amendment the requirement for stockholder approval
for the consummation of the transaction was deleted.

Finally, the Contribution Agreement Amendment modified the termination provisions of the Contribution Agreement and extended the
closing date to April 30, 2011.
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As discussed above, we received from Amper an Exclusivity Advance in the amount of $5 million in connection with the execution of
the Strategic Alliance Agreement. The repayment of the Exclusivity Advance remained subject to the terms set forth in the Strategic Alliance
Agreement.

On March 31, 2011, we executed and delivered certain closing documents under the Contribution Agreement subject to the closing
documents being held in escrow pending the receipt from our transfer agent of a stock certificate representing 150,745,913 shares of our
common stock issued in the name of Amper and stock certificates representing the 5,223,517 capital shares of Hemisferio transferred to the
name of the Company which transfer requires registration with certain Spanish and Brazilian authorities, and certain related legal opinions.
We expect that the requirements with respect to the recordation of the ownership of the Brazilian subsidiaries of Hemisferio will occur prior to
the end of May 2011. Upon receipt of these pending items by the escrow agent, the escrowed materials will be released, the closing will be
consummated and control will be transferred to the respective parties.

3

Strategic Alliance Agreement — Medidata

In September 2010, we entered into an agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced to us $5.5 million (unrelated to
the Exclusivity Advance described above), secured by the proceeds of various customer contracts held by Desca. The advance is due to be
repaid in April 2011 and includes approximately $1.8 million of interest expense.

Credit Agreement — Medidata

In April 2011, we entered into a Credit Agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced to us $6.0 million. The
advance is due to be repaid on December 31, 2011 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 3%.

Acquisition of SamoaTel

On March 31, 2011, AST consummated the closing under a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement with The Government of the
Independent State of Samoa (“Samoa”) pursuant to which, among other things, Bluesky SamoaTel Investments Limited (“BSI”), a subsidiary
of AST, acquired 75% of the issued and outstanding capital shares of SamoaTel Limited (“SamoaTel”) in exchange for $11.0 million. We
own approximately 78% of BSI and the remaining 22% is owned by other investors. SamoaTel is a provider of telecommunications products
and services in Samoa and offers a full range of services including fixed line, mobile, data and calling card services for homes and businesses
in Samoa.

In connection with the closing of the SamoaTel Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, AST entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with ANZ Finance American Samoa, Inc. and ANZ Amerika Samoa Bank (jointly, “ANZ”), pursuant to which ANZ committed
to provide financing of up to $5,500,000 in the form of a five year term loan described below (the “Loan”). In addition, ANZ committed to
provide up to $3,500,000 in a two year letter of credit facility which AST may use to issue letters of credit to various vendors (the “Facility”).
AST is the borrower under the Loan Agreement and the Facility. The Loan and the Facility are principally secured by substantially all of the
assets and operations of AST. The Loan bears interest at the rate of 2.5% above the prime rate. AST paid ANZ a fee of $82,500 at closing. At
closing, AST borrowed the full amount available under the Loan and used the proceeds for the purchase of SamoaTel. In connection with the
Loan Agreement and the Facility, we reaffirmed our existing guaranty and security agreements in favor of ANZ (respectively, the “Guaranty”)
to include the amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and the Facility. Pursuant to the Guaranty, we have unconditionally guaranteed
the repayment and other obligations of AST under the Loan Agreement and the Facility. In connection with the Loan Agreement and the
Facility, AST executed a stock pledge agreement of all of its interest in the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of BSI.

Separation of Executive

Under a Securities Purchase Agreement, dated July 1, 2009 (the “Purchase Agreement”), we acquired 30% of the outstanding equity
interests of Desca from Jorge Enrique Alvarado Amado (“Alvarado”). A portion of the purchase price under the Purchase Agreement was
evidenced by a promissory note in the principal amount of $500,000 (the “Note”) as well as 2.5 million shares of our common stock (the
“Shares”). One-half of the Shares were placed into escrow in order to satisfy certain claims for indemnification which we could have against
Alvarado under the Purchase Agreement.

On October 5, 2010, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Jorge Enrique Alvarado Amado (“Alvarado”). Pursuant to the
Separation Agreement, Alvarado’s employment relationship with Desca was terminated without cause. Alvarado previously served as
principal executive officer of Desca. As part of his separation from Desca, Alvarado resigned from all positions held with Desca, its
subsidiaries and affiliates in each Latin American jurisdiction in which such entities operate. The Separation Agreement provides for
severance pay for a period of 12 months and includes a standard waiver and general release by Alvarado of any and all claims he may have
against the Company, Desca or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates.

We also agreed to waive any such indemnification claims, with the exception of any future claims relating to any intentional misconduct
by Alvarado, in exchange for the following: (a) all of the 2.5 million Shares (along with any convertible securities held by Alvarado) were
returned by Alvarado to the Company for cancellation; and (b) the payment schedule under the Note was modified to provide for 12 monthly
payments of $10,000 each and, thereafter through the maturity date in January 2013, monthly payments of $32,500 each. Payments on the
Note may be accelerated if we receive certain minimum payments under a material customer contract. In addition, we agreed to transfer our
ownership interest in Magna Consult L.L.C., a consulting services company, to Alvarado. This consulting company does not engage in direct
competition with us or our subsidiaries.
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As part of the Separation Agreement, Alvarado reaffirmed and ratified the terms of his existing non-compete agreement which contains
customary non-compete, non-solicitation, non-disclosure and non-disparagement covenants. Such non-compete agreement shall remain in
force for a 12-month period following the effective date of the Separation Agreement.

Discontinued Operations — Fiji

In April 2009, the Reserve Bank of Fiji announced that Fiji’s currency had been devalued by 20% effective April 16, 2009, the President
of Fiji annulled the country’s constitution, terminated all the judges in the country and declared himself the head of state. These factors
triggered an impairment charge to our goodwill in Fiji during the year ended December 31, 2009 due to the anticipated economic instability
and an uncertain business climate. As a result of these factors and the uncertainty caused by such factors, in December 2009 our Board of
Directors approved management’s proposal to dispose of our operations in Fiji.

4

We began to actively market and locate a buyer for our operations in Fiji during the quarter ended March 31, 2010. On June 24, 2010,
we entered into a settlement agreement with Kelton Investments Ltd. (“Kelton”) and Datec Group Ltd. (“Datec”), as plaintiffs, among others,
pursuant to which 150,000 shares of our common stock have been transferred to us in exchange for our interests in Datec Fiji and Datec
Australia. As a result of the settlement and resolution of the material closing conditions, during the quarter ended September 30, 2010, we re-
measured the value of the net liabilities transferred at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value. We determined that the fair value of the
150,000 shares of our common stock returned to us was deminimus. Accordingly, we recorded a gain in discontinued operations, which
includes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, of $2.4 million. That gain includes approximately $3.6 million from
the recovery of accumulated translation gains previously reflected as a component of other comprehensive income.

Market

Information and Communications Technology (“ICT”) is widely recognized as a catalyst in the transformation of businesses and
economies. The current global economic environment is driving businesses around the world to seek new ways to reduce costs and improve
efficiency while retaining — or improving — their competitive advantages. Even in difficult times, businesses continue to invest in technology
because they must continue to secure their assets, improve efficiency, work effectively with partners, and increase employee productivity.
Businesses in emerging markets have a slight advantage over those in developed nations because they are often able to “leapfrog” technology
— gaining the advantages of innovation without the encumbrances of extensive legacy installations.

Today, most businesses rely on their ICT infrastructures to compete more effectively. However, with increasing technology complexity
and a shortage of skilled ICT talent, they seek outside technical expertise to manage, enhance, augment, or completely replace in-house ICT
organizations. This creates growing demand for ICT companies that can provide a varied portfolio of products and services that help
businesses align their technology architectures with their business strategies. Governments and businesses that want to drive innovation to
achieve leadership positions often find that technology innovation and deployment outpace available talent and skills. Therefore, there is also
a significant market opportunity for educating ICT professionals.

According to the World Economic Forum, Latin America has a promising decade ahead “with a leading position as a global trader of
agro-products, major reserves of raw materials and immense rainforests, major global environment and sports events are to take place in the
region in the coming years, and most countries are on the front line in attracting private investment; with a relatively stable political outlook in
the upcoming years the region offers remarkable opportunities for a growing number of modern industries to develop, while innovative
reforms are being promoted to foster economic growth and improve the quality of life for the majority.”

The World Bank projects a combined 4.1% GDP growth in Latin America for 2011, and that potential is accelerated by the rapid
adoption of advanced information and communication technologies. According to Insight Research deployment of advanced broadband
telecommunications infrastructure is expected to grow at a 12% rate during the year, mobile internet subscribers are expected to almost
quadruple at the end of 2011, compared to the number of mobile internet users at the end of 2008, deployment of next generation mobile
networks and expansion in fixed broadband services will drive huge investments into the region (in excess of US $15B), adoption of Digital
TV standards and enhanced competition among Telcos will create new bundles and offerings in the marketplace and SmartGrid initiatives are
taking ground in many countries as governments realize the critical need to optimize their energy generation and usage strategies.

Overall in 2011, the Latin American ICT industry will continue to rapidly evolve fueled by a variety of forces. These forces include a
renovation of the infrastructure in search of cloud-readiness and of a network prepared for higher speeds and traffic capacity; a renovation of
the applications in search of real-time business processes; and a renovation of governments and cities showing symptoms of long-term growth
desires and increased focus on public safety and enhanced citizen services. All of this will be happening amidst a roll-out of mobile
applications that will create opportunities for organizations with the capabilities and resources to deliver true customer value in a regional
scale.

During 2010, we consolidated our strategy to strengthen our position and capabilities in Latin America, where most of our business is
focused. Following the overall recovery trend in the Latin American market, we made important adjustments to our operations, empowering
local decision making capabilities, while at the same time keeping a clear set of region wide processes and best practices under a shared
governance model; these changes allowed us to successfully execute highly demanding and complex projects for key customers in the region
achieving exceptional satisfaction levels and customer retention rates.

eLandia is also present in American Samoa, a South Pacific territory with a population of approximately 65,000 inhabitants. Based on
our market penetration in the cellular communications business and the demographics of American Samoa, we consider the wireless services,
data delivery, long distance and equipment service market to be mature. We believe that future revenue in American Samoa will increase
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proportionally with economic improvements and, as such, we plan to expand our products and offerings and differentiate our business by
further enhancing our customer service, extending our network and expanding into complementary businesses. In addition, the deployment of
the ASH Cable was completed in 2009 and we expect will provide additional business opportunities in 2011. In 2009 we completed the
acquisition of Pacific Island Cable which offers TV and entertainment services to American Samoa.

5

Business Strategy

Our strategy is to become the leading technology enabler in Latin America. We are focused on the transformation of people, businesses
and communities by enabling them to compete in the global economy. In today’s world, enterprises of all sizes rely on Information and
Communication Technologies, and most enterprises rely on strategic solutions partners like eLandia to help them implement the technology
solutions they need. This is a role eLandia has filled for a growing number of companies and government entities in Latin America and the
Pacific Rim since our company was founded in 1998. In the recent past we have witnessed radical changes in our customers’ challenges and
expectations as they build their voice, video and data communications infrastructure. Our organization has also matured and attracted new
talent and diverse capabilities to keep pace with the growing need for complex technological solutions.

In order to execute our mission and take advantage of the substantial market opportunities represented by the markets where we operate,
our company has created a strategy of becoming the Leading Technology Enabler by focusing on 4 key success drivers:

Extensive regional presence: Our extensive regional footprint in seventeen countries uniquely positions eLandia as a trusted partner
for multinational companies seeking to deploy technology solutions across their operations. Additionally, it also enables us to
establish a competitive edge in the marketplace by leveraging the skills and capabilities of our distributed workforce. We have also
become an important asset for our partners and strategic allies to ensure an optimal regional sales and service coverage. The
acquisition of the majority stake in Brazil’s Medidata Informatica S.A. extends our footprint in the region, offering our customers the
full capabilities of our company in most of the key markets in the region.

Local Presence: Our regional presence is balanced with strong “on the ground” capabilities in all our markets in Latin America, the
Caribbean, and the Pacific Rim. We now have 32 offices in 17 countries staffed by approximately 800 employees serving thousands
of customers. Today we service some of the largest companies and government entities in each market where we operate.

Strong partnerships with many of the world’s leading technology suppliers: Our solutions and partnership portfolio has been
assembled with the clear objective of enabling our customers to use ICT as a means to transform and grow their business. The
eLandia Group family of companies has developed a number of long-term, strategic relationships with leading technology providers
including Cisco, Ciena, Panduit, EMC, NetApp, Microsoft, Google, PeerApp, VMware and many others. These strategic
relationships expand the breadth and depth of the technologies we can supply to our customers and, accordingly, increase our value
proposition in the marketplace. They also provide us with the opportunity to gain access to advanced technology, new markets, and
enhanced access to training and support. Our goal is to continue to expand the reach of these relationships and develop new,
productive partnerships as our footprint in emerging markets continues to grow.

Company and Engineering Certifications: We are committed to developing and maintaining the highest levels of employee and
company certifications as a key differentiator. This commitment provides us with the best access to the most skilled talent pool in our
markets. This has always been and will continue to be one of our most important assets. Our organization values the positive impact
that individual technical certifications, company specializations and accreditations provide to the quality of our offerings and
services. In addition to obtaining these qualifications, our company has also been awarded a number of national and international
recognitions from leading technology vendors. We are a Cisco Gold certified partner in all the regions we operate and have earned
more than 38 Cisco certifications including Multinational Master Specialization in Latin America. These acknowledgements validate
our commitment to providing our customers and partners with comprehensive capabilities and competencies in serving their business
needs.

We believe these success factors provide the solid foundation on which we continue to develop our solutions offerings, which are
structured into three core Technology Solutions, three Business Practices and our Advanced Services portfolio, each described below.

Technology Solutions

Our Technology Solutions capitalize on the investments and experience accumulated in the group companies to offer a broad array of
solutions in the following areas:

Borderless Networks. We believe we have the most robust and unique set of capabilities to design, build and operate scalable and
secure network infrastructures to support the most demanding business applications in the Latin American region. Our proven expertise
in deploying next generation networks for international and incumbent Service Providers is paired with an extensive list of medium and
large size Enterprise customers, who have relied on us to build the connected fabric that supports their day to day operations. Our
Borderless Networks Solutions encompass all the technologies that help us build such an infrastructure and include the multiple
infrastructure and service layers that empower wireline, wireless, cable operators, over the top operators, broadcast and satellite
providers to offer innovative services to their subscribers.
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Cloud Solutions. The advent of a new paradigm to procure and consume IT services is transforming how organizations build and
deploy their data centers, at the core of this change is the capability to build Private, Public or even Hybrid Cloud solutions to change
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the supply and demand dynamic of IT services, enabling CIOs to optimize their operations, accelerate their response time and better
align their function with the key business priorities. At eLandia we specialize in helping our customers build their Public or Private
Cloud infrastructures so that they can realize the benefits of this new service model, integrating the leading edge solutions of the
industry and coupling them with a comprehensive suite of services to ease their journey into the Cloud. Our Cloud Solutions include
offerings such as: Virtualized Desktop Infrastructure Solutions, Private Cloud Solutions, Data Center Infrastructure and Business
Continuity services.

Virtual Workspace. The evolution of unified communications and collaboration technologies empowers our customers as never before.
The capabilities to communicate, collaborate, participate in decision making processes, share knowledge, reach subject matter experts
at a precise moment, enhance the level of customer intimacy and service, empower the interactions with partners and suppliers and
overall to increase individual productivity regardless of time, location or device is transforming how modern organizations conduct
business. Our Virtual Workspace Solutions bring this vision into the realm of possibilities for our customers, with a complete array of
Enterprise Collaboration, Video Empowered Communications, Enhanced Customer Interaction and Mobile Workspace Solutions, we
put technology at the service of our customers to truly grow and enhance their business.

Business Practices

The most impactful component of our strategy focuses on our goal of assisting customers to transform their enterprises using
technology. More and more enterprises are recognizing that technology is not just a set of tools to support their operation and management,
but also a powerful source of competitive advantage, generating new opportunities for growth and profitability. In order to help our customers
transform their businesses, we have invested in building a series of Business Practice Solutions that help us build deeper relationships with
customers and serve them more efficiently and effectively:

Critical Infrastructure Protection (CIP). Latin American governments and businesses face increasing pressures in the Security arena,
given the rise in criminal activity throughout the region which translates not only in threats to Public infrastructure but also potential
risks for many other facilities such as: airports, ports, sport stadiums, oil refineries, gas & oil pipelines, electric grid infrastructure, etc.
Addressing these risks demands a systems approach where different physical security technologies are deployed and integrated in order
to provide a common threat view and ensure an effective and coordinated response protocol is executed. eLandia, leveraging the
expertise and capabilities of Amper, has launched in Latin American its CIP Practice, where the solutions of Amper and the most
recognized vendors of the industry technologies are integrated, to deploy a comprehensive solutions to protect key assets and resources.

Smart+Connected Communities (S+CC). The growing need to enhance public safety in cities in Latin America is driving many
national, regional and local governments into bold initiatives to boost security and at the same time enhance citizen services, ensure
environmental sustainability and promote economic growth. Our S+CC Practice capitalizes on this trend and provides Regional or
Local government entities with a complete suite of solutions to transform the citizens experience in areas such as: security,
transportation, health services, education, utilities and constituents participation. This Business Practice combines multiple technologies
and services to help cities transform the life experience of its inhabitants.

Education as a Service (EaaS). The EaaS Business Practice offers our customers the unique opportunity to redesign their business
around a knowledge architecture framework, where the creation, distribution and sharing of knowledge is empowered at all levels by a
complete suite of technologies and services that take into account the physical, services, applications and business architectures of the
business and aligns them with a knowledge architecture to help organizations maximize the potential of its collective knowledge pool.
Building this architecture and enabling it with all the needed technology and service elements is the main goal of the EaaS Practice.

Advanced Services Portfolio

Complementing our Technology and Business Solutions we provide a complete lifecycle services offering that ensures the realization of
the full benefits of our value proposition:

Design & Build. All the projects we deploy in the region integrate a broad array of resources and capabilities including skilled project
managers, the most extensive group of certified engineers as well as project team to provide logistic and operational support, along with
our key technology partners capabilities to enhance our own and guarantee the quality and outcome of each project.

Operate & Optimize. By providing a complete array of services based on our technology solutions, we support our customers in
achieving optimal operations and costs, lower risks and continuous technology refresh. Most importantly, we enable our customers to
focus on their own core competencies and less on the challenges of building and maintaining a technology infrastructure. Our portfolio
of Operate & Optimize Services includes:

DESCA Care. Provides an integral solution to manage faults, warranties and problem resolution related to the technology
elements provided to our customers.

HEALTH assure. Offers a 7x24 monitoring service of the mission critical technology assets to ensure their performance meets the
expected results and can trigger corrective actions based on preset deviations.
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SMART operate. Provides a complete proactive management and operation of ICT infrastructures, including change and security
management allowing our customers to focus on their core business.
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TOTAL operate. Offers dedicated resources and capabilities, as well as enhanced response times to manage all aspects of the
services supported by the technology infrastructure.

PERFORM xpress. Provides a valuable insight into the performance of the technology infrastructure and offers recommendations
to enhance the security and capabilities of the system.

Technology Transfer. A key component of our strategy to empower our customer’s business is achieved by integrating a full suite of
Technology Transfer services into every one of our offerings. By pairing the deployment of advanced technology infrastructures with
our education services we can ensure that technology adoption is indeed achieved and that the business impact pursued by the proposed
solution is not only reached but also that it is sustained in time.

Customers

We service more than 20,000 subscribers in American Samoa and in excess of 3,500 enterprise customers throughout Latin America.
Our customers include many of the leading financial services, telecommunication, government, education, manufacturing, and media
organizations in the countries in which we operate. In addition, we also provide services to globally recognized companies in helping them
meet their integration, education, and services needs throughout Latin America as a regionally integrated provider.

Competition

The market for ICT services is highly competitive, regionally fragmented, and rapidly changing. We believe that customers evaluate a
potential ICT service partner on the following attributes:

» Ability to deliver products and services;

* Quality, reliability and scope of services;

» Certifications and specializations held by employees and organizations;
+ Ability to attract and retain skilled professionals;

* Financial discipline;

* Premium relationships with vendors for service and pricing; and

+ Efficient and effective business processes and operations.

We believe that our success to date is principally attributable to our ability to meet these requirements, as well as our local leadership,
our ability to cultivate customer loyalty, and expertise in our target markets. We believe that few of our competitors have the combination of
regional presence, product quality, and service consistency in the markets that we serve.

With our expanded presence in Brazil, we have truly become one of the few viable options for many of the regional and multinational
accounts that seek to partner with a trusted organization to deliver consistent services and solutions in all the countries where these customers
operate. Our initiatives to foster the relationships with these accounts is one of the key pillars of our 2011 strategy and as such we have
assembled a dedicated team to serve the regional accounts with focal contact points in Mexico, Brazil, Miami and Madrid; as well as local
touch points in each one of the countries where we operate; ensuring these customers an effective response to their regional and local
requirements at the same time.

Although we anticipate competition to increase, both from existing competitors and from new companies entering our markets, given
the range of technology products and services we provide, we believe there is no single competitor that matches our product, service,
geographic, or expertise breadth and depth. Competitors exist in specific regions and for specific technologies and may include IT services
companies such as Getronics, Micronet, Microsistemas Gerenciales S.A. de C.V., Grupo Sonda, Dimension Data, Openlink Software, Inc.,
and Softnet Technology, Corp., as well as global IT providers such as IBM and Hewlett Packard. In the South Pacific region, our main
competitors are companies such as Digicel and the American Samoa Telecommunications Authority.

Competition has resulted in, and will continue to result in, declining prices for the services that we currently and expect to provide. We
believe that the markets in which we operate, and those we intend to expand into, have historically been underserved and that there is strong
potential for growth. We also believe that in order to be competitive in these markets, participants must grow rapidly and achieve a significant
presence. Many of our competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition, or larger customer bases in some key markets.
They also have substantially greater financial, distribution, and technical resources. As a result, these competitors may be able to offer
prospective customers discounts or benefits that are substantially greater than we could offer. These competitors may be able to adapt more
quickly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements. Competitors may develop technologies that more effectively
address our markets with services that offer enhanced features or lower costs. Increased competition could result in pricing pressures,
decreased gross margins, and loss of market share and may materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.
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Upon successful closing of the announced transaction with Amper, and the consequent dilution of the SIBL participation in the
company, we foresee a much more favorable outlook in terms of our prospects with key customers, partners, suppliers and eventually third
party financing resources. The strengthening of our core position in the market, the focused approach to drive our solutions and practices
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portfolio in the market, a revamped services offering, our clear strategy to serve multinational accounts, the increasing need for Critical
Infrastructure Protection solutions in Latin America, a committed, passionate and multicultural workforce and a favorable outlook in the
economies of the region puts us in a unique position to capitalize on our past and become the leading technology enabler of the region.

Employees

As of March 31 2011, we had approximately 800 full time employees, of which, approximately 710 were in Latin America, 75 were in
the South Pacific and 15 were at our corporate headquarters. Our employees are not represented by a labor union and are not covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. We believe that our relations with our employees are good.

Properties

We lease approximately 10,000 square feet for our corporate headquarters located at 8200 NW 52" Terrace, Miami, Florida. On January
1, 2011, we entered into a lease agreement with Doral 8333 Office, LLC (an affiliate of our landlord) for 9,340 square feet at 8333 Downtown
Doral. Rent is currently abated at our current office space until the build-out and move to the new offices, at which time the required lease
payments will be approximately $22,500 per month. In addition, we lease space in each of the geographic regions in which we have a
presence for operations, sales, marketing and customer support, and general and administrative purposes. The amount of space leased for each
purpose in each geographic operating segment varies depending on our current needs in each market. In the aggregate, we lease approximately
117,000 square feet in Latin America, which is predominantly office space used for sales, marketing and customer support, and general and
administrative purposes. In the aggregate, we lease approximately 91,500 square feet in the South Pacific, of which approximately 9,300
square feet is for operations and approximately 82,200 square feet is office space for sales, marketing and customer support, and general and
administrative purposes.

We believe that our existing facilities are suitable and adequate and that we have sufficient capacity to meet our current anticipated
needs. None of these facilities are critical to our operations because suitable alternative premises are available in substantially all of the
locations where we conduct business. We continuously review our anticipated requirements for facilities and, on the basis of that review, may
from time to time acquire or lease additional facilities and dispose of existing facilities.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in eLandia involves significant risks. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the
other information in this Annual Report. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only risks that may have a material adverse
effect on us. Additional risks and uncertainties also could adversely affect our business and our results. If any of the following risks actually
occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be negatively affected and the market price for our shares could
decline. Further, to the extent that any of the information contained in this Annual Report constitutes forward-looking statements, the risk
factors set forth below also are cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of us.

Risks Related to Our Industry and Company
We have incurred substantial losses in the past and may continue to incur additional losses in the future.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we incurred net losses of $19.6 million and $69.6 million, respectively. Additional
factors such as acquisition and integration costs, the interest expense associated with debt financing, our inventory levels and the cash flow of
our subsidiaries, may also negatively impact our ability to achieve and sustain profitability. There can be no assurance that we will not
continue to incur losses or become profitable. Even if we achieve profitability, given the competitive and evolving nature of the industry in
which we operate, we may not be able to sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.

We do not anticipate that we will be able to generate sufficient cash from operations to fund our planned capital expenditures, to
Sfulfill our payment obligations and to execute our expansion plans.

Our capital expenditures, together with ongoing operating expenses and obligations to service our debts, will likely decrease our
available cash balances during the next fiscal year. We believe that our current level of working capital will be sufficient to sustain our current
operations and service our debt obligations through at least January 1, 2012. However, there can be no assurance that the plans and actions
proposed by management will be successful or that unforeseen circumstances will not require us to seek additional funding sources in the
future or effectuate plans to conserve liquidity in the event additional sources of funds are needed or may not be available on acceptable terms,
if at all. Although the overall economy is showing signs of recovery, in particular in the markets we serve, the current macro-economic
conditions create risk and our ability to measure and react to these issues will ultimately factor into our future success and ability to meet our
business objectives and fulfill our business plan. In addition, if we are not able to sell our assets or our sources of revenue do not generate
sufficient capital to fund operations, we will need to identify other sources of capital and/or we may be required to modify our business plan.
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In addition, our indebtedness requires us to dedicate a portion of our cash flows from operating activities to principal and interest
payments on our indebtedness, which could prevent or limit our ability to implement growth plans, proceed with operational improvement
initiatives, or pay dividends. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to repay our loans, we may need to seek new
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capital from other sources. We may also need to fund additional capital expenditures to keep pace with competitive developments. Due to
macroeconomic conditions, such as continued or increased volatility or disruption in the credit markets, borrowing costs for future long-term
debt or short-term borrowing facilities may increase and our financing options, including our access to the unsecured borrowing market, will
be more limited. We may also be subject to additional restrictive covenants that would reduce our flexibility. These covenants could reduce
our competitive ability and our ability to respond to changes in the external environment. More cash flow from operations will be required to
settle our debt obligations and consequently will reduce funds for other purposes. Accordingly, our liquidity, financial condition, and results of
operations could be adversely affected.

We may need to obtain additional sources of capital or financings to fund our working capital requirements, as well as our business
and growth plans, and there is no assurance that such financing will be available or, if available, on terms acceptable to us.

Our operating revenues and cash flows may be insufficient to cover our working capital requirements and to fund our current business
plan and anticipated growth. If we are unable to raise additional capital or obtain additional financing from other sources on acceptable terms
when needed, we may be forced to reduce or delay product development, expansion, growth, and other capital expenditures, turn down
customer orders, sell assets, restructure or refinance our existing debt, or seek additional equity capital. There can be no assurance, however,
that additional financing will be available and, if available, can be obtained on terms favorable to us. Further, our ability to raise additional
capital, if needed, will depend on, among other things, conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside of our control, and on
our financial performance. We cannot assure you that such capital will be available to us on acceptable terms or at all.

We have made, and may continue to make, acquisitions which pose integration and other risks that could harm our business.

We have in the past made several acquisitions and we intend to continue to expand our business in scope, in size, and geographically,
through the acquisition of companies, technologies, products and services. We will only achieve the benefits that are expected to result from
these acquisitions if we can successfully integrate administrative, finance, operations, sales and marketing functions from these organizations,
and implement appropriate systems and controls. The success of the acquisitions and integration into our operations will involve a number of
risks, including:

difficulty integrating acquired technologies, products, services, operations and personnel with the existing businesses and the
potential inability to achieve expected operating efficiencies, growth and profitability expectations;

diversion of management’s time and attention from our core operations to engage in both negotiating the acquisitions and
integrating the business;

. adverse short-term effects on operating results;

the potential inability to successfully pursue or realize some or all of the anticipated revenue opportunities associated with the

acquisition;
. inability to retain, train and motivate management and key personnel of the acquired businesses;
. unanticipated costs and delays and the exposure to unforeseen liabilities of acquired companies;
. risks associated with unanticipated problems or legal liabilities, as well as potential tax and accounting issues;
. the need to incur additional debt or use cash; and
. the potential strain on our infrastructure, staff, internal controls and management.

In addition to the need to successfully integrate newly acquired companies, technologies, products and services, our success also will be
dependent on our ability to profitably manage our growth which, in turn, will depend on our ability to maintain cost controls and increase
revenues and achieve synergies from our acquisitions. As a result of these and other potential problems and risks, businesses we acquire may
not produce the revenues, earnings or business synergies that we anticipated, and acquired products, services or technologies may not perform
as we expected. We may incur higher costs and realize lower revenues than we had anticipated. We cannot assure you that we will be
successful in overcoming these risks or any other problems encountered in connection with our expansion and growth strategy. Failure to
effectively manage our growth through acquisitions could adversely affect our growth prospects, business, results of operations and financial
condition. Further, although we expect such acquisition activities to provide long-term growth and profitability, our growth strategy and our
new market focus could have an adverse impact in any event on our profitability in the short term due to the operating and other expenses
associated with growth and the build out of the infrastructure necessary to implement our strategic initiative.
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If economic conditions worsen, it will likely have an adverse impact on our business.

If economic conditions worsen, , it will likely have an impact on overall demand for systems, software and services changes. Delays or
reductions in ICT spending could have a material adverse effect on demand for our products and services and consequently our results of
operations, prospects and stock price. We may experience increased competitive pricing pressures, significant operating losses, elevated levels
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of obsolete inventory, inventory write-downs and larger bad debt losses. In addition, we may not be able to adequately adjust our cost
structure in a timely fashion to remain competitive, which may cause our profitability to suffer. Economic downturns may also lead to
restructuring actions and associated expenses, including the impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets.

We are substantially dependent upon external financing from several different sources to fund our operations, including trade credit
from our principal suppliers. Termination of all or some of these facilities will lead to disruptions in our business and may result in an
inability to execute our business plan.

We rely on financing from our principal suppliers, including Cisco and banks located in certain of the countries in which our
subsidiaries are located. These arrangements are subject to a number of conditions and, in some cases, financing is in the sole discretion of
each supplier or bank. We cannot assure you that we will continue to meet the financing conditions of these third parties and/or that these
institutions will not terminate these funding arrangements. Several of our suppliers, including our largest supplier, extend trade credits to us in
amounts based on various factors, including the amounts of our purchases and their internal credit criteria. The loss of, or reduction in, our
revolving credit lines, or trade credit from our principal suppliers could reduce our liquidity, increase our working capital needs and/or limit
our ability to purchase products which could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.

We transact business in Venezuela. A decline in the economic and political situation in Venezuela may pose risks that could harm
our business.

In recent years Venezuela has experienced political challenges, difficult economic conditions, relatively high levels of inflation, and
foreign exchange and price controls. The President of Venezuela has the authority to legislate certain areas by decree, and the government has
nationalized or announced plans to nationalize certain industries and to expropriate certain companies and property. These factors may have a
negative impact on our business and our financial condition.

Since 2003, Venezuela imposed currency controls and created the Commission of Administration of Foreign Currency (“CADIVI”)
with the task of establishing detailed rules and regulations and generally administering the exchange control regime. These controls fix the
exchange rate between the Bolivar Fuerte and the U.S. Dollar, and restrict the ability to exchange Bolivar Fuertes for U.S. Dollars and vice
versa. The near-term effect has been to restrict our ability to pay dollar denominated obligations and repatriate funds from Venezuela in order
to meet our cash requirements. In particular, the currency controls in Venezuela have restricted our ability to make payments to certain
vendors in U.S. Dollars, causing us to borrow money to meet these obligations and to be subject to credit holds by vendors, which have caused
delays in the delivery of customer orders thus delaying or causing the loss of sales.

We apply to CADIVI for the conversion of local currency to U.S. Dollars at the official exchange rate. The parallel exchange market
was used for U.S. Dollar needs other than conversions obtained through CADIVI, and the parallel exchange market had rates less favorable
than the official exchange rate.

As of December 31, 2009, we changed the rate we used to remeasure and translate our Venezuelan subsidiary’s transactions and
balances from the official exchange rate to the parallel exchange rate, which approximated 5.97 Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes to the U.S. Dollar
on December 31, 2009. The resulting foreign currency exchange loss of approximately $4.4 million was recorded in our consolidated
statement of operations as of December 31, 2009. Our considerations for changing the rate included indications that the Venezuelan
government is not likely to continue to provide substantial currency exchange at the official rate for companies importing nonessential
products, difficulties in obtaining approval for the conversion of local currency to U.S. Dollars at the official exchange rate (for imported
products, royalties and distributions), and delays in obtaining payment approvals.

On January 11, 2010, the Venezuelan government devalued the Bolivar Fuerte and changed to a two-tier exchange structure. The
official exchange rate moved from 2.15 Bolivar Fuertes per U.S. Dollar to 2.60 for essential goods and 4.30 for non-essential goods and
services, with our products generally falling into the non-essential category. For any U.S. Dollar we obtain at the official rate to pay for the
purchase of imported goods, we will realize benefits in our statements of operations associated with the favorable exchange rate, as compared
to the parallel rate.

We continued to value our net monetary assets using the parallel exchange rate until May 17, 2010, at which time the Venezuelan
government enacted reforms to its foreign currency exchange control regulations (the “exchange control regulations”) to close down the
parallel exchange market and announced its intent to implement an alternative market under the control of the Venezuela Central Bank. On
June 9, 2010, the Venezuelan government introduced a newly regulated foreign currency exchange system, Sistema de Transacciones con
Titulos en Moneda Extranjera (“SITME”), which is controlled by the Central Bank of Venezuela (“BCV”). Foreign currency exchange
transactions not conducted through CADIVI or SITME may not comply with the exchange control regulations, and could therefore be
considered illegal. The SITME imposes volume restrictions on the conversion of Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes to U.S. Dollars, currently
limiting such activity to a maximum equivalent of $350,000 per month.
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As a result of the enactment of the reforms to the exchange control regulations, we changed the rate we use to remeasure Bolivar Fuerte-
denominated transactions from the parallel exchange rate to the SITME rate specified by the BCV, which was quoted at 5.30 Bolivar Fuertes
per U.S. Dollar at December 31, 2010. Since this new translation rate was more favorable than the parallel rate, we recorded a gain of $2.6
million for the nine months ended December 31, 2010. This gain offset the $2.2 million loss recorded during the three months ended
March 31, 2010 resulting from the less favorable parallel rate as of March 31, 2010 compared to December 31, 2009.

We are heavily dependent on a few suppliers, particularly Cisco Systems, Inc., to provide us with products that we distribute. Our
contracts with these suppliers, including Cisco, are non-exclusive and may be terminated on short notice.
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We purchase a significant portion of our products from Cisco pursuant to a systems integrator agreement and several supporting
agreements. These agreements are non-exclusive and may be terminated by Cisco for any reason on 45-days written notice. In addition, Cisco
may immediately terminate these agreements on certain conditions. Any termination by Cisco of one or more of our agreements or any
significant deterioration in our relationship with Cisco could significantly reduce the availability to us of the products that we offer for sale
and would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, business and prospects.

We are also dependent on a few other suppliers for our product purchases. These agreements are also non-exclusive and may be
terminated on relatively short notice. Any termination of these agreements could reduce the availability of certain products to us and may
result in delays and additional expense as we attempt to replace these suppliers.

We may have difficulty managing our growth, which may divert resources and limit our ability to successfully expand our
operations.

Our growth and implementation of a strategic initiative focusing on new market opportunities may place significant demands on our
operations and management. Our future success will depend on the ability of our officers and other key employees to continue to implement
and improve our operational, credit, financial, management and other internal risk controls and processes, along with our reporting systems
and procedures, as the number and geographical scope of our client and vendor relationships continue to expand. We may not successfully
implement improvements to our management information and control systems and control procedures and processes in an efficient or timely
manner and we may discover deficiencies in existing systems and controls. In particular, our controls and procedures must be able to
accommodate an expected increase in revenue and the infrastructure that comes with new service centers and new product lines. Our growth
strategy may require us to incur additional expenditures to expand our administrative and operational infrastructure. If we are unable to
manage future expansion in our operations, we may experience compliance and operational problems, have to slow the pace of growth or have
to incur additional expenditures beyond current projections to support such growth, any one of which could adversely affect our business. We
cannot assure you that we will continue to be successful in increasing the volume of sales at acceptable risk levels, expanding our asset base
and managing the costs and implementation risks associated with our growth strategy. We also cannot provide you with any assurance that our
further expansion will be profitable, that we will be able to maintain any specific level of growth, if any, that we will be able to maintain
capital sufficient to support our continued growth or that we will be able to adequately and profitably manage that growth.

Any failure of our service level agreements or services could lead to significant costs and disruptions that could reduce our revenue
and harm our business reputation and financial results.

Our business depends on providing customers with highly reliable service, as more specifically described in service level agreements
that we enter into with our major customers. Our service level agreements may require that we guarantee our customers a level of availability
for equipment residing at the customer’s premises or third party facilities. Furthermore, we are dependent upon Internet service providers,
telecommunications carriers and other website operators in the U.S., Latin America and elsewhere, some of which have experienced
significant system failures and electrical outages in the past. Users of our services may in the future experience difficulties due to system
failures unrelated to our systems and services. Problems, whether or not within our control, could result in service interruptions or significant
equipment damage. As a result, service interruptions or significant equipment damage could result in difficulty maintaining service level
commitments to these customers and potential claims related to such failures.

If we incur significant financial obligations to our customers in connection with a loss of power or our failure to meet other service level
commitment obligations, our liability insurance may not be adequate. In addition, any loss of service, equipment damage or inability to meet
our service level commitment obligations could reduce the confidence of our customers and could consequently impair our ability to obtain
and retain customers, which would adversely affect both our ability to generate revenues and our operating results.

We expect our operating results to fluctuate.

Our customer activity is influenced by seasonal effects related to budget cycles and other factors specific to our target customer base.
Sales in the first three quarters are seasonally weak and they are generally highest in the fourth quarter. As a result, we rely heavily on our
fourth quarter revenues to support our overall results of operations. In addition, we have experienced fluctuations in our results of operations
on a quarterly and annual basis. We expect to experience significant fluctuations in our operating results in the foreseeable future due to a
variety of factors, including, but not limited to:
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changes in general economic conditions, such as the current economic downturn, and specific market conditions in the
telecommunications and Internet industries, both of which may have an impact on our customer base;

. the mix of current and proposed products and services and the gross margins associated with our products and services;
. conditions related to international operations;
. availability of working capital to allow us to accept customer orders;

the timing and magnitude of other operating expenses, including taxes, capital expenditures and expenses related to the
expansion of sales, marketing, operations and acquisitions, if any, of complementary businesses and assets; and
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. mandatory expensing of employee stock-based compensation.

Any of the foregoing factors, or other factors discussed elsewhere in this report, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Although we have experienced growth in revenues in recent quarters, this growth rate is not necessarily indicative of future operating
results. We have generated net losses every fiscal year since inception. It is possible that we may not be able to generate positive net income in
the future.

In addition, our operating results in one or more future quarters may fail to meet the expectations of securities analysts or investors. If
this occurs, we could experience an immediate and significant decline in the trading price of our stock.

We may not be able to run our businesses without the continuing efforts of our senior executives and we do not maintain key man
life insurance on any of them.

Our future success may be dependent on Pete R. Pizarro, Chief Executive Officer and President, and Harley L. Rollins, III, Chief
Financial Officer. We do not maintain “key man” life insurance covering any of our key personnel. Our success will depend to a significant
extent upon the retention of these executives, their successful performance, and the ability of all personnel to work effectively as a team. Our
success in retaining key employees is an important factor in our ability to remain competitive. As is common in our industry, our employees
are typically compensated through grants of equity awards in addition to their regular salaries. In addition to granting equity awards to
selected new hires, we periodically grant new equity awards to certain employees as an incentive to remain with us. To the extent we are
unable to offer competitive compensation packages to our employees and adequately maintain equity incentives due to equity expensing or
otherwise, and should employees decide to leave us, this may be disruptive to our business and may adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Potential liabilities under the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (whether currently existing or subsequently discovered) could have a
material adverse effect on our business.

We are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practice Act, or FCPA, which prohibits people or companies subject to United States jurisdiction
and their intermediaries from engaging in bribery or other prohibited payments to foreign officials for the purposes of obtaining or retaining
business or gaining an unfair business advantage. It also requires proper record keeping and characterization of such payments in reports filed
with the SEC. To the extent that any of our employees, suppliers, distributors, consultants, subcontractors, or others engage in conduct that
subjects us to exposure under the FCPA, or other anti-corruption legislation, we could suffer financial penalties, debarment from government
contracts and other consequences that may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

On September 14, 2007, following its acquisition, we engaged in a review of Latin Node’s internal controls and legal compliance
procedures within its finance and accounting departments as part of our acquisition and integration of Latin Node. As a result of this review,
certain past payments made to third parties prior to our acquisition of Latin Node on June 28, 2007 were identified as having been made in the
absence of adequate records and controls for a U.S. public company. We conducted an internal investigation to determine whether any direct
or indirect payments by employees of Latin Node or consultants used by Latin Node prior and subsequent to its acquisition by us were made
in violation of the FCPA. The internal investigation of the FCPA matter was conducted by a Special Committee of our Board of Directors.
The Special Committee retained independent legal counsel to assist in the investigation of the FCPA matter.

The internal investigation preliminarily revealed that certain payments from Latin Node prior to our acquisition of Latin Node may have
been made in violation of the FCPA. We voluntarily and proactively reported these potential violations to the SEC, the United States
Department of Justice, and the Federal Bureau of Investigation and cooperated fully with these agencies regarding this matter. Following
settlement discussions with the Department of Justice, Latin Node agreed to enter into a plea agreement to resolve the matter by the payment
of a monetary penalty of $2 million for the actions that occurred prior to Latin Node’s acquisition by us. On March 23, 2009, the Department
of Justice filed charges in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida against Latin Node for actions taken by Latin
Node prior to the time that we made our investment in Latin Node. On April 3, 2009, the matter was resolved and the court approved the plea
agreement reached with the Department of Justice. In accordance with the terms of the settlement agreement, we paid $500,000 promptly
following the settlement date, and the remaining $1,500,000 will be paid in three equal installments of $500,000 each by January 31,

2010, January 31, 2011 and January 31, 2012, respectively. On March 22, 2010, the court approved a modified payment schedule such that the
$500,000 payment originally due on January 31, 2010 will now be paid in the following manner: $50,000 on March 31, 2010, $125,000 on
May 15, 2010, $125,000 on July 15, 2010, $125,000 on October 15, 2010 and $75,000 on December 15, 2010. On March 17, 2011, the court
approved a modified payment schedule such that the January 31, 2011 payment of $500,000 will now be paid by making payments of $50,000
on the fifteenth of every month until December 15, 2011, when we will pay the balance on any arrears. The remaining January 31, 2012
payment remains unchanged but may be accelerated upon completion of a number of conditions agreed upon by the Department of Justice and
eLandia.
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Rapid changes in technology and our target markets could require substantial expenditure of financial and other resources in excess
of contemplated levels, and any inability to respond to those changes could render our inventory obsolete and reduce our market share.

The technology industry is experiencing significant changes and our ability to execute our business plans and compete depends upon our
ability to develop and deploy new products and services. The development and deployment of new products and services could require
substantial expenditure of financial and other resources, in excess of currently contemplated levels. If we are not able to develop new products
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and services to keep pace with technological advances and if those products and services are not widely accepted by customers, our ability to
compete could be adversely affected and our market share could decline.

We rely heavily on third parties to provide specialized services. Failure by such parties to provide the agreed services at an acceptable
level could limit our ability to provide services and/or cause customer dissatisfaction, either of which could result in reduced revenue.

We depend heavily on suppliers and contractors with specialized expertise in order for us to efficiently operate our business. In the past,
our suppliers, contractors and third-party retailers have not always performed at the levels we expect or at the levels required by their
contracts. If key suppliers, contractors or third-party retailers fail to comply with their contracts, fail to meet our performance expectations or
refuse to supply us in the future, our business could be severely disrupted. Generally, there are multiple sources for the products we purchase;
however, some suppliers are our exclusive sources for specific products. Our business could be substantially disrupted if we were required to
replace the products or services of one or more major, specialized suppliers with products or services from another source, especially if the
replacement became necessary on short notice.

Regulation by government agencies may increase our costs of providing service or require us to change our services.

Our operations in the South Pacific are subject to varying degrees of regulation by the FCC, local regulatory agencies and legislative
bodies and comparable regulatory agencies in the markets that we serve and may in the future be subject to regulation by environmental
agencies. Adverse decisions or regulations of these regulatory bodies could limit our ability to conduct business or increase our costs of doing
business. Governmental regulations and orders can significantly increase our costs and affect our competitive position compared to other
telecommunications providers. We are unable to predict the scope, pace, or financial impact of regulations and other policy changes that could
be adopted by the various governmental entities that oversee portions of our business.

If we cannot effectively manage our international operations, our business and results of operations will be harmed.

At the present time, most of our operations are conducted outside of North America. We anticipate that, for the foreseeable future, most
of our revenue will be derived from sources outside of North America. Our international operations are subject to a number of additional risks,
the occurrence of which may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations, including, without
limitation:

* expropriation and nationalization of our assets or of our customers in that country;

* political and economic instability;

« civil unrest, acts of terrorism, force majeure, war or other armed conflict;

* natural disasters including those related to earthquakes, hurricanes, tsunamis and flooding;

« inflation;

* currency fluctuations, devaluations, conversion and expropriation restrictions;

« confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies;

* governmental activities that limit or disrupt markets, payments, or limit the movement of funds;
* governmental activities that may result in the deprivation of contract rights; and

* trade restrictions and economic embargoes imposed by the United States and other countries.
Our future operating results may be subject to volatility as a result of exposure to foreign exchange risks.

We will be exposed to foreign exchange risks. Foreign currency fluctuations may affect both our revenues and our costs and expenses
and significantly affect our operating results. The majority of our revenue and costs from international operations have been denominated in
the currencies of Latin American countries such as Venezuela (the Bolivar Fuerte), Colombia (the Peso), Mexico (the Peso), Argentina (the
Peso), and Costa Rica (the Colon), as well as the currency of Samoa (the Tala). As a result, we may experience gains and losses resulting from
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and we bear the risk that the rate of inflation in one or more these countries will exceed the rate
of the devaluation of that country’s currency in relation to the U.S. Dollar, which would increase our costs. We have not undertaken foreign
exchange hedging transactions and are completely exposed to foreign currency transaction risk for all of our operations.
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Our networks and IT systems may be vulnerable to unauthorized persons accessing our systems, which could disrupt our operations
and result in the theft of our proprietary information.

A party who is able to breach the security measures on our networks could misappropriate either our proprietary information or the
personal information of our customers, or cause interruptions or malfunctions in our operations. We may be required to expend significant
capital and resources to protect against such threats or to alleviate problems caused by breaches in security, which could have a material
adverse effect on our financial performance and operating results.

We may not be able to compete successfully against current and future competitors.

Our products and services must be able to differentiate themselves from those of other providers with similar products and services.
With respect to our other products and services, including consulting services, network integration services, managed infrastructure services
and communication services, we must compete with more established providers of similar services. Most of these companies have longer
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operating histories and significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources than us. Because of their greater financial
resources, some of our competitors have the ability to adopt aggressive pricing policies. As a result, in the future, we may suffer from pricing
pressure that would adversely affect our ability to generate revenues and adversely affect our operating results. Some of these competitors may
also provide our target customers with additional benefits, including bundled communication services, and may do so in a manner that is more
attractive to our potential customers. If these competitors were able to adopt aggressive pricing policies together with offering collocation
space, our ability to generate revenues would be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

The market for shares of our common stock is thinly traded and you may find it difficult to dispose of your shares of our stock,
which could cause you to lose all or a portion of your investment in our company.

Although our common stock is listed for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board, only limited and sporadic trading in our common stock has
developed and we expect to have only a limited trading market in the foreseeable future. As a result, you may find it difficult to dispose of
shares of our common stock and you may suffer a loss of all or a substantial portion of your investment in our common stock.

The market price of our common shares may be subject to significant fluctuation.

The market price of our common stock could be subject to wide fluctuations, including fluctuations in response to quarterly variations in
our operating results, changes in earnings estimates by analysts, material announcements by us or our competitors, governmental or regulatory
actions, acquisitions, the liquidity of the market of our common stock, changes in general economic and market conditions, changes in the
securities markets, war and other conflicts, acts of terrorism, and other events, many of which are beyond our control. The stock market has
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, which have affected market prices of smaller capitalization companies and have often
been unrelated to the operating performance of such companies. In addition, if our operating results fall below the expectations of securities
analysts and investors, the price of our common stock would likely decline, perhaps substantially.

We do not plan to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Instead we intend to retain any future earnings
for reinvestment into our company and our operations. The payment of cash dividends is subject to the discretion of our board of directors and
its determination to declare such dividends, which will depend upon a number of factors, including our results of operations, financial
condition, future prospects and cash and capital requirements, tax considerations, and general business and economic conditions. Further,
under the terms of our current loan agreements with various lenders, we are prohibited from paying cash dividends or making other
distributions on our common stock without their prior consent.

Future issuances of additional securities could result in dilution of your ownership.

We may determine from time to time to issue additional securities to raise additional capital, support growth, or to make acquisitions.
Further, we may issue stock options or other stock grants to retain and motivate our employees. These issuances of our securities will dilute
the ownership interests of our current stockholders. New investors also may have rights, preferences and privileges senior to our current
stockholders, which may adversely impact our current stockholders.

The interests of our majority stockholder could conflict with those of our other stockholders resulting in the approval of corporate
actions that are not necessarily in the best interest of the other stockholders.

As a result of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, Amper holds approximately 85% of
our outstanding common stock. As a result, Amper is able to exert significant influence over the outcome of stockholder votes, including votes
concerning amendments to our charter and bylaws, the election of directors and the approval of significant corporate transactions. Amper’s
interests may conflict with the interests of other holders of common stock and it may take actions affecting us with which you may disagree.
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A NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report (including the exhibits) contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”),
such as statements relating to our financial condition, results of operations, plans, objectives, future performance or expectations, and business
operations. These statements relate to expectations concerning matters that are not historical fact. Accordingly, statements that are based on
management’s projections, estimates, assumptions, and judgments constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
are typically identified by words or phrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “estimate,” “approximately,” “intend,”
“objective,” “goal,” “project,” and other similar words and expressions, or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” “should,” “would,”
“could,” and “may.” These forward-looking statements are based largely on information currently available to our management and on our
current expectations, assumptions, plans, estimates, judgments and projections about our business and our industry, and such statements
involve inherent risks and uncertainties. Although we believe our expectations are based on reasonable estimates and assumptions, they are
not guarantees of performance and there are a number of known and unknown risks, uncertainties, contingencies, and other factors (many of
which are outside our control) that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Some factors include, but are not limited to, those described under the “Risk Factors,” in this Item 1A of our Annual Report.
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All written or oral forward-looking statements that are made or attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by this
cautionary notice. Such forward-looking statements speak only to the date that such statements are made, and we undertake no obligation to
update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events. We do not promise to update forward-looking information to reflect actual results or changes in
assumptions or other factors that could affect these statements other than material changes to such information.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not required for non-accelerated filers.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease approximately 10,000 square feet for our corporate headquarters located at 8200 NW 52" Terrace, Miami, Florida. On January
1, 2011, we entered into a lease agreement with Doral 8333 Office, LLC (an affiliate of our landlord) for 9,340 square feet at 8333 Downtown
Doral. Rent is currently abated at our current office space until the build-out and move to the new offices, at which time the required lease
payments will be approximately $22,500 per month. The lease expired on September 30, 2010 and required lease payments of approximately
$10,000 per month. We are currently leasing the space on a month-to-month basis. In addition, we lease space in each of the geographic
regions in which we have a presence for operations, sales, marketing and customer support, and general and administrative purposes. The
amount of space leased for each purpose in each geographic operating segment varies depending on our current needs in each market. In the
aggregate, we lease approximately 117,000 square feet in Latin America, which is predominantly office space used for sales, marketing and
customer support, and general and administrative purposes. In the aggregate, we lease approximately 91,500 square feet in the South Pacific,
of which approximately 9,300 square feet is for operations and approximately 82,200 square feet is office space for sales, marketing and
customer support, and general and administrative purposes.

We believe that our existing facilities are suitable and adequate and that we have sufficient capacity to meet our current anticipated
needs. None of these facilities are critical to our operations because suitable alternative actions are available in substantially all of the

locations where we conduct business. We continuously review our anticipated requirements for facilities and, on the basis of that review, may
from time to time acquire or lease additional facilities and dispose of existing facilities.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On February 24, 2009, Kelton and Datec, as plaintiffs, filed in the High Court of Fiji at Suva an Ex Parte Notice of Motion for Interim
Injunction (the “Motion”). The Motion named as defendants Generic, Datec Pacific Holdings Ltd., eLandia, the Receiver for Stanford, and the
Registrar of Companies. The Motion sought an interim injunction preventing certain defendants from, among other things, appointing new
directors or removing existing directors from the board of directors of Generic and other entities and also preventing certain defendants from
disposing of shares in Generic or its subsidiaries. On February 27, 2009, the Fiji Court entered an order granting this relief on an ex parte
basis.

On March 31, 2009, Kelton and Datec filed a Statement of Claim in the Fiji Action. In essence, the Statement of Claim alleged that the
Arrangement Agreement pursuant to which eLandia acquired the subsidiaries of Datec was induced by untrue representations related to the
capital to be devoted to those subsidiaries and alleged investigations of Stanford. It asserted claims for fraudulent misrepresentation, proper
construction and enforceability of certain Stock Purchase Agreements in which claims against eLandia were released, breach of Stock
Purchase Agreements, breach of the Arrangement Agreement, and equitable estoppel. As relief, it sought, among other things, rescission of
the Arrangement Agreement and Stock Purchase Agreements, a declaration as to the scope of the Stock Purchase Agreements, injunctive
relief, and damages.
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On June 24, 2010, we entered into a settlement agreement (“Settlement Agreement” ) with the plaintiffs in this case, among others,
pursuant to which: (i) 150,000 shares of our common stock were transferred to us in exchange for our interests in Datec Fiji and Datec
Australia, (ii) the parties agreed to dismiss all pending legal proceedings between them, (iii) the parties exchanged mutual general releases,
and (iv) the parties agreed to be subject to certain non-interference, and non-disparagement covenants. This action was dismissed August 12,
2010.

On March 9, 2009, we filed an action in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Miami Division (the
“Court”), against Sir James Ah Koy, Michael Ah Koy, Kelton, and Datec. In essence, we alleged that Sir James Ah Koy and his son, Michael
Ah Koy, Kelton, and Datec improperly acted to preclude the sale of our interests in the South Pacific. We asserted that the defendants
improperly employed claims and complaints about the Arrangement Agreement that they have released to favor their own interests at our
expense. We asserted claims for breach of fiduciary duty, aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duty, conspiracy to breach fiduciary duty,
declaratory judgment under various agreements, breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, breach of contract, and tortious
interference with business relations. We sought a declaratory judgment, an injunction, compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys’
fees, and costs. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, this action was dismissed on June 25, 2010.
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In addition to the above, from time to time, we are periodically a party to or otherwise involved in legal proceedings arising in the
normal and ordinary course of business. Other than as described above, as of the date of this Annual Report, management does not believe that
there is any proceeding threatened or pending against us which, if determined adversely, would have a material effect on our business, results
of operations, cash flows or financial position.

ITEM 4. RESERVED
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PART II
ITEM 5 MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
) PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Information

Effective November 17, 2007, our shares of common stock commenced trading on the OTC Bulletin Board and currently trade under
the symbol “ELAN.OB.” Prior to that date, there was no active market for our common stock and since that date, there have only been limited
or sporadic quotations and only a very limited public trading market for our securities. At the close of business on April 15, 2011, there were
approximately 23,288,480 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding which were held by approximately 417 stockholders of record.
The following table sets forth the high and low closing sales prices for our common stock as quoted by OTC Bulletin Board for the periods
indicated:

Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Common stock price per share during 2010:

High $ 045 % 055 $ 055 $ 0.30

Low $ 0.18 $ 0.18 $ 0.10 $ 0.11
Common stock price per share during 2009:

High $ 130 S 075 $ 073 $ 0.45

Low $ 040 $ 030 $ 021 $ 0.16

The quotations in the above table reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail markups, markdowns or commissions and may not
necessarily represent actual transactions. On March 31, 2011, the last reported bid price of our common stock reported on the OTC Bulletin
Board was $0.20 per share.

Dividend Policy

Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by our Board of Directors out of funds legally
available. We, however, have never paid any cash dividends and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Instead
we intend to retain any future earnings to support the development and growth of our business. We may consider payment of dividends at
some point in the future, but the declaration of dividends is at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and there is no assurance that dividends
will be paid at any time. Our Board of Directors will make any such future determination as to the payment of dividends at its discretion, and
its determination will depend upon our operating results, financial condition and capital requirements, general business conditions and such
other factors that the Board of Directors considers relevant. In addition, our loan agreements with various lenders prohibit us from paying cash
dividends or making other distributions on our common stock without prior consent.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

ITEM 7. OPERATIONS

Introduction

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the information contained in our audited consolidated financial statements
and the related notes thereto, appearing elsewhere herein.
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Overview

We are a provider of ICT products and services to small, medium-sized and large businesses as well as government entities and service
providers, primarily in Latin America. We have presence in over 17 countries, including Argentina, Colombia, Costa Rica, Ecuador, El
Salvador, Guatemala, Honduras, Mexico, Nicaragua, Panama, Peru, Venezuela and the United States. We also operate in the South Pacific
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region through our wholly-owned subsidiary, AST, which offers mobile communications, Internet services and cable TV services (Moana TV)
in American Samoa under the Bluesky Communications brand. In addition we also own 66 2/3% of the ASH Cable in partnership with the
American Samoa Government, providing high-speed networking connections between the territory of American Samoa and the rest of the
world.

We provide innovative technology solutions that help customers increase efficiency, improve business agility, decrease costs, and
maximize their existing ICT investments in order to achieve competitive advantages. Our service portfolio currently consists of three core
business offerings: Technology Solutions, Business Practices and Advanced Services, all of which assist our customers compete effectively in
the global economy. We also hold more than 38 certifications and specializations from leading technology companies, including Cisco,
Microsoft and others.

We operate through three reporting segments: Latin America, South Pacific and Corporate and Discontinued Operations. See Note 23 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information regarding our segments.

Discontinued Operations

Our discontinued operations are comprised of (i) our 50% interest in Datec PNG, which was sold in April 2009; (ii) our operations in
Fiji; and (iii) certain eLandia predecessor companies that no longer conduct any operations.

Through April 17, 2009, we held a 50% interest in Datec PNG. Due to our management influence, we consolidated Datec PNG within
our consolidated financial statements. Datec PNG provided technology products, Internet access services and IT services to large corporate
organizations. On April 17, 2009 we sold our 50% ownership interest in Datec PNG to Steamships Ltd.

In April 2009, the Reserve Bank of Fiji announced that Fiji’s currency had been devalued by 20% effective April 16, 2009, the President
of Fiji annulled the country’s constitution, terminated all the judges in the country and declared himself the head of state. This triggered an
impairment charge to our goodwill in Fiji during the year ended December 31, 2009 due to the anticipated economic instability and an
uncertain business climate. As a result of these factors and the uncertainty caused by such factors, in December 2009 our Board of Directors
approved management’s proposal to dispose of our operations in Fiji. Management began to actively market and locate a buyer for our
operations in Fiji during the quarter ended March 31, 2010. On June 24, 2010, we entered into a settlement agreement with Kelton and Datec,
as plaintiffs, among others, pursuant to which 150,000 shares of our common stock have been transferred to us in exchange for our interests in
Datec Fiji and Datec Australia. As a result of the settlement and resolution of the material closing conditions, we re-measured the value of the
net liabilities transferred at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value. We determined that the fair value of the 150,000 shares of our
common stock returned to us was deminimus. Accordingly, we recorded a gain in discontinued operations, which includes the results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, of $2.4 million. That gain includes approximately $3.6 million from the recovery of
accumulated translation gains previously reflected as a component of other comprehensive income.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to exercise its judgment. We exercise considerable judgment with respect to establishing sound
accounting policies and in making estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of our assets and liabilities, our recognition of
revenues and expenses, and disclosure of commitments and contingencies at the date of the financial statements.

On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments. Areas in which we exercise significant judgment include, but are not
necessarily limited to, the amount of uncollectible accounts receivable, the valuation of value added tax (“VAT”) receivable, deferred taxes
and related valuation allowances, the amount to be paid for the settlement of liabilities of discontinued operations, accrued expenses, the
amount allocated to contract rights, customer lists, trade names and goodwill in connection with acquisitions, along with the estimated useful
lives for amortizable intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, warrants granted in connection with various financing transactions
and share-based payment arrangements.

We base our estimates and judgments on a variety of factors including our historical experience, knowledge of our business and
industry, current and expected economic conditions, the attributes of our services and products and the regulatory environment. We
periodically re-evaluate our estimates and assumptions with respect to these judgments and modify our approach when circumstances indicate
that modifications are necessary.

While we believe that the factors we evaluate provide us with a meaningful basis for establishing and applying sound accounting
policies, we cannot guarantee that the results will always be accurate. Since the determination of these estimates requires the exercise of
judgment, actual results could differ from such estimates.
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A description of significant accounting policies that require us to make estimates and assumptions in the preparation of our consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue from product sales and services. The products and services that we offer in each of the geographic areas we serve
vary depending on the infrastructure, existing telecommunication systems and the needs of the region. All revenue is recognized net of
discounts, returns and allowances.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is probable. We enter into certain arrangements where we are obligated to deliver multiple products and/or services (multiple
elements). In these arrangements, we generally allocate the total revenue among the elements based on the sales price of each element when
sold separately (vendor specific objective evidence).

Revenue recognized in advance of amounts billable pursuant to contract terms, based on work performed and/or services provided to
date, are recorded as unbilled receivables. Unbilled receivables are billable upon various events, including the attainment of performance
milestones, delivery of equipment and/or services or completion of the contract.

Products
Revenue generated from the sale of products is recorded when the products are delivered.

Revenue from sales of technology products includes, among other things, personal computers, servers, routers, switching systems,
networking equipment and communications equipment. Revenue from sales of telecommunications products includes hardware and
other products supporting telecommunications services.

Revenue from software license sales is recognized once delivery has occurred, evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed and
determined and collection of the fee is probable, provided there are no significant vendor obligations remaining. For multiple element
arrangements, where vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value is available for all elements, the contract value is
allocated to each element proportionately based upon relative VSOE of fair value and revenue is recognized separately for each element.
Where VSOE of fair value is available for all undelivered elements, the residual method is used to value the delivered elements. Where
VSOE of fair value is not available for all undeliverable elements all revenue for the arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point
at which VSOE does exist or all elements of the arrangement have been delivered.

Information Technology Services

Professional IT services revenue includes professional consulting services pertaining to the planning, design, implementation, operation
and optimization of our technology and telecommunications solutions as well as implementation of customized solutions such as
application development, systems integration, training, maintenance and support. Revenue generated from professional consulting
services is generally recognized as the services are performed.

Revenue generated from professional IT services under periodic contracts such as maintenance and support services is generally
recognized ratably over the term of the contract.

Telecommunications Services

Revenue generated from the provision of telecommunications services is generally recognized as the minutes we sell are used by our
customers. Revenues generated from providing access to and usage of our undersea cable and cable television services consist of fixed
monthly or quarterly recurring charges. We recognize revenue for services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the service period.
Revenues generated for the installation of equipment is recognized in the period when the equipment is installed and ready for the
customer’s use. We record payments received from customers in advance of usage as deferred revenue or customer deposits at the time
payment is received.

Education Services

Revenue from education services is generated through the provision of talent development and technical certification courses. Revenue
generated from education services is generally recognized as the courses are completed and the certified testing services are rendered.

Production Type Contracts

From time to time, we enter into contracts that are accounted for using the percentage of completion method. Revenue is recognized on
contracts in process based upon estimated contract revenue and related total cost of the project at completion. The extent of progress
toward completion is generally measured based on the ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost at completion. Labor hours
incurred is used as the measure of progress towards completion, and management believes its estimates to completion are reasonably
dependable. Management regularly reviews underlying estimates of project profitability. Revisions to estimates are reflected in the
statement of operations in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known. Provisions for anticipated losses are
made in the period in which they become determinable.
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Vendor Rebates

We have arrangements to receive cash or consideration from certain of our vendors, including rebates. The amounts received or credited
from our vendors are recorded as a reduction of the prices paid for these products and, therefore, such amounts are reflected as a
reduction of the cost of revenue. Vendor rebates are typically dependent upon reaching minimum sales thresholds. We evaluate the
likelihood of reaching sales thresholds using past experience and current forecasts and, when rebates can be reasonably estimated, we
record a portion of the rebate as progress is made toward the sales threshold.

Vendor rebates for which we have a contractual right of offset are recorded net of accounts payable.

Accounts Receivable
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Trade accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances for cash discounts for prompt payment, doubtful accounts and sales returns.
Estimates for cash discounts and sales returns are based on contractual terms, historical trends and expectations regarding the utilization rates
for these programs.

Our policy is to reserve for uncollectible accounts based on our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing
accounts receivable. We periodically review our accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance for doubtful accounts is necessary
based on an analysis of past due accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt. Other factors
that we consider include our existing contractual obligations, historical payment patterns of our customers and individual customer
circumstances, an analysis of days sales outstanding by customer and geographic region, and a review of the local economic environment and
its potential impact on the realizability of accounts receivable. Account balances deemed to be uncollectible are charged to the allowance for
doubtful accounts after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

Inventory

Inventory consists predominantly of finished goods inventory, inclusive of technology equipment, products and accessories. The
majority of our inventory is held waiting for configuration and delivery to customers based on received purchase orders. Inventory is carried at
the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is based on a weighted average or first-in-first-out method. All expenditures incurred in
acquiring inventory including transportation and custom duties are included in inventory. Reserves for obsolete inventory are provided based
on historical experience of a variety of factors including sales volume, product life, and levels of inventory at the end of the period.

Value Added Tax

Certain of our operations are subject to Value Added Tax, or VAT, which is usually applied to goods and services purchased in the
respective countries. We account for VAT imposed on our goods and services on a net basis. We are required to remit the VAT we collect to
the tax authorities, but may deduct the VAT we have paid on eligible purchases. The VAT return is filed offsetting the payables against the
receivables. The collection of the VAT receivable may extend over a period of up to two years. We review our VAT receivable for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount might not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of customer lists, contract rights and trade names, which are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. We review the carrying value of intangibles and other long-lived assets for impairment at least annually or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. With respect to the
valuation of our goodwill, we considered a variety of factors including the business climate, legal factors, operating performance indicators,
competition or sale or disposition of a significant portion of a reporting unit. Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment,
including the identification of reporting units, assignment of assets and liabilities to reporting units, assignment of goodwill to reporting units,
and determination of the fair value of each reporting unit. The fair value of each reporting unit is estimated using a discounted cash flow
methodology. This requires significant judgments including estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on internal forecasts,
estimation of long-term rate of growth for our business, the useful life over which cash flows will occur, and determination of our weighted
average cost of capital. Changes in those estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and/or goodwill
impairment for each reporting unit. We allocate goodwill to reporting units based on the reporting unit expected to benefit from the
combination. We evaluate our reporting units on an annual basis and, if necessary, reassign goodwill using a relative fair value allocation
approach.

As a result of the weakened economic environment, we undertook a review of the carrying amount of our intangible assets and goodwill
as of December 31, 2009. The results of our quantitative analysis indicated that no impairment existed in our intangible assets and goodwill in
Latin America; however, we also considered qualitative factors in our assessment. Specifically, we noted that the weakened economic
environment continues to have a negative impact on our operations at Transistemas as evidenced by the significant operating losses
experienced from our operations in Argentina. In addition, we noted the significant country risk that exists in Venezuela (and to a lesser extent
in Ecuador) and that the inherent political uncertainty which exists makes any long-term estimates as to future cash flows derived from that
business extremely volatile. Although the weakened economic environment has affected our subsidiaries in other parts of Latin America, the
effects have been felt to a much lesser extent. While the quantitative analysis supports the current carrying value of the intangible assets and
goodwill in our other Latin America subsidiaries, we believed that an impairment existed from a qualitative standpoint given the uncertainty
and instability of the future economic environment in certain countries of Latin America and the political risk in some of our markets.
Accordingly, at December 31, 2009, we recorded a $15 million impairment charge in the consolidated statement of operations during the year
ended December 31, 2009.
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As a result of litigation in Fiji, as well as Fiji’s current economic instability and uncertain business climate, we undertook a review of
the carrying amount of our goodwill as of March 31, 2009 and determined that the value of our goodwill related to Fiji had been impaired.
Accordingly, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge, which is included in loss from discontinued operations, of $1,025,717 during the
year ended December 31, 2009.

Income Taxes

We are required to determine the aggregate amount of income tax expense or loss based upon tax statutes in jurisdictions in which we
conduct business. In making these estimates, we adjust our results determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for
items that are treated differently by the applicable taxing authorities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities, as a result of these differences, are
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reflected on our consolidated balance sheet for temporary differences in loss and credit carry forwards that will reverse in subsequent years.
We also establish a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. Valuation allowances are based, in part, on predictions that management must make as to our results in future periods.
The outcome of events could differ over time which would require that we make changes in our valuation allowance.

Share Based Payments and Other Equity Transactions

Share-based payment (“SBP”) awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted stock and
stock appreciation rights, result in a cost that is measured at fair value on the awards’ grant date, based on the estimated number of awards that
are expected to vest. Under this method of accounting, we are required to estimate the fair value of share based payment that we make to our
employees by developing assumptions regarding expected holding terms of stock options, volatility rates, and expectation of forfeitures and
future vesting that can significantly impact the amount of compensation cost that we recognize in each reporting period.

We are also required to apply complex accounting principles with respect to accounting for financing transactions that we have
consummated in order to finance the growth of our business. These transactions, which generally consist of convertible debt and equity
instruments, require us to use significant judgment in order to assess the fair values of these instruments at their dates of issuance, which is
critical to making a reasonable presentation of our financing costs and how we finance our business.

Formulating estimates in any of the above areas requires us to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the
estimates of the effect on the consolidated financial statements of a condition, situation, or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the
consolidated financial statements that we considered in formulating our estimates could change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results regarding estimates of any of the above items as they are presented in the consolidated
financial statements could differ materially from our estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) — Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements” (“ASU No. 2009-13”). ASU No. 2009-13 addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable vendors to
account for products or services (“deliverables”) separately rather than as a combined unit. Specifically, this guidance amends the criteria in
Subtopic 605-25, “Revenue Recognition-Multiple-Element Arrangements,” of the Codification for separating consideration in multiple-
deliverable arrangements. A selling price hierarchy is established for determining the selling price of a deliverable, which is based on:

(a) vendor-specific objective evidence; (b) third-party evidence; or (c) estimates. This guidance also eliminates the residual method of
allocation and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative
selling price method. Additional disclosures related to a vendor’s multiple-deliverable revenue arrangements are also required by this update.
ASU No. 2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into, or materially modified, in fiscal years beginning on or
after June 15, 2010 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-14, “Software (Topic 985) — Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements” (“ASU No. 2009-14"). ASU No. 2009-14 changes the accounting model for revenue arrangements that include both tangible
products and software elements to allow for alternatives when vendor-specific objective evidence does not exist. Under this guidance, tangible
products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the tangible product’s essential
functionality and hardware components of a tangible product containing software components are excluded from the software revenue
guidance in Subtopic 985-605, “Software-Revenue Recognition;” thus, these arrangements are excluded from this update. ASU No. 2009-14
is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010 with
early adoption permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position
or results of operations.
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In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-28, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — When to Perform Step 2 of
the Goodwill Impairment Test for reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts” (“ASU 2010-28"). ASU 2010-28 modifies Step 1
of the goodwill impairment test so that for those reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts, an entity is required to perform Step 2
of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not based in an assessment of qualitative indicators that goodwill impairment exists. In
determining whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exits, an entity should consider whether there are any adverse
qualitative factors indicating that an impairment may exist. ASU 2010-28 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.
Results of Operations — Overview

Our business and operating results have been and will continue to be affected by regional and worldwide economic conditions. Our sales
are dependent on certain industry and markets that are impacted by consumer as well as industrial and infrastructure spending, and our
operating results can be adversely affected by reduced demand in those markets.
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We experienced a 13% decrease in revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared with the same period in 2009. Our results
for the year ended December 31, 2009 reflect the translation of our Venezuelan operations at the official exchange rate, whereas the results for
the year ended December 31, 2010 reflect the translation of our Venezuelan operations at the parallel exchange rate through May 2010 and the
SITME (as defined below) rate thereafter. Excluding the effect of the differences in exchange rates in Venezuela, revenues increased 18% for
the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009. Contributing to our results for the year ended December
31, 2010 was the execution of a significant contract in Ecuador, improving customer confidence, improvement in economic conditions
internationally, continued selective investment in strategic sales, marketing and customer support activities to drive sales and develop growth
platforms, as well as the implementation of general and administrative cost-cutting measures. Our revenues for 2010 would have reflected a
higher increase year over year (excluding Venezuela) had they not been impacted by credit holds with a major vendor. Such credit holds
delayed the delivery of customer orders, which, in turn, delayed or caused the loss of sales during the year ended December 31, 2010.
However, we do not believe such credit holds will significantly impact our results in 2011.

Sales in a particular period may be significantly impacted by several factors related to revenue recognition, including large and sporadic
purchases by customers; the complexity of transactions such as multiple element arrangements; and final acceptance of the product, system, or
solution, among other factors. We experience a seasonal pattern to our business. The fourth quarter is typically the strongest quarter of our
fiscal year, while the first quarter is negatively affected by holidays. We are monitoring the current environment and its potential effects on
our customers and on the markets we serve. Additionally, we continue to closely manage our costs in order to respond to changing conditions.
We are also managing our capital resources and monitoring capital availability to ensure that we have sufficient resources to fund our capital
needs. Backlog as of December 31, 2010 was $54.6 million, compared to $65.2 million as of December 31, 2009. Exclusive of Venezuela in
both periods, backlog was $48.2 million as of December 31, 2010, compared to $53.0 million as of December 31, 2009.

Gross margin, as a percentage of consolidated net sales, increased from 28% for the year ended December 31, 2009 to
. 30% for the year ended December 31, 2010, primarily due to a shift in our product mix towards more service-related
products, which generally yield higher overall margins.

Operating loss for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $11.7 million, compared to $44.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. The decrease in operating loss is primarily due to a decrease in overall operating expenses of
approximately $35.8 million. Lower operating expenses are principally related to a decrease in general and

. administrative expenses of $11.4 million; a decrease in sales, marketing and customer support of $7.1 million; and a
decrease in depreciation and amortization expense of $3.3 million. Additionally, operating expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2009 include a $15 million charge related to the impairment of intangible assets and goodwill in our Latin
American segment.

Net loss attributable to eLandia for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $19.4 million, compared to $68.8 million in
the same period in 2009. The decrease in net loss is primarily due to lower operating loss and lower other non-operating
expenses. Contributing to the decrease in other non-operating expenses was a reduction in foreign currency exchange
loss of $5.2 million and a gain on extinguishment of debt of $2.0 million. Additionally, we had income from

. discontinued operations of $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to a loss from discontinued
operations of $12.0 million for the prior year. Offsetting the decrease in net loss was an increase in interest expense
mainly due to interest recognized on a $5.5 million advance from Medidata received in September 2010. In addition, the
decrease in net loss was offset by the provision for income taxes of $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to a benefit for income taxes of $0.2 million for the prior year.

Net loss per share decreased from ($2.50) for the year ended December 31, 2009 to ($0.71) for the year ended December
31, 2010.
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Results of Operations — Latin America

In addition to various lines of traditional and advanced information technology products, we currently offer a broad range of technology
services and solutions built within our comprehensive security and best practices philosophy, providing the solid foundation on which we
continue to develop our solution offerings, which are structured into three core competencies:

Technology Solutions: We capitalize on the investments and experience accumulated in our group companies to offer a broad
array of solutions in the areas of borderless networks, cloud solutions, and virtual workspace.

Business Practices: We focus on our goal of assisting customers transform their enterprises using technology. We have
. invested in building a series of Business Practice Solutions that help us build deeper relationships with customers and serve
them more efficiently and effectively.
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Advanced Services Portfolio: Complementing our Technology and Business Solutions, we provide a complete lifecycle
services offering that ensures realization of the full benefits of our value proposition.

In support of our broad range of offerings we currently hold more than 38 certifications and specializations from leading technology
companies, including Cisco, Microsoft and others. The products and services we offer in each of our markets vary depending on the
infrastructure, existing data communications systems and the needs of the local economy.

Venezuela

We measure assets, liabilities, sales and expenses denominated in Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes converting such amounts into U.S.
Dollars using the applicable exchange rate, and the resulting translation adjustments are included in earnings. Through May 2010, we used the
parallel rate to convert transactions and balances denominated in Bolivar Fuertes into U.S. Dollars. Our results in Venezuela through May
2010 are reflected in the consolidated financial statements at the parallel exchange rate, which was approximately 8.98 to 1 U.S. Dollar; and
during substantially all of 2009, we used the official rate of 2.15 to 1 to report the results of our Venezuelan operations. As of December 31,
2009, we changed the rate we used to remeasure our Venezuelan operations from the official exchange rate to the parallel exchange rate. Our
considerations for changing the rate included indications that the Venezuelan government was not likely to continue to provide substantial
currency exchange at the official rate for companies importing nonessential products, difficulties in obtaining approval for the conversion of
local currency to U.S. Dollars at the official exchange rate (for imported products, royalties and distributions), and delays in obtaining
payment approvals. As a result of this decision, we recorded a pretax loss of $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

We continued to value our net monetary assets using the parallel exchange rate until May 17, 2010, at which time the Venezuelan
government enacted reforms to its foreign currency exchange control regulations (the “exchange control regulations”) to close down the
parallel exchange market and announced its intent to implement an alternative market under the control of the Venezuela Central Bank. On
June 9, 2010, the Venezuelan government introduced a newly regulated foreign currency exchange system, SITME, which is controlled by the
BCV. Foreign currency exchange transactions not conducted through CADIVI or SITME may not comply with the exchange control
regulations, and could therefore be considered illegal. The SITME imposes volume restrictions on the conversion of Bolivar Fuertes to U.S.
Dollars, currently limiting such activity to a maximum equivalent of $350,000 per month.

As a result of the enactment of the reforms to the exchange control regulations, we changed the rate we use to remeasure Bolivar Fuerte-
denominated transactions from the parallel exchange rate to the SITME rate specified by the BCV, which was quoted at 5.30 Venezuelan
Bolivar Fuertes per U.S. Dollar on December 31, 2010. Since this new translation rate was more favorable than the parallel rate, we recorded a
gain of $2.6 million for the nine months ended December 31, 2010. This gain significantly offset the $2.2 million loss recorded during the
three months ended March 31, 2010 resulting from the less favorable parallel rate as of March 31, 2010 compared to December 31, 2009. Due
to the level of uncertainty in Venezuela, we cannot predict the exchange rate that will ultimately be used to convert our local currency
monetary assets in Venezuela to U.S. Dollars in the future. As a result, negative charges reflecting a less favorable exchange rate outcome are
possible.

Following are the exchange rates utilized to remeasure and translate our Venezuelan results of operations during the year ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively:
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As of December 31,
Monthly Average Exchange Rate: 2010 2009
January 6.15 2.15
February 6.49 2.15
March 6.90 2.15
April 7.33 2.15
May 8.02 2.15
June 5.27 2.15
July 5.30 2.15
August 5.30 2.15
September 5.30 2.15
October 5.30 2.15
November 5.30 2.15
December 5.30 2.15
Year to Date Average Exchange Rate 6.00 2.15
Period End Exchange Rate 5.30 5.97

The aforementioned changes in the exchange rates have reduced the remeasured and translated value in U.S. Dollars of Bolivar Fuerte-
denominated Venezuelan transactions compared with prior periods. Venezuela exchange rate matters, along with local market and regulatory
conditions, have resulted in a substantial decrease in net sales for our Venezuelan subsidiary. For the year ended December 31, 2010, our
Venezuelan subsidiary represented 12% of our consolidated net sales, compared to 35% for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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Revenues for our Venezuelan operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, remeasured at the parallel rate through May 2010 and
the SITME rate thereafter, were $17.4 million, compared to $60.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, remeasured at the official
rate. Gross profit for Venezuela for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $4.3 million, or gross margin of 25%, compared to gross profit of

$18.7 million, or gross margin of 31%, for the year ended December 31, 2009. Operating expenses for Venezuela for the year ended

December 31, 2010 were $6.0 million, compared to $17.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Net income for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was $2.8 million, compared to a net loss of $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

There will be an ongoing impact related to measuring the statement of operations for our Venezuelan operations at the SITME exchange
rate. Our net sales and operating income in Venezuela are subject to a highly inflationary environment, which as of December 31, 2010, was
in excess of 30% per year. The comparability of our Venezuelan results and the resulting U.S. Dollar value reported in any given period are

affected by the fluctuations in the exchange rates.

Latin America

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2010 to the Year Ended December 31, 2009

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, consolidated statements of operations information for our continuing operations

in Latin America.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 $ Change % Change

Revenue

Product Sales 81,826,832 § 110,639,219 § (28,812,387) (26.0)%

Services 54,054,720 50,081,648 3,973,072 7.9%
Total Revenue 135,881,552 160,720,867 (24,839,315) (15.5)%
Cost of Revenue

Product Sales 65,711,617 88,051,132 (22,339,515) (25.4)%

Services 34,515,772 32,457,159 2,058,613 6.3%
Total Cost of Revenue 100,227,389 120,508,291 (20,280,902) (16.8)%
Gross Profit 35,654,163 40,212,576 (4,558,413) (11.3%)

26.2% 25.0% 1.2%

Expenses

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support 19,675,287 26,305,265 (6,629,978) (25.2)%

General and Administrative 18,234,543 25,800,356 (7,565,813) (29.3)%

Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill — 15,000,000 (15,000,000) (100.0)%

Depreciation and Amortization 2,525,914 2,662,635 (136,721) 5.1)%

Amortization — Intangible Assets — 3,481,546 (3,481,5406) (100.0)%
Total Expenses 40,435,744 73,249,802 (32,814,058) (44.8)%
Operating Income (Loss) (4,781,581) (33,037,226) 28,255,645 (85.5)%
Interest (Expense) Income, Net (5,680,683) (4,384,401) (1,296,282) 29.6%
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt 2,037,500 — 2,037,500 100.0%
Chapge 'in Value of Noncontrolling Interest Purchase Price o 814,127 (814,127) (100.0)%

bligation
Other Income (Expense) (2,939,040) (7,755,658) 4,816,618 (62.1)%
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit (1,048,087) 66,387 (1,114,474) (1678.7)%
Net Income (Loss) $ (12,411,891) $ (44,296,771) $ 31,884,880 (72.0)%

Product Sales

Year over year decline in product sales was $28.8 million, or 26%. Excluding the effect of Venezuela’s product revenues in both
periods, we experienced a growth in product sales of $4.2 million, or 6%. The increase in product sales, excluding the effect of Venezuela, is
primarily attributable to increased sales in our markets in Colombia and Argentina, offset by a decrease in product sales in Mexico. During the
year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized approximately $9.9 million in product revenues related to three significant projects in
Colombia and approximately $5.8 million in product revenues related to three significant projects in Argentina. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, product revenues in our Latin American segment benefited from higher dollar value sales and increased customer base, as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2009. Product sales for the year ended December 31, 2010 were impacted by credit holds imposed
on us by a major vendor. Such credit holds delayed the delivery of customer orders, which, in turn, delayed or caused the loss of sales during
the year ended December 31, 2010.

Revenues for our Venezuelan operations for the year ended December 31, 2009 include product revenues at higher margins compared to
margins for customer orders in the same period in 2010, which were significantly lower. Venezuela’s revenues for the year ended December
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31, 2009 include approximately $40.2 million in product and services revenues, translated at the official rate of 2.15 related to three
customers. Revenues from these same three customers amounted to approximately $4.6 million, translated at an average exchange rate of 6.00
for the year ended December 31, 2010. The Venezuelan market, and to a lesser extent, our other Latin American markets, have been
significantly affected by the global financial crisis and significant inflation. This has made it more challenging for our customers to maintain
their capital spending and obtain credit to fund their purchases resulting in the termination, postponement or dollar value decrease of several
contracts. Additionally, our results of operations for Venezuela are impacted by the differential between our revenue and cost cycles. Sales are
mainly denominated in Bolivar Fuertes whereas purchases are mainly denominated in U.S. Dollars, thereby creating an exchange rate
difference between revenues and costs, which has impacted our gross margins. In order to mitigate the risks that are present in Venezuela,
management has been developing sales and customer bases in our other more profitable markets and restricting its sales in Venezuela. We are
also working closely with our sales personnel and vendors to enter into more profitable arrangements.

Product gross margin remained consistent at 20% for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. Excluding the effect of Venezuela
in both periods, our product gross margin increased from 17% for the year ended December 31, 2009 to 20% for the year ended December 31,
2010. The increase in our product gross margin, excluding the effect of Venezuela, mainly results from a combination of product pricing and
cost beneficial negotiations with our vendors.

26

Services

Year over year growth in revenue from the provision of professional ICT services was $4.0 million, or 8%. Excluding the effect of
Venezuela’s service revenues in both periods, year over year growth in service revenues was $13.9 million, or 41%. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we recognized approximately $6.6 million in services revenues related to a significant project in Ecuador. We expect to
recognize an additional $4.2 million in services revenue from this project during 2011 and 2012. Additionally, we recognized approximately
$4.9 million in services revenues related to three significant projects in Colombia. Our overall increase in services revenues is also attributable
to several new maintenance agreements entered into during the year ended December 31, 2010 associated with product sales, which has
resulted in a larger installed base of our equipment being serviced.

Venezuela’s revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 include service revenues at higher margins related to customers whose
2010 orders were significantly lower. As noted above, the Venezuelan market, and to a lesser extent, our other Latin American markets, have
been significantly affected by the global financial crisis and significant inflation.

Service gross margin remained relatively consistent at 36% for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 35% for the year ended
December 31, 2009. Excluding the effect of Venezuela in both periods, our service gross margin increased from 29% for the year ended
December 31, 2009 to 36% for the year ended December 31, 2010. Our gross margin for 2010 has benefited from the synergies achieved from
the consolidation of costs among the markets we serve which enabled us to control costs, while increasing revenues.

Expenses

Our overall operating expenses during the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased as a result of cost-cutting measures implemented
during 2009 and 2010 in response to the overall weakened economy in Latin America. We revised our growth plans while implementing cost
control programs, optimizing back-office functions and reducing our headcount by approximately 300 people. The change in the exchange
rates we use to remeasure our Venezuelan operations also contributed to the decrease in expenses.

Sales, marketing and customer support costs include costs associated with advertising and promoting our products and services as well
as supporting the customer after the sale is complete. Sales, marketing and customer support expenses for the year ended December 31, 2009
reflect the significant investments made to expand our sales teams in multiple markets and roll out marketing campaigns supporting our entry
into new markets such as Peru, El Salvador, Guatemala and Nicaragua. As a result of the weakened economic environment, we began
reallocating resources by cutting plans and projects in order to reinvest in newer, more effective strategies, thereby reducing our costs during
the year ended December 31 2010.

General and administrative expenses include back office expenses such as executive and support staff costs as well as professional fees
for accounting, legal and other services associated with our Latin America operations. The year ended December 31, 2010 reflect the benefits
of our 2009 and 2010 cost-cutting measures achieved mostly through reductions in salaries, office expenses and office-related expenses,
including the closure of four offices in Latin America. We are benefitting from the efficiencies resulting from the optimization of our back-
office infrastructure, such as the combination of support functions, and the realization of savings from cost control programs, such as the
limitation of travel expenses, implemented over the last several quarters.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we reviewed the carrying value of our goodwill and intangible assets in our Latin American
segment. As a result of the review, we recorded a $15 million impairment charge as of December 31, 2009, thereby reducing the carrying
value of our goodwill to $8.2 million and our intangible assets to $0 at December 31, 2009. Since we no longer have amortizable intangible
assets, we have not recorded amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Interest expense is the cost associated with our outstanding debt obligations in Latin America including lines of credit, loans from
financial institutions and capital leases. Interest expense, net of interest income, increased for the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared
to 2009, mainly from the interest expense recorded in connection with the $5.5 million advance received from Medidata under the September
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2010 strategic alliance arrangement. Net interest expense, excluding the Medidata advance, decreased as a result of lower average outstanding
debt obligations.

On March 16, 2010, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with Stanford International Holdings (Panama) S.A. (“SIHP”), whereby
we agreed to pay SIHP $462,500 in full and final settlement of a $2.5 million outstanding balance under a line of credit with Stanford Bank
(Panama) S.A. Accordingly, we recorded a gain on the extinguishment of debt in the amount of $2,037,500 during the year ended December
31, 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded an $814,127 change in value of the noncontrolling interest purchase price
obligation related to the remaining 30% interest in Desca which was previously owned by Alvarado. On July 17, 2009, we consummated a
purchase and sale transaction under a Securities Purchase Agreement effective as of July 1, 2009 with Alvarado pursuant to which, we
purchased the remaining 3,000,000 Common Units of Desca for an aggregate purchase price of $1.9 million.
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Income tax expense amounted to $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $0.1 million for the year ended
December 3,1 2009. On a consolidated basis, our effective income tax rate increased from 0.0% for the year ended December 31, 2009 to
7.6% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Other income and expense is comprised of non-operating items. Other expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is
mainly comprised of foreign currency exchange losses, primarily related to our Venezuelan operations.

Results of Operations — South Pacific

We offer mobile communications, Internet services and cable TV services (Moana TV) in American Samoa under the Bluesky
Communications brand. In addition, we also own 66 2/3% of the ASH Cable in partnership with the American Samoa Government, providing
high-speed networking connections between the territory of American Samoa and Hawaii. The products and services we offer in each of these
markets vary depending on the infrastructure, existing telecommunication and data communications systems and the needs of the local
economy. Our services revenue includes support provided to our clients by our systems engineers, IT support, and technical staff for new or
existing software, hardware, systems, or applications as well as ISP and data network infrastructure and telecommunications services. Sales of
related products include computer hardware, communications hardware and commercial off-the-shelf software sold through retail locations or
by our direct sales force.

During the third quarter of 2008, we began restructuring our South Pacific operations by consolidating our presence in American
Samoa, Fiji and Papua New Guinea. Further, in April 2009, we sold our operations in Papua New Guinea and, as a result, have classified the
results of operations for our Papua New Guinea operations as discontinued operations for all periods presented in our consolidated financial
statements. Additionally, in March 2010, we classified the results of operations for our Fiji operations as discontinued operations for all
periods presented in our consolidated financial statements. The reorganization of our South Pacific operations is expected to save us
approximately $1 million in operating costs on an annual basis. The information presented below does not include the results of our
discontinued operations.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2010 to the Year Ended December 31, 2009

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated consolidated statements of operations information for our operations in the
South Pacific.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 $ Change % Change

Revenue -

Product Sales $ 544,696 $ 533,252 $ 11,444 2.1%

Services 14,495,468 12,307,183 2,188,285 17.8%
Total Revenue 15,040,164 12,840,435 2,199,729 17.1%
Cost of Revenue

Product Sales 553,692 587,465 (33,773) (5.7%

Services 4,701,213 4,339,352 361,861 8.3%
Total Cost of Revenue 5,254,905 4,926,817 328,088 6.7%
Gross Profit 9,785,259 7,913,618 1,871,641 23.7%

65.1% 61.6% 3.4%

Expenses

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support 884,717 1,372,425 (487,708) (35.5)%

General and Administrative 3,187,501 2,983,879 203,622 6.8%

Depreciation and Amortization 3,740,021 2,840,377 899,644 31.7%

Amortization — Intangible Assets 335,820 952,921 (617,101) (64.8)%
Total Expenses 8,148,059 8,149,602 (1,543) (0.0)%
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Operating Income (Loss) 1,637,200 (235,984) 1,873,184 (793.8)%

Interest (Expense) Income, Net (1,374,439) (979,668) (394,771) 40.3%

Other Income (Expense) (242,949) 426,493 (669,442) (157.0)%

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit (485,603) 182,030 (667,633) (366.8)%

Net Income (Loss) $ (465,791) $ (607,129) $ 141,338 (23.3)%
Product Sales

Revenues from product sales during the year ended December 31, 2010 increased from the same period in 2009 primarily as a result of
our marketing efforts to launch promotions aimed at incentivizing customers to purchase handsets and personal computers. We focused our
efforts in controlling our discounts so as to increase our net revenues, while providing incentives to customers for purchasing our products.
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Services

Revenue from the provision of professional services for the year ended December 31, 2010 increased as compared with the same period
in 2009 primarily as a result of the provision of communication services through our cable television operations, as well as revenues generated
from our undersea cable operations, both of which began generating revenues during the second quarter of 2009. Additionally, service revenue
increased as a result of securing and activating additional fiber capacity for our existing customers and new broadband and fiber customers.

Services revenues were impacted as a result of a directive provided by the FCC to the Universal Service Administrative Company
(“USAC”) in August 2010, whereby there is a potential assessment against AST stemming from its participation in the federal Universal
Service Fund (“USF”). This directive provided notice to all program participants including AST that prior period adjustments would be made
to previously-received USF high-cost support from the USF which could result in retroactive reductions in support already received. In
February 2011, another directive was issued indicating that these prior adjustments would be implemented in March 2011. While the exact
amount of these retroactive reductions in support have not been announced by the USAC, we have estimated the amount of AST’s obligation
to be approximately $1.1 million.

Our service gross margin increased from 65% for the year ended December 31, 2009 to 68% for the year ended December 31, 2010.
The increase is primarily attributable to the higher margin sales related to the communication services provided by our internet broadband
services provided by our data operations and undersea cable operations. The increase in our service margin was offset by our cable television
service offerings, which carry a lower overall margin than some of our other services.

Expenses

Sales, marketing and customer support expenses were lower for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the same period in
2009. This decrease resulted primarily from the costs associated in 2009 with several marketing promotions and campaigns as well as
community service programs launched to commemorate AST Telecom’s 10-year presence in American Samoa.

General and administrative expenses were higher for the year ended December 31, 2010 than for the same period in 2009. The increase
is mainly due to (a) back office expenses, such as executive and support staff costs, incurred with our cable television operations and undersea
cable operations, both of which did not have substantial operations until the second half of 2009and (b) legal, professional and management
fees incurred for our operations.

Expenses related to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2010 were higher than for the
same period in 2009 mainly due to the installation of network equipment to support the undersea cable operations and cable television
operations resulting from the roll out of new service offerings.

Expenses related to the amortization of intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased from the same period in 2009
primarily due to the termination of the amortization period of certain intangible assets acquired in connection with acquisitions made in 2006.

Interest expense, net of interest income, for the year ended December 31, 2010 increased as compared to the same period in 2009 as a
result of the $16.7 million Term Loan Agreement entered into on June 8, 2009 associated with the undersea cable operations.

Other expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2010 is mainly comprised of a portion of the USF retroactive reductions related to
prior years described above, offset by the noncontrolling interest on the American Samoan Hawaii Cable segment of our operations,
representing the 33.33% ownership of the American Samoa Government. Other income, net for the year ended December 31, 2009 is mainly
comprised of the noncontrolling interest on the American Samoan Hawaii Cable segment of our operations.
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Results of Operations — Corporate and Discontinued Operations
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2010 to the Year Ended December 31, 2009

Our corporate headquarters primarily performs administrative services, and as such, does not generate revenue. The discontinued
operations pertain predominantly to our Papua New Guinea and Fiji operations, as discussed below.
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, consolidated statements of operations information for our corporate office and
our discontinued operations.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 $ Change % Change

Expenses

General and Administrative $ 7416278 § 11452837 $§ (4,036,559) (35.2)%

Trasnaction Related Expenses 1,033,621 — 1,033,621 100.0%

Depreciation and Amortization 136,373 80,353 56,020 69.7%
Total Expenses 8,586,272 11,533,190 (2,946,918) (25.6)%
Operating Income (Loss) (8,586,272) (11,533,190) 2,946,918 (25.6)%
Interest (Expense) Income, Net (451,697) 5,511 (457,208) (8296.2)%
Other Income (Expense) 128,447 (321,857) 450,304 (139.9)%
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 2,414,819 (12,005,469) 14,420,288 (120.1)%
Net Income (Loss) $ (6,494,703) $§ (23,855,005) $ 17,360,302 (72.8)%

General and administrative expenses are predominantly corporate overhead expenses including executive costs and fees for professional
services. The decrease for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the same period in 2009 was primarily the result of lower legal
and other professional fees, as well as lower compensation costs. Legal and professional fees during the year ended December 31, 2009
include significant costs incurred related to the handling of various matters associated with our previous principal shareholder and lender that
was placed into receivership in 2009, including the modification of our Bridge Loan Agreement, restricted access to credit facilities with our
banks in Latin America, credit holds from vendors and overall perception confusion regarding our relationship with SIBL. In addition, 2009
includes legal and professional fees incurred related to an unsuccessful potential acquisition, and other special non-recurring projects. Non-
cash share-based compensation expense amounted to $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $1.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in compensation costs for the year ended December 31, 2010 is primarily attributable to a
reduction in corporate headcount and lower salary and salary related expenses.

Transaction related expenses in 2010 mainly represent legal, professional, travel and other expenses incurred in connection with our
transactions with Amper. The expenses are comprised of due diligence fees, contract negotiations and review, in-country visits, and investor
presentations.

Interest expense, net, is a factor of our average outstanding debt and/or excess cash position during the period. Net interest expense for
the year ended December 31, 2010 is primarily due to the interest expense incurred in connection with the $5.0 million Exclusivity Advance
from Amper. For the year ended December 31, 2009, our $12 million outstanding debt under the Bridge Loan Agreement with SIBL, which
incurred interest at 6%, was converted into shares of our Series B Preferred Stock on February 6, 2009. The expense incurred on this
obligation was offset by interest earned on short-term investments.

Other expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 is mainly comprised of expense attributable to noncontrolling interest related to
our operations in Papua New Guinea. As a result of the sale of these operations in April 2009, we no longer have income or expense
attributable to noncontrolling interest for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The income (loss) from discontinued operations pertains primarily to our operations in Papua New Guinea, which were sold in April
2009, and our operations in Fiji. In April 2009, we sold our operations in Papua New Guinea and, as a result, have classified the results of
operations for our Papua New Guinea operations as discontinued operations for all periods presented in our consolidated financial statements.
As a result of the sale, we re-measured the value of the net assets to be sold at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less selling costs.
We determined that the sale price of $5.6 million in cash, less selling costs of $22,427, was the best indicator of the fair value of the assets to
be sold. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge related to the goodwill and intangible assets of $10.8 million during the year ended
December 31, 2009 and a loss upon the closing of the sale, including the results of operations for the 17 day period ending April 17, 2009, of
$199,000. The write off of the goodwill and the loss resulted in a net loss on the sale of our Papua New Guinea operations $11.0 million,
which is included in discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2009.
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In December 2009, our Board of Directors approved management’s plan to dispose of our operations in Fiji. We began to actively
market and locate a buyer for our operations in Fiji during the quarter ended March 31, 2010. On June 24, 2010, we entered into a settlement
agreement with Kelton and Datec, as plaintiffs, among others, pursuant to which 150,000 shares of our common stock have been transferred to
us in exchange for our interests in Datec Fiji and Datec Australia. As a result of the settlement and resolution of the material closing
conditions, we re-measured the value of the net liabilities transferred at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value. We determined that the
fair value of the 150,000 shares of our common stock returned to us was deminimus. Accordingly, we recorded a gain in discontinued
operations, which includes the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, of $2.4 million. That gain includes approximately
$3.6 million from the recovery of accumulated translation gains previously reflected as a component of other comprehensive income.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

Our principal sources of liquidity are the Exclusivity Advance from Amper in the amount of $5 million described below as well as the
strategic alliance arrangement with Medidata in the amount of $5.5 million.

Overall Cash Inflows and Outflows

We incurred an $11.7 million loss from continuing operations and used $13.5 million of cash in continuing operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, we have a working capital deficit of $9.2 million.

Operating Activities. We used $13.5 million to fund operations during the year ended December 31, 2010. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, our net loss amounted to $19.6 million, which included net non-cash expenses of $6.9 million. Changes in operating
assets and liabilities used $0.8 million in cash.

Investing Activities. We paid $2.4 million for investments in capital assets and received $1.0 million from the release of restricted cash
during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Financing Activities. We received $12.9 million in cash from financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2010. During the
year ended December 31, 2010, we received $14.2 million in net proceeds from lines of credit and long-term debt. We paid an aggregate of
$1.1 million in cash for our capital leases and paid dividends of $210,000 to noncontrolling interests during the year ended December 31,
2010.

On June 8, 2009, we entered into a Term Loan Agreement in the amount of $16,672,000 with ANZ, whereby the proceeds of the term
loan were used to fund the construction, installation and delivery to customers of a fully operational underwater fiber optic cable linking
America Samoa and Samoa to Hawaii and providing improved long distance telecommunication and data services.

On May 24, 2010 we entered into a Strategic Alliance Agreement with Amper pursuant to which we established an alliance aimed at
expanding each other’s access to the Latin American and Caribbean markets and providing each other the opportunity to offer our combined
portfolio of products, services, technology solutions and technical resources throughout the region. In consideration for the certain exclusivity
covenants, Amper advanced to us the Exclusivity Advance in the amount of $5 million. Our repayment obligations with respect to the
Exclusivity Advance are secured by certain guarantees, security agreements and pledges of interests in favor of Amper (collectively, the
“Security Documents”).

On December 9, 2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Strategic Alliance Agreement (the “SAA Amendment”). Pursuant to the
SAA Amendment, which is effective as of December 2, 2010, the exclusive dealings covenant set forth in the Strategic Alliance Agreement
was extended until April 30, 2011. In connection with the extension of the exclusivity period, the repayment date for the Exclusivity Advance
was also modified. Pursuant to the SAA Amendment, the Exclusivity Advance is now payable on the earlier of:

. April 30, 2011

the date that future payments are received by Descaserv Ecuador, S.A., an entity wholly owned by a subsidiary of Desca
Holdings (“Descaserv”), under a certain customer contract;

. the termination of the Contribution Agreement between Amper and eLandia dated July 29, 2010, as amended;
. December 31, 2010 unless the Security Documents are amended consistent with the SAA Amendment provisions; and

on February 1, 2011 if, before that date, the parties have not entered into a mutually agreeable amendment to the Contribution
Agreement that affords Amper the option, solely in the event that the FCC consents necessary to complete the transactions
under the Contribution Agreement cannot be obtained prior to February 1, 2011, to acquire Desca Holdings and Elandia/CTT
Holdings, LP (“CTT Holdings”) in a mutually agreeable alternative transaction.

In September 2010, we entered into an agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced to us $5.5 million (unrelated to
the Exclusivity Advance described above), secured by the proceeds of various customer contracts held by Desca. The advance is due to be
repaid in April 2011 and includes approximately $1.8 million of interest expense.

In April 2011, we entered into a credit agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced to us $6.0 million. The advance
is due to be repaid in December 2011 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 3%.
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The successful management of our working capital needs is a key driver of our growth and cash flow generation of our operations in
Latin America. One measurement we use to monitor working capital is days sales outstanding (“DSO”), which measures the number of days
we take to collect revenue after a sale is made. Our December 31, 2010 consolidated DSO was 142 days, compared with 128 days at
December 31, 2009. Our DSO as of December 31, 2009 is on a pro forma basis to give effect to the classification of Datec PNG and Fiji as
discontinued operations. The fluctuation in our DSO is mainly the result of lower sales experienced in our Latin American segment, in
particular Venezuela, combined with lower average accounts receivable.

Since 2003, Venezuela has imposed currency controls and created the CADIVI process with the task of establishing detailed rules and
regulations and generally administering the exchange control regime. These controls fix the exchange rate between the Bolivar Fuerte and the
U.S. Dollar, and have had the effect of restricting the ability to exchange Bolivar Fuertes for U.S. Dollars and vice versa. The near-term effect
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has been to restrict our ability to repatriate funds from Venezuela in order to meet our cash requirements. To the extent that we moved money
in or out of Venezuela, either for cash flow purposes or working capital needs, we were subject to exchange gains or losses because Venezuela
is operating on a fixed exchange rate, whereas the actual market is operating on a variable exchange rate.

In particular, the currency controls in Venezuela have restricted our ability to make payments to vendors in U.S. Dollars, causing us to
borrow money to meet these obligations and to be subject to credit holds, and therefore delaying the delivery of customer orders which, in
turn, has delayed or caused the loss of sales.

In order to address and mitigate these issues, we either (i) enter into short-term financing arrangements with our vendors which extends
the date when payment is due, (ii) obtain short-term financing from local banks in country, or (iii) we may deploy working capital from
eLandia. Additionally, we continue to successfully decrease our working capital debt and related interest expense in Latin America and have
recently been able to refinance certain obligations with long-term debt, which historically was not possible.

We continue to make appropriate applications through the Venezuelan government and CADIVI for approval to obtain U.S. Dollars at
the official exchange rate. However, we have experienced difficulties in obtaining such approvals on a timely basis and we have not been
given any assurances as to when the approval process would be completed. Due to these delays, we have used available local currency paid by
customers to reduce our debt obligations denominated in that local currency. As a result, when approvals from CADIVI have been obtained
we have had to promptly acquire Bolivar Fuertes using a legal parallel exchange process in order to obtain U.S. Dollars at the official
exchange rate which can then be repatriated and used to meet our working capital needs. If previously obtained approvals do not ultimately
result in currency conversions at the official exchange rate or if there is a delay in approvals being honored by CADIVI, we would be required
to obtain U.S. Dollars at a substantially less favorable exchange rate which would negatively impact our financial results and financial
position. From time to time, we may have had to recognize charges to operating income in connection with the exchange of Bolivar Fuertes to
U.S. Dollars at rates which were unfavorable to the official exchange rate. During the fourth quarter of 2009 and the first quarter of 2010, we
received a large amount of approvals from CADIVI which we used to reduce the risk on our payables and debt obligations.

At December 31, 2009, we determined that the parallel rate was the appropriate rate to use for the remeasurement of our Venezuelan
financial statements for the purposes of consolidation based on the facts and circumstances of our business. In May 2010, the Venezuela
government announced that trading in the historical parallel market would be suspended. They also announced that the BCV would establish
an alternative to the historical parallel market. This alternative exchange market contained a number of trading restrictions. The specifics of
the BCV alternative exchange option include a limitation of $350,000 U.S. Dollars per month for any particular entity, provided that no
CADIVI approvals have been received over the prior 90 days. This is a substantial restriction in the amount of U.S. Dollars available for the
payment of newly imported product, outside of the CADIVI approval process, as compared to the suspended parallel market. We continue to
monitor this situation including the impact such restrictions may have on our future business operations. At this time, we are unable to predict
with any degree of certainty how the recent changes as well as future developments within Venezuela will affect our Venezuela operations, if
at all.

We believe that we have sufficient working capital on a consolidated basis in order to satisfy any subsidiary needs to the extent that such
fundings are in our best interest as a whole. However, to the extent that we must rely on short-term financing from vendors or local banks,
these financing arrangements may involve high interest rates or payment terms which could be unfavorable to us.

While we have begun to see the beginnings of economic stability and recovery in the markets we currently serve, the recent global
economic crisis has caused a general tightening in the credit markets, lower levels of liquidity, increases in the rates of default and bankruptcy,
and extreme volatility in credit, equity and fixed income markets. These conditions not only limit our access to capital, but also make it
difficult for our customers, our vendors and us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities, and could cause U.S. and foreign
businesses to slow spending on our products and services, which would delay and lengthen sales cycles. Furthermore, during challenging
economic times our customers may face issues including:

« the inability to obtain credit to finance purchases of our products;
¢ customer insolvencies;
* decreased customer confidence to make purchasing decisions;
* decreased customer demand; and
* decreased customer ability to pay their trade obligations.
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In addition, the recent economic crisis could adversely impact our suppliers’ ability to provide us with materials and components, either
of which may negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our anticipated growth and expansion in Latin America required significant use of our working capital, as well as the use of vendor
financings and other forms of borrowings. Along with these investments, we incurred significant expenses to fund our anticipated growth. Our
customer activity is influenced by seasonal effects related to budget cycles and other factors specific to our target customer base. As such,
revenues are generally higher in the fourth quarter. As a result of the anticipated growth, we will need access and availability to our existing
vendor financings and credit facilities and/or will need to obtain additional financing and capital resources. We have also begun utilizing our
cash resources to reduce our short-term debt and purchase additional inventory.
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We have a working capital deficit of $9.2 million at December 31, 2010. In order to improve our working capital position and
effectively align our cash flow sources and uses during 2011, we have:

a. obtained a $6.0 million advance from Medidata, payable in December 2011, bearing an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3%;

refinanced approximately $8.0 million of existing payables with a major vendor to a long-term payment structure in April 2011;
and

begun the process of centralizing our cash flow management process through the use of a regional facility with one bank across
the majority of our subsidiaries and countries. This facility is expected to generate significant cash savings due to the low
interest rates being offered; reduce and/or eliminate rate exchange control issues and improve the timing of payments to
vendors.

Additionally, with the acquisition of Medidata, the $5.5 million advance from the September 2010 strategic alliance agreement and the
$6.0 million advance under the April 2011 credit agreement, as well as the related accrued interest thereon, will be eliminated in
consolidation. Also in connection with the acquisition, the $5 million Exclusivity Advance due to Amper will be offset by the related
receivable due from Amper for the same amount recorded by Medidata.

The result of the above transactions is expected to improve our consolidated working capital going forward by approximately $25
million. However, there can be no assurance that we will not be required to seek additional funding sources in the future or effectuate plans to
conserve liquidity in the event additional sources of funds are needed.

Our capital expenditures, together with ongoing operating expenses and obligations to service our debts, have decreased our available
cash balances. We believe that our current level of working capital will be sufficient to sustain our current operations and service our debt
obligations through at least January 1, 2012. However, there can be no assurance that the plans and actions proposed by management will be
successful or that unforeseen circumstances will not require us to seek additional funding sources in the future or effectuate plans to conserve
liquidity in the event additional sources of funds are needed or may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all. Although the overall
economy is showing signs of recovery, in particular in the markets we serve, the current macro-economic conditions create risk and our ability
to measure and react to these issues, as well as any issues that may arise as a result of the SIBL matter, will ultimately factor into our future
success and ability to meet our business objectives and fulfill our business plan. In addition, if we are not able to sell our assets or our sources
of revenue do not generate sufficient capital to fund operations, we will need to identify other sources of capital and/or we may be required to
modify our business plan. Our inability to obtain needed debt and/or equity financing when needed or to generate sufficient cash from
operations may require us to scale back our business plan and limit our planned growth and expansion activities, abandon projects and/or
curtail capital expenditures. At this time, we cannot provide any assurance that other sources of capital will be available.

Our cash position has been declining since January 1, 2009. In order to reverse this trend, we are enforcing our collection terms more
stringently than in the past and are also requiring customer advances and/or earlier payment terms for certain customers in certain markets.
Additionally, in Venezuela, due to the economic challenges that exist in that marketplace, we have not had the liquidity and/or ability to pay
down our payables on a timelier basis. As a result, we have been experiencing credit holds from our principal vendor in Venezuela, which has
limited our ability to expand and/or operate our business. We are actively seeking additional working capital that will allow us to book sales
irrespective of credit limitations that may be imposed by our vendors. If we cannot continue to strengthen our overall financial position, we
may experience additional restrictions on our vendor credit. Such events could have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and
financial condition.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We lease space for operations; sales, marketing and customer support; and general and administrative purposes as well as machinery,
vehicles, and network equipment under lease agreements that expire at various dates through December 2029. Certain leases have renewal
options at reduced rates and provisions requiring us to pay maintenance, property taxes and insurance. Generally, all rental payments are
fixed. Management has determined that certain leases expiring within the next year will be renewed at substantially similar terms as those
currently in effect. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the aggregate rent expense for all operating leases was $4.2 million and
$4.0 million, respectively. Future minimum commitments on the above agreements are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 $ 3,452,046
2012 2,256,838
2013 2,217,990
2014 2,243,775
2015 1,583,311
Thereafter 2,034,230

$ 13,788,190

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices
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We prepared the consolidated financial statements and related financial data presented herein in accordance with U.S. GAAP, which
require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars. A portion of our business is conducted in
countries in which inflation can have a material effect on the relative purchasing power of money over time. In addition, changes in foreign
exchange rates relative to the U.S. Dollar can affect the value of non-U.S. Dollar net assets, revenues and expenses. As the majority of our
revenue and cost of revenue is conducted in U.S. Dollar denominations (or the then current foreign currency equivalent), we currently do not
employ any strategies designed to reduce the impact of these fluctuations on our financial performance. The primary impact of inflation on our
consolidated results of operations is increased sales, marketing and customer support costs as well as increased general and administrative
costs. We do not believe this impact is material.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required for smaller reporting companies.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 35
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009 36
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yvears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 37
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31. 2010 and 2009 38
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the vears ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 39
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 41

34
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors and Shareholders
of eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each
of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,2010. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of eLandia
International Inc. and Subsidiaries, as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years
in the two-year period ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As more fully described in Notes 15 and 24 of the consolidated financial statements, on March 31, 2011, the Company executed and delivered
certain closing documents relating to a transaction with Amper, S.A. After the transaction, Amper S.A. will own approximately 85% of the
issued and outstanding shares in the Company. The Company expects the transaction to be finalized in May 2011.
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/s/ Morrison, Brown, Argiz & Farra, LLC
Morrison, Brown, Argiz & Farra LLC
Miami, Florida

April 15, 2011
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eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 10,926,659  $ 17,865,681
Restricted Cash 851,654 1,875,220
Accounts Receivable, Net 63,622,336 53,189,137
Inventories, Net 8,330,218 14,579,767
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 8,076,018 6,083,723
Deposits with Suppliers and Subcontractors 9,943,463 6,709,436
VAT Receivable, Net 3,259,350 4,263,590
Assets Held for Sale — 1,739,968
Total Current Assets 105,009,698 106,306,522
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 32,020,861 36,014,831
Telecommunications Licenses and Agreements 858,743 858,743
Customer Lists, Net 941,445 1,203,317
Contract Rights, Net 4,522 78,470
Goodwill 11,085,660 10,870,959
Assets Held for Sale - Long-Term — 363,917
Other Assets 3,208,420 4,000,734
TOTAL ASSETS $ 153,129,349  §$ 159,697,493
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 47,582,308 $ 56,459,692
Accrued Expenses 17,641,158 12,446,838
Lines of Credit 6,052,110 11,451,140
Long-Term Debt - Current Portion 15,343,251 4,710,072
Capital Lease Obligations - Current Portion 1,514,522 1,256,226
Customer Deposits 10,712,176 11,562,218
Deferred Revenue 10,107,877 3,567,642
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations 758,091 1,738,314
Other Current Liabilities 4,459,482 950,040
Total Current Liabilities 114,170,975 104,142,182
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 28,755,546 21,746,594
Capital Lease Obligations, Net of Current Portion 1,606,173 2,944,489
Deferred Revenue, Net of Current Portion 1,776,823 —
Liabilities of Discontinued Operations 500,000 1,000,000
Other Long-Term Liabilities 2,635,613 1,090,732
Total Long-Term Liabilities 35,274,155 26,781,815
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Total Liabilities

Commitments and Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity
eLandia International Inc. Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity
Preferred Stock, $0.00001 Par Value; 35,000,000 Shares Authorized; 4,118,263
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, Respectively
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.00001 Par Value; 6,500,000 Shares
Authorized; -0- Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
Respectively
Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.00001 Par Value; 14,074,074 Shares
Authorized; 4,118,263 Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2010 and
2009, Respectively. Liquidation preference of $27,798,275 at December 31, 2010
and 2009, Respectively
Common Stock, $0.00001 par value; 200,000,000 Shares Authorized; 25,240,220
and 27,630,220 Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
Respectively
Additional Paid-In Capital
Accumulated Deficit
Accumulated Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Total eLandia International Inc. Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity

Noncontrolling Interests

Total Stockholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $

149,445,130 130,923,997
16,679,962 16,679,962
251 275
172,204,748 171,278,627
(189,693,771) (170,321,386)
(3,133,652) 3,108,194
(3,942,462) 20,745,672
7,626,681 8,027,824
3,684,219 28,773,496
153,129,349 159,697,493

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

REVENUE
Product Sales
Services
Total Revenue

COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of Revenue — Product Sales
Cost of Revenue — Services
Sales, Marketing and Customer Support
General and Administrative
Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Transaction Related Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization
Amortization — Intangible Assets

Total Operating Expenses
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
OTHER (EXPENSE) INCOME

Interest Expense and Other Financing Costs

Interest Income

Other Expense

Gain on Extinguishment of Debt

Change in Value of Noncontrolling Interest Purchase Price Obligation
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009
82,371,528 111,172,471
68,550,188 62,388,831

150,921,716 173,561,302
66,265,309 88,638,597
39,216,985 36,796,511
20,560,004 27,677,690
28,838,322 40,237,072

— 15,000,000
1,033,621 —
6,402,308 5,583,365

335,820 4,434,467

162,652,369 218,367,702

(11,730,653) (44,806,400)
(7,623,348) (5,917,128)

116,529 558,570
(1,726,226) (1,763,931)
2,037,500 —

— 814,127
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Foreign Exchange Loss

(1,518,700)

(6,765,887)

Total Other (Expense) Income

(8,714,245)

(13,074,249)

LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)
BENEFIT

(20,444,898)

(57,880,649)

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit (1,533,690) 248,417
L(])si?vl;ll{?;)]{\l CONTINUING OPERATIONS, NET OF INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) (21.978.588) (57.632.232)
INCOME (LOSS) FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, NET OF INCOME TAX

(EXPENSE) BENEFIT 2,414,819 (12,005,469)
NET LOSS $ (19,563,769) (69,637,701)

Less: Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests 191,384 878,796

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC. $ (19,372,385) (68,758,905)

AMOUNTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC.
Loss from Continuing Operations $
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC. $

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ELANDIA
INTERNATIONAL INC., BASIC AND DILUTED

Continuing Operations $
Discontinued Operations

Net Loss per Common Share $

Weighted Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding, Basic and Diluted

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TAX
Net Loss $
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment

Comprehensive Loss
Comprehensive Loss Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest

(21,787,204) (56,753,436)
2,414,819 (12,005,469)
(19,372,385) (68,758,905)
(0.80) (2.06)

0.09 (0.44)

(0.71) (2.50)
27,140,098 27,502,286
(19,563,769) (69,637,701)
(6,241,846) (352,439)
(25,805,615) (69,990,140)
191,384 878,796

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL

INC. y

(25,614,231)

(69,111,344)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Accumulated

Preferred Stock - Series A Preferred Stock - Series B Common Stock $0.00001 Par Additional A lated Other Total
$0.00001 Par Value $0.00001 Par Value Value Paid-In ceumulate Comprehensive controlling Stockholders'
Income
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Equity
BALANCES —
Y — s — 2340485 $ 15785517 40306099 $ 402 8 151,963,772 S (101,562481) $ 3460633 S 5146637 § 74,794,480
s
Shares Received and
Cancelled from — — — — (375,000) (C) (449,996) — — — (450,000)
Litigation Settlement
Conversion of
Promissory Note -
Related Party to — — 1,777,778 894,445 (16,148,612) (162) 11,078,506 — — — 11,972,789
Series B Preferred
Stock
Issuance of Restricted
Common Stock to — — — — 562,500 6 (6) — — — —
Executive
Issuance of Common o o o o 1,900 o 3,134 o o o 3,134
Stock
Purchase of Subsidiary
Shares by — — — — — — — — — 6,000,000 6,000,000

Noncontrolling
Interest
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Sale of Subsidiary
Shares to
Noncontrolling
Interest

Effect of Change in
Warrant Liability — — — — — — (269,629)
Classification

Settlement of
Noncontrolling
Interest Purchase
Price Obligation

— — 6,134,711

Issuance of Common
Stock in Connection
with Purchase of — — — — 2,500,000 25 849,975
Remaining 30
Interest in Desca%
Issuance of Common
Stock in Settlement o o o o 350,000 4 104,996
of CTT Purchase
Price

Issuance of Common
Stock in Settlement
of Put/Call
Agreement and — — — — 433,333 4 146,246
Issuance of
Promissory Note -
Related Party
Foreign Currency
Translation = — - _ _ . o
Adjustment

Share-based ) 1,716,918
Compensation

Net Loss - 7 - - 7 - -

(68,758,905)

— (2,240,017) (2,240,017)

(352,439)

— (269,629)

= 6,134,711

— 850,000

— 105,000

— 146,250

— (352,439)

— 1,716,918

(878,796)  (69,637,701)

BALANCES — December
31,2009
Issuance of Common
Stock for Consulting — — = = 100,000 1 29,999
Services

— 8 — 4118263 'S 16,679,962 27,630,220

£

275 $ 171,278,627

Issuance of Common
Stock in Connection
with Purchase of — — — — 10,000 — 5,500
Noncontrolling
Interest

Dividends Paid to
Noncontrolling — = e = = — —
Interests

Return and Cancellation

of Sharés Pursuant to _ . — — (2,500,000) (25) (273,999)
Separation
Agreement

Foreign Currency
Translation - - - 7 - o -
Adjustment

Share-based ) 1,164,621
Compensation

Net Loss - - - - - - -

$ (170,321,386)

(19,372,385)

$ 3,108,194 $

(6,241,846)

8,027,824 $ 28,773,496

= 30,000

— 5,500

(209,759) (209,759)

— (274,024)

= (6,241,846)

— 1,164,621

(191,384)  (19,563,769)

BALANCES — December

— — 4,118,263 16,679,962 25,240,220
31,2010 S ; §

o

251 $ 172,204,748 $ (189,693,771) § (3,133,652) $ 7,626,681 § 3,684,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash and Cash Equivalents Used in Operating
Activities:
(Income) Loss from Discontinued Operations
Provision for Doubtful Accounts
Provision (Benefit) for Non-Collectible VAT Receivable
Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill
Share-Based Compensation
Depreciation and Amortization
Amortization — Intangible Assets
Amortization of Deferred Financing Costs and Discount on Long-Term Debt
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For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009
$  (19,563,769) $  (69,637,701)
(2,414,819) 12,005,469
1,912,665 316,204
228,094 (666,772)

— 15,000,000

1,164,621 1,716,918
6,402,308 5,583,365
335,820 4,434,467

114,071 81,803
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Issuance of Common Stock for Marketing Services
Change in Value of Warrant
Change in Value of Noncontrolling Interest Purchase Price Obligation
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt
Foreign Currency (Gain) Loss
Loss on Swap
Deferred Income Taxes
Accrued Interest on Long-Term Debt
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Deposits with Suppliers and Subcontractors
VAT Receivable
Other Assets
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses
Customer Deposits
Deferred Revenue
Other Liabilities
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash Paid for Acquisitions
Proceeds from the Sale of Subsidiary
Settlement of CTT Purchase Price
Purchases of Property and Equipment
Redemptions of Certificates of Deposits
Restricted Cash
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

3,134

— (269,629)
— (814,127)
(2,037,500) —
1,518,700 6,765,887
(362,491) (343,784)
26,153 13,644
(12,345,864) 15,217,215
6,249,549 (1,085,175)
(2,231,155) 1,023,268
(3,234,027) (4,484,339)
776,146 753,920
748,422 1,762,808
(8,877,384) (9,615,523)
5,192,520 619,103
(850,042) 5,989,119
8,317,058 378,103
5,416,814 49,410
6,049,659 54,434,488
(13,514,110) (15,203,213)
— (3,564,534)
— 5,587,573
— 600,000
(2,408,338) (15,228,176)
— 8,157,104
1,023,566 4,402,154
(1,384,772) (45,879)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments on Lines of Credit, Net
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt, Net
Principal Payments on Capital Leases
Payment for Acquisition of Noncontrolling Interest
Transaction Costs Paid — Conversion of Promissory Note
Proceeds from Noncontrolling Interest Subscription Receivable
Payment to Noncontrolling Interest for Settlement of Purchase Price Obligation
Dividends Paid to Noncontrolling Interest
Payment for Settlement of Put/Call Agreement
Financing Costs Paid — Long-Term Debt

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
(3,361,530) (15,908,181)
17,540,635 15,939,982
(1,080,020) (1,252,135)

(34,200) —
— (226,829)

— 6,000,000

— (500,000)
(209,759) —
— (259,998)

— (307,235)
12,855,126 3,485,604
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CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Operating Cash Flows 3,039,671 863,978
Investing Cash Flows — (123,118)
Financing Cash Flows (1,190) (1,137,822)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 3,038,481 (396,962)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,933,747) (7,278,127)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (6,939,022) (19,438,577)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS— Beginning 17,865,681 37,304,258
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS— Ending $ 10,926,659 $ 17,865,681
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Paid During the Periods For:
Interest $ 5,048,635 $ 3,373,133
Taxes $ 3,214,239  $ 3,876,711
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITES:
Issuance of Common Stock for Consulting Services $ 30,000 § —
Partial Settlement of Long-Term Debt - Related Party $ 161,860 $ =
Cancellation of Shares in Connection with Separation Agreement $ 274,024 § —
Conversion of Convertible Promissory Notes - Related Party to Series B Convertible $ g 12,000,000
Preferred Stock
Accrued Interest Contributed to Capital Upon Conversion of Promissory Note - Related $ g 199,618
Party
Cancellation of Common Stock Upon Conversion of Promissory Note - Related Party $ — § 162
Issuance of Restricted Stock $ — S 6
Acquisition of Equipment with Issuance of Capital Leases $ — S 3,524,427
Issuance of Common Stock in Connection with Settlement of CTT Purchase Price $ — § 105,000
Issuance of Promissory Note - Related Party in Connection with Settlement of Put/Call $ g 2,340,000
Agreement
Value of Common Stock Issued in Connection with Promissory Note $ — $ 146,250
Issuance of Prgmissory Note - Relateq Party i.n Cpnnection with Settlement of $ g 500,000
Noncontrolling Interest Purchase Price Obligation
Settlement of Noncontrolling Interest Purchase Price Obligation $ — 3 6,134,711
Issuance of Common Stock in Connection with Purchase of 30% Interest in Desca $ — § 850,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 - Organization and Business

LR >

eLandia International Inc. (“eLandia,” “Company,” “we,” “us,” and/or “our”), through its subsidiaries, sells information and
communications technology (“ICT”) products and provides professional IT services including technology solutions, business practice
solutions and advanced services, and offers telecommunications products and services in emerging markets, including Latin America
and the South Pacific. The products and services we offer in each of these markets vary depending on the infrastructure, existing
telecommunication and data communications systems and the needs of the local economy.

NOTE 2 - Liquidity, Financial Condition and Management’s Plans

We incurred a $11.7 million loss from continuing operations and used $13.5 million of cash in continuing operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, we have a $189.7 million accumulated deficit and a working capital deficit of $9.2
million.
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Our net loss includes an aggregate of $6.9 million of non-cash charges principally consisting of $6.9 million of depreciation and
amortization, $1.9 million in provisions for doubtful accounts, $1.2 million of share-based compensation and $1.5 million for foreign
currency loss. Offsetting these charges is $2.4 million of income from discontinued operations and $2.0 million from the gain on
extinguishment of debt.

Our sources of funds include cash from external financing arrangements, including a term loan in the amount of $16.7 million and a
revolving line of credit facility of up to $3 million from ANZ Finance American Samoa, Inc., various lines of credit with multiple local
banks in South and Central America and financing of trade payables provided by our principal supplier.

As more fully described in Note 14, on May 24, 2010, eLandia and our wholly-owned subsidiary, eLandia/Desca Holdings, LL.C
(“Desca”), entered into a Strategic Alliance Agreement (the “Strategic Alliance Agreement”) with Amper, S.A. (“Amper”). Pursuant to
the Strategic Alliance Agreement, the parties established an alliance aimed at expanding each party’s access to the Caribbean and Latin
American markets and providing the parties the opportunity to offer their combined portfolio of products, services, technology solutions
and technical resources throughout the region. In consideration for certain exclusivity covenants, Amper advanced to us the sum of $5
million (the “Exclusivity Advance”). The Exclusivity Advance is repayable in accordance with the terms of the Strategic Alliance
Agreement, as amended. The amounts outstanding under the Exclusivity Advance accrue interest at 12% per annum until repaid to
Amper.

On July 29, 2010, we entered into a Contribution Agreement with Amper pursuant to which Amper will acquire 85% of our issued and
outstanding shares of common stock in exchange for the contribution to eLandia by Amper of approximately 79.7% of the outstanding
capital stock of Medidata Informatica, S.A. (“Medidata”). Medidata offers integrated communications solutions to telecommunications
operators, corporations, financial clients and governments in Brazil (see Note 15).

As more fully described in Note 24, on March 31, 2011, we conducted a closing in escrow under the Contribution Agreement, whereby
Amper has acquired 150,745,913 shares of our newly issued common stock in exchange for the contribution to eLandia of
approximately 79.7% of the outstanding capital stock of Medidata.

Also as more fully described in Note 24, on March 31, 2011, we consummated the closing under a Share Sale and Purchase Agreement
with The Government of the Independent State of Samoa pursuant to which, Bluesky SamoaTel Investments Limited (“BSI”), a
subsidiary of AST Telecom, LLC, acquired 75% of the issued and outstanding capital shares of SamoaTel Limited (“SamoaTel”) in
exchange for $11 million. We own approximately 78% of BSI and the remaining 22% is owned by other investors. SamoaTel is a
provider of telecommunications products and services in Samoa and offers a full range of services including fixed line, mobile, data and
calling card services for homes and businesses in Samoa.

Management believes that our current level of working capital at December 31, 2010 will be sufficient to sustain operations through at
least January 1, 2012. The acquisition of Medidata and SamoaTel are expected to provide us with a significant working capital surplus
in the future. However, there can be no assurance that the plans and actions proposed by management will be successful or that
unforeseen circumstances will not require us to seek additional funding sources in the future or effectuate plans to conserve liquidity. In
addition, there can be no assurance that in the event additional sources of funds are needed they will be available on acceptable terms, if
at all.

NOTE 3 - Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of eLandia and all of its” wholly-owned and majority owned subsidiaries. We
have classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented (i) the accounts of Datec PNG, which was sold on April 17, 2009,
(i1) the accounts of our operations in Fiji and (iii) certain eLandia predecessor companies that no longer conduct any operations. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
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eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
Reclassification

We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to the current year’s presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on
the financial position or results of operations reported as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Such estimates and
assumptions impact, among others, the following: the amount of uncollectible accounts receivable, the valuation of value added tax
(“VAT”) receivable, deferred taxes and related valuation allowances, the amount to be paid for the settlement of liabilities of
discontinued operations, accrued expenses, the amount allocated to contract rights, customer lists, trade names and goodwill in
connection with acquisitions, along with the estimated useful lives for amortizable intangible assets and property, plant and equipment,
warrants granted in connection with various financing transactions and share-based payment arrangements.
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Making estimates requires management to exercise significant judgment. It is at least reasonably possible that the estimate of the effect
on the consolidated financial statements of a condition, situation or set of circumstances that existed at the date of the consolidated
financial statements, which management considered in formulating its estimate could change in the near term due to one or more future
confirming events. Accordingly, the actual results could differ from our estimates.

Revenue Recognition

We generate revenue from product sales and services. The products and services that we offer in each of the geographic areas we serve
vary depending on the infrastructure, existing telecommunication systems and the needs of the region. All revenue is recognized net of
discounts, returns and allowances.

Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, and
collectability is probable. We enter into certain arrangements where we are obligated to deliver multiple products and/or services
(multiple elements). In these arrangements, we generally allocate the total revenue among the elements based on the sales price of each
element when sold separately (vendor specific objective evidence).

Revenues recognized in advance of amounts billable pursuant to contracts terms, based on work performed and/or services provided to
date, are recorded as unbilled receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. Unbilled receivables are billable upon
various events, including the attainment of performance milestones, delivery of equipment and/or services, or completion of the
contract.

Products
Revenue generated from the sale of products is recorded when the products are delivered.

Revenue from sales of technology products includes, among other things, personal computers, servers, routers, switching systems,
networking equipment and communications equipment. Revenue from sales of telecommunications products includes hardware and
other products supporting telecommunications services.

We are also a licensed reseller of various hardware and software products including products from Cisco Systems, Inc., Nortel
Networks, Nokia and Microsoft Corporation.

Revenue from software license sales is recognized once delivery has occurred, evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is fixed and
determined and collection of the fee is probable, provided there are no significant vendor obligations remaining. For multiple element
arrangements, where vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value is available for all elements, the contract value is
allocated to each element proportionately based upon relative VSOE of fair value and revenue is recognized separately for each element.
Where VSOE of fair value is available for all undelivered elements, the residual method is used to value the delivered elements. Where
VSOE of fair value is not available for all undeliverable elements all revenue for the arrangement is deferred until the earlier of the point
at which VSOE does exist or all elements of the arrangement have been delivered.

Information Technology Services

Professional IT services revenue includes professional consulting services pertaining to the planning, design, implementation, operation
and optimization of our technology and telecommunications solutions as well as implementation of customized solutions such as
application development, systems integration, training, maintenance and support. Revenue generated from professional consulting
services is generally recognized as the services are rendered.

Revenue generated from professional IT services under periodic contracts such as maintenance and support services is generally
recognized ratably over the term of the contract.
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eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
Telecommunications Services

Revenue generated from the provision of telecommunication services is recognized as the minutes we sell are used by our customers.
Revenues generated from providing access to and usage of our undersea cable and cable television services consist of fixed monthly or
quarterly recurring charges. We recognize revenue for services charged at fixed amounts ratably over the service period. Revenues
generated for the installation of equipment is recognized in the period when the equipment is installed and ready for the customer’s use.
We record payments received from customers in advance of usage as deferred revenue or customer deposits at the time payment is
received.

Education Services

Revenue from education services is generated through the provision of talent development and technical certification. Revenue
generated from education services is generally recognized as the courses are completed and the certified testing services are rendered.

Production Type Contracts

From time to time, we enter into contracts that are accounted for using the percentage of completion method. Revenue recognized on
contracts in process is based upon estimated contract revenue and related total cost of the project at completion. The extent of progress
toward completion is generally measured based on the ratio of actual cost incurred to total estimated cost at completion. Labor hours
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incurred is used as the measure of progress towards completion. Revisions to cost estimates as contracts progress have the effect of
increasing or decreasing profits each period. Provisions for anticipated losses are made in the period in which they become
determinable.

We did not have any significant production contracts in effect during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.
Vendor Rebates

We have arrangements to receive cash or consideration from certain of our vendors, including rebates. The amounts received or credited
from our vendors are recorded as a reduction of the prices paid for these products and, therefore, such amounts are reflected as a
reduction of the cost of revenue. Vendor rebates are typically dependent upon reaching minimum sales thresholds. We evaluate the
likelihood of reaching sales thresholds using past experience and current forecasts and, when rebates can be reasonably estimated, we
record a portion of the rebate as progress is made toward the sales threshold.

We accrued approximately $659,000 and $923,000 of rebates due from a single vendor that is being accounted for as a reduction of
accounts payable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market value. Cash equivalents generally consist of certificates of deposit.

Short-Term Investments

All highly liquid investments that have an original maturity of greater than 90 days but less than one year at the date of purchase are
classified as short-term investments. The carrying value of these instruments approximates their fair value. As of December 31, 2010
and 2009, we did not have any short-term investments.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose us to credit risk include cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. These
amounts are being held for use for working capital needs and/or future acquisitions. At times, our cash and cash equivalents may be
uninsured or in deposit accounts that exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance limit.

Restricted Cash

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had approximately $0.9 million and $1.9 million, respectively, of restricted cash, which was
used to collateralize other debts and obligations.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded net of allowances for cash discounts for prompt payment, doubtful accounts, and sales returns.
Estimates for cash discounts and sales returns are based on contractual terms, historical trends and expectations regarding the utilization
rates for these programs.

Our policy is to reserve for uncollectible accounts based on our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing
accounts receivable. We periodically review our accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance for doubtful accounts is
necessary based on an analysis of past due accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in
doubt. Other factors that we consider include our existing contractual obligations, historical payment patterns of our customers and
individual customer circumstances, an analysis of days sales outstanding by customer and geographic region, and a review of the local
economic environment and its potential impact on the realizability of accounts receivable. Account balances deemed to be uncollectible
are charged to the allowance for doubtful accounts after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is
considered remote.
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Inventory

Inventory consists predominantly of finished goods inventory, inclusive of technology equipment, products and accessories. The
majority of our inventory is held waiting for configuration and delivery to customers based on received purchase orders. Inventory is
carried at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is based on a weighted average or first-in-first-out method. All expenditures
incurred in acquiring inventory including transportation and custom duties are included in inventory. Reserves for obsolete inventory are
provided based on historical experience of a variety of factors including sales volume, product life, and levels of inventory at the end of
the period. Our reserve for obsolete inventory at December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to approximately $1,699,000 and $1,159,000,
respectively.

Deposits with Suppliers and Subcontractors

Deposits with suppliers and subcontractors mainly represent advance payments for the following:
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Payments for installation work to be performed on specific projects. The remaining work to be performed on these projects, as

. well as any future payments to be made under these obligations do not represent material commitments or future obligations on
our behalf;
. Deposits required by suppliers due to our credit rating; and

Union Temporal Entity (“UTE”) deposits representing expenses incurred as a result of joint bids for Latin American projects.
The bidding process generally ranges from six months to one year.

Value Added Tax

Certain of our operations are subject to Value Added Tax, or VAT, which is usually applied to goods and services purchased in the
respective countries. We account for VAT imposed on our goods and services on a net basis in the consolidated statements of
operations. We are required to remit the VAT we collect to the tax authorities, but may deduct the VAT we have paid on eligible
purchases. The VAT return is filed offsetting the payables against the receivables. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the gross VAT
receivable amounted to $4,135,000 and $4,883,000, respectively. The collection of the VAT receivable may extend over a period of up
to two years. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we determined that a portion of the VAT receivable balance may not be recoverable
and therefore we recorded a reserve of $876,000 and $619,000, respectively, which reduced the net VAT receivable to $3,259,000 and
$4,264,000, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over the estimated useful
lives of the related assets as follows:

Leasehold Improvements (shorter of useful life or lease term) 3to 7 years
Building 50 years
Furniture and Fixtures 5to 10 years
Network Equipment 5 to 10 years
Office Equipment and Software 3 to 10 years
Vehicles 5 to 10 years

When property, plant and equipment are retired, or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to operations. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred,
while replacements and betterments that extend estimated useful lives are capitalized.

Long Lived Assets

We periodically review the carrying values of our long lived assets when events or changes in circumstances would indicate that it is
more likely than not that their carrying values may exceed their realizable values, and record impairment charges when considered
necessary.

When circumstances indicate that impairment may have occurred, we test such assets for recoverability by comparing the estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of such assets and their eventual disposition to their carrying amounts. In
estimating these future cash flows, assets and liabilities are grouped at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that
are largely independent of the cash flows generated by other such groups. If the undiscounted future cash flows are less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss, measured as the excess of the carrying value of the asset over its estimated fair value,
is recognized.
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Goodwill

We are required to test goodwill for impairment at the reporting unit level (operating segment or one level below an operating segment)
on an annual basis and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair
value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. These events or circumstances could include a significant change in the business
climate, legal factors, operating performance indicators, competition or sale or disposition of a significant portion of a reporting unit.
Application of the goodwill impairment test requires judgment, including the identification of reporting units, assignment of assets and
liabilities to reporting units, assignment of goodwill to reporting units, and determination of the fair value of each reporting unit. The
fair value of each reporting unit is estimated using a discounted cash flow methodology. This requires significant judgments including
estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on internal forecasts, estimation of the long-term rate of growth for our business, the
useful life over which cash flows will occur, and determination of our weighted average cost of capital. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value and/or goodwill impairment for each reporting unit. We allocate
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goodwill to reporting units based on the reporting unit expected to benefit from the combination. We evaluate our reporting units on an
annual basis and, if necessary, reassign goodwill using a relative fair value allocation approach.

As more fully discussed in Notes 9 and 10, we undertook a review of the carrying amount of our goodwill and intangible assets as of
December 31, 2009 and determined that the value of our goodwill and intangible assets related to our operations in Latin America had
been impaired. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge of $15,000,000 in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations during the year ended December 31, 2009.

As a result of litigation in Fiji as well as Fiji’s current economic instability and uncertain business climate, we undertook a review of the
carrying amount of our goodwill as of March 31, 2009 and determined that the value of our goodwill related to Fiji had been impaired.
Accordingly, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge, which is included in loss from discontinued operations, of $1,025,717 during
the year ended December 31, 2009.

We will continue to evaluate goodwill and intangible assets for impairment, at least annually. Other than as set forth above, during the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we did not identify any indication of goodwill or intangible asset impairment in our other
reporting units.

Accounts Payable

Included in our accounts payable at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is approximately $21.1 million and $17.9 million, respectively, of
short-term vendor financed payables.

Convertible Instruments

We review all of our convertible instruments for the existence of an embedded conversion feature which may require bifurcation if
certain criteria are met. The criteria, if met, require companies to bifurcate conversion options from their host instruments and account
for them as freestanding derivative financial instruments. These three criteria include circumstances in which:

() the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative instrument are not clearly and closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract,

the hybrid instrument that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument and the host contract is not remeasured at fair value

(b) under otherwise applicable generally accepted accounting principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur,

and

a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative instrument would be considered a derivative instrument
subject to certain requirements (except for when the host instrument is deemed to be conventional).

(c)

When we have determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcated from their host instruments, we record
discounts to convertible notes for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences
between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the note transaction and the effective conversion price
embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements are amortized over the term of the related debt to their earliest date of
redemption. Also when necessary, we record deemed dividends for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in preferred
shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common stock at the commitment date of the financing
transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the preferred shares.

We evaluated the conversion options embedded in our convertible instruments during each of the reporting periods presented.
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The characteristics of common stock that were issuable upon a holder’s exercise of conversion options embedded in its preferred shares
are considered clearly and closely related to the characteristics of the preferred shares. Accordingly, we determined that the conversion
options embedded in our preferred shares did not require bifurcation and are therefore being accounted for as embedded

derivatives. Additionally, if a conversion feature is reset upon the occurrence of a future event based upon a contractual provision
existing at the commitment date of the financing transaction, the conversion option should be evaluated on the date of the reset and
measured using the commitment date fair value of the stock as the basis for computing intrinsic value at the date of the reset. The
convertible preferred shares feature anti-dilution provisions to adjust the number of shares issuable upon conversion in the event of a
stock split, stock dividend or similar recapitalization event but do not require the Company to adjust the exercise price of the conversion
option in the event of a subsequent sale of equity securities or convertible instruments at a price or conversion prices more favorable
than those in effect in the outstanding preferred shares.

Preferred Stock

Preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption (if any) are classified as liability instruments and are measured at fair value. We
classify conditionally redeemable preferred shares (if any), which includes preferred shares that feature redemption rights that are either
within the control of the holder or subject to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within the Company’s
control, as temporary equity. At all other times, we classify our preferred stock in stockholders’ equity.
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Our preferred shares do not feature any redemption rights within the holders’ control or conditional redemption features not solely
within our control as of December 31, 2010. Accordingly, all issuances of preferred stock are presented as a component of stockholders’
equity.

Common Stock Purchase Warrants and Derivative Financial Instruments

We classify as equity any contracts that (i) require physical settlement or net-share settlement or (ii) gives us a choice of net-cash
settlement or settlement in our own shares (physical settlement or net-share settlement). We classify as assets or liabilities any contracts
that (i) require net-cash settlement (including a requirement to net cash settle the contract if an event occurs and if that event is outside
our control) or (ii) gives the counterparty a choice of net-cash settlement or settlement in shares (physical settlement or net-share
settlement). We assess classification of our common stock purchase warrants and other freestanding derivatives at each reporting date to
determine whether a change in classification between assets and liabilities is required.

Our freestanding derivatives consist of warrants to purchase common stock that we issued in connection with various financing
transactions. We evaluated these freestanding derivatives to assess their proper classification in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009. Financial instruments which do not have fixed settlement provisions are deemed to be derivative
instruments. The common stock warrants issued to Stanford Group Company (“SGC”) in connection with our November 2007 $35
million Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement do not have fixed settlement provisions because their exercise prices may be lowered if we
issue securities at lower prices in the future. Accordingly, the warrants were recognized as a derivative instrument and have been re-
characterized as derivative liabilities. We are required to re-measure the fair value of these liabilities at the end of every reporting period
with the change in value reported in the statement of operations. Effective January 1, 2009, we reclassified the fair value of these
common stock purchase warrants from equity to liability as if these warrants were treated as a derivative liability since their date of
issue. The fair value of the derivative liability was not considered to be material as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

We determined that our remaining outstanding common stock purchase warrants satisfied the criteria for classification as equity
instruments at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as they are incurred and are included in general and administrative expenses. Advertising costs for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to approximately $889,000 and $795,000, respectively.

Share Based Payment Arrangements

Share-based payment awards, including shares issued under employee stock purchase plans, stock options, restricted stock and stock
appreciation rights, are measured at their fair value on the awards’ grant date, based on the estimated number of awards that are
ultimately expected to vest. Share-based compensation awards issued to non-employees for services rendered are recorded at either the
fair value of the services rendered or the fair value of the share-based payment, whichever is more readily determinable. The expense
resulting from share-based payments are recorded in general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

Income Taxes

Current income taxes are based on the respective periods’ taxable income for federal and state income tax reporting purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets and
liabilities, using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is
required if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. For United States income tax purposes, management concluded a full valuation allowance was appropriate at
December 31, 2010 and 2009 due to operating losses incurred.
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Highly certain tax positions are determined based upon the likelihood of the positions sustained upon examination by the taxing
authorities. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial statements in the period during which management believes it is
more likely than not that the position will be sustained. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax
positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50
percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax
positions taken that exceeds the amount measured is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets. Interest associated with unrecognized tax benefits is classified as interest expense and penalties that would
be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination are classified in income tax expenses, if any, in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to eLandia by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for the period and excludes the effects of any potentially dilutive securities. Diluted earnings per share, if presented, would
include the dilution that would occur upon the exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive securities into common stock using the
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“treasury stock’ and/or “if converted” methods as applicable. The computation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 includes 28,125 unexercised warrants, with an exercise price of $.001 per share.

The computation of basic net loss per share for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 excludes the following potentially dilutive
securities because their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009
Convertible Preferred Stock 4,118,263 4,118,263
Common Stock Purchase Warrants 259,259 1,409,259
Stock Options 7,949,417 7,622,875
12,326,939 13,150,397

As described in Note 24, on March 30, 2011, upon the termination of the Voting Trust Agreement, 4,118,263 shares of our Series B
Preferred Stock were automatically converted into 1,801,740 shares of our common stock. Such 1,801,740 shares of our common stock
were immediately cancelled.

As described in Note 24, on March 31, 2011, we placed 150,745,913 shares of our common stock in escrow pending the completion of
the Amper transaction.

Foreign Currency Translation and Remeasurement

The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States Dollars. The financial statements of our foreign operations are
stated in foreign currencies, referred to as the functional currency except for Desca, where the functional currency is the U.S. Dollar.
Functional currency assets and liabilities are translated into the reporting currency, U.S. Dollars, using period end rates of exchange and
the related translation adjustments are recorded as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income. Functional
statements of operations amounts expressed in functional currencies are translated using average exchange rates for the respective
periods. Remeasurement adjustments and gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are recorded as foreign exchange
gains or losses in the consolidated statement of operations.

Comprehensive Loss

Other comprehensive loss includes all changes in stockholders’ equity during a period from non-owner sources and is reported in the
consolidated statement of stockholders’ equity. To date, other comprehensive loss consists of changes in accumulated foreign currency
translation adjustments during the years.

Loss Contingencies

We recognize contingent losses that are both probable and estimable. In this context, we define probability as circumstances under
which events are likely to occur. In regards to legal costs, we record such costs as incurred.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Improving Disclosures
about Fair Value Measurements” (“ASU No. 2010-06”). ASU No. 2010-06 requires more robust disclosures about (1) the different
classes of assets and liabilities measured at fair value, (2) the valuation techniques and inputs used, (3) the activity in Level 3 fair value
measurements, and (4) the transfers between Levels 1, 2, and 3. The new disclosures and clarifications of existing disclosures are
effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales,
issuances, and settlements in the roll forward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements. Those disclosures are effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of this pronouncement did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.
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In March 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-19, “Foreign Currency (Topic 830) — Foreign Currency Issues: Multiple Foreign
Currency Exchange Rates (SEC Update)” (“ASU No. 2010-19”). ASU No. 2010-19 codifies SEC staff views on certain foreign
currency issues related to investments in Venezuela including: (a) Venezuela has met the threshold for being considered highly
inflationary, and therefore calendar year entities that have not previously accounted for their Venezuelan investment as highly
inflationary will begin applying highly inflationary accounting beginning January 1, 2010; (b) SEC staff provided further information on
disclosures in circumstances where reported balances for financial reporting purposes differ from the actual U.S. dollar denominated
balances; (c) SEC staff noted that ASC 830-10-45-11 must be followed upon application of highly inflationary accounting and
accordingly there should be no differences between the amount reported for financial reporting and underlying U.S. denominated
balances; and (d) at the time of adoption of highly inflationary accounting, differences that existed prior should be recognized in the
income statement unless the registrant can document that the difference was previously recognized as a cumulative translation
adjustment. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, “Revenue Recognition (Topic 605) — Multiple-Deliverable Revenue
Arrangements” (“ASU No. 2009-13"). ASU No. 2009-13 addresses the accounting for multiple-deliverable arrangements to enable
vendors to account for products or services (“deliverables”) separately rather than as a combined unit. Specifically, this guidance
amends the criteria in Subtopic 605-25, “Revenue Recognition-Multiple-Element Arrangements,” of the Codification for separating
consideration in multiple-deliverable arrangements. A selling price hierarchy is established for determining the selling price of a
deliverable, which is based on: (a) vendor-specific objective evidence; (b) third-party evidence; or (c) estimates. This guidance also
eliminates the residual method of allocation and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the inception of the arrangement
to all deliverables using the relative selling price method. Additional disclosures related to a vendor’s multiple-deliverable revenue
arrangements are also required by this update. ASU No. 2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into, or
materially modified, in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this
pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-14, “Software (Topic 985) — Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements” (“ASU No. 2009-14""). ASU No. 2009-14 changes the accounting model for revenue arrangements that include both tangible
products and software elements to allow for alternatives when vendor-specific objective evidence does not exist. Under this guidance,
tangible products containing software components and non-software components that function together to deliver the tangible product’s
essential functionality and hardware components of a tangible product containing software components are excluded from the software
revenue guidance in Subtopic 985-605, “Software-Revenue Recognition;” thus, these arrangements are excluded from this update. ASU
No. 2009-14 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after
June 15, 2010 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-28, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) — When to Perform Step 2 of
the Goodwill Impairment Test for reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts” (“ASU 2010-28”). ASU 2010-28 modifies
Step 1 of the goodwill impairment test so that for those reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts, an entity is required to
perform Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not based in an assessment of qualitative indicators that a
goodwill impairment exists. In determining whether it is more likely than not that goodwill impairment exits, an entity should consider
whether there are any adverse qualitative factors indicating that an impairment may exist. ASU 2010-28 is effective for fiscal years, and
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. The adoption of this
pronouncement is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies that do not require
adoption until a future date are not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

NOTE 4 - Fair Value

We have determined the estimated fair value amounts presented in these consolidated financial statements using available market
information and appropriate methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required in interpreting market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. The estimates presented in the consolidated financial statements are not necessarily indicative of the amounts
that we could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have
a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts. We have based these fair value estimates on pertinent information available as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the carrying value of all financial instruments approximates fair
value.
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We have classified our assets and liabilities recorded at fair value based upon the following fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to
access.

Level 2 inputs utilize other-than-quoted prices that are observable, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include quoted
. prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at
commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable and are typically based on our own assumptions, including situations where there is little, if
any, market activity.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, we classify
such financial asset or liability based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Our
assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors
specific to the asset or liability.
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Both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of positions that are classified within the Level 3
classification. As a result, the unrealized gains and losses for assets within the Level 3 classification presented in the tables below may
include changes in fair value that were attributable to both observable (e.g., changes in market interest rates) and unobservable (e.g.,
changes in historical company data) inputs.

The following are the classes of assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets (Level 1); significant other observable inputs (Level 2); and significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

December 31, 2010
Level 2: Total
Leyel 1.' Quo?ed Significant .Le\.fel 3 Total at Impairment for
Prices in Active Significant
Other December 31, the Year Ended
Markets for Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs 2010 December 31,
Inputs 2010
Goodwill $ — $ — $ 11,085,660 $ 11,085,660 $ —
Intangible Assets — — 1,804,710 1,804,710 —
Total $ — — $ 12,890,370 $ 12,890,370 $ —
December 31, 2009
Level 2: Total
Leyel 1.' Quo?ed Significant .Le\.'el 3 Total at Impairment for
Prices in Active Significant
Other December 31, the Year Ended
Markets for Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs 2009 December 31,
Inputs 2009
Goodwill $ — $ — $ 10,870,959 $ 10,870,959 $ 7,664,100
Intangible Assets — — 2,140,530 2,140,530 7,335,900
Total $ — — $ 13,011,489 $ 13,011,489 $ 15,000,000

We recorded an intangible asset and goodwill impairment charge of $15,000,000 during the year ended December 31, 2009 to write
down intangible assets and goodwill to their implied fair values (see Notes 9 and 10).
NOTE S - Acquisitions

We made two acquisitions during 2009: (1) Center of Technology Transfer Corporation (“CTT”) — Peru and (2) American Samoa
Entertainment, Inc. The total aggregate consideration for these acquisitions was $3,564,534.

On April 29, 2009, we acquired an additional 20% interest in Pac-Rim Redeployment, LLC (“PRR?”), increasing our ownership to
100%, and an additional 13.33% interest in American Samoa Hawaii Cable, LLC (“ASHC”), increasing our ownership interest to
66.67%. The total consideration paid for the acquisition of these interests was nominal.
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On July 17, 2009, we consummated a purchase and sale transaction under a Securities Purchase Agreement effective as of July 1, 2009
(the “30% Purchase Agreement”) with Jorge Enrique Alvarado Amado (“Alvarado”). Pursuant to the 30% Purchase Agreement, we
purchased 3,000,000 Common Units (“30% Units”) of Desca for an aggregate purchase price of $1.9 million, as described below. As a
result of our purchase under the 30% Purchase Agreement, effective July 1, 2009, we settled the noncontrolling interest purchase price
obligation with Alvarado and Desca became our wholly-owned subsidiary. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the change in fair
value of the noncontrolling interest purchase price obligation of $814,127 was recorded in the statement of operations. The settlement of
the noncontrolling interest purchase price obligation in the amount of $6,134,711 was recorded as a credit to additional paid in capital as
of December 31, 2009.

Under the terms of the 30% Purchase Agreement we have:

@) made a payment to Alvarado of $500,000 in cash,
(i)  executed and delivered to Alvarado a $500,000 promissory note payable on July 1, 2010, and

(iii) issued to Alvarado 2,500,000 shares of our common stock, valued at $0.9 million based on the closing stock price of
$0.34 on July 17, 2009, of which
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one-half of such shares were deposited with an escrow agent to be held and released in accordance with the terms
of an escrow agreement, as described below, and

b. one-half of such shares were delivered to Alvarado.

The promissory note provided for interest to accrue at 6% per annum and all payments of principal and accrued interest to be paid on the
maturity date of July 1, 2010. The 30% Purchase Agreement provided that the purchase price be reduced to the extent that the value of
Desca’s net assets at closing was determined to be less as compared to June 30, 2010. Alvarado would be responsible to pay us an
amount equal to 30% of any deficiency and such amount would be deemed a claim for indemnification under the 30% Purchase
Agreement. The purchase price was not reduced since the value of Desca’s net assets at closing was greater than the value at June 30,
2010.

In addition to the purchase price described above, we agreed to pay to Alvarado contingent consideration (the “Contingent
Consideration”) in the event Desca achieved certain financial performance targets for 2009 identified in the 30% Purchase Agreement.
The aggregate amount of the Contingent Consideration was, at Alvarado’s option, payable as follows: (i) up to an additional maximum
amount of 5,000,000 restricted shares of our common stock, (ii) payment of up to a maximum amount of $8,000,000 in cash to be
evidenced by an additional non-interest bearing promissory note payable on December 31, 2013, or (iii) up to an additional maximum
amount of 2,500,000 restricted shares of our common stock and payment of up to an additional maximum amount of $4,000,000 in cash
to be evidenced by an additional non-interest bearing promissory note payable on December 31, 2013. However, pursuant to the terms
of the Purchase Agreement and as a result of Desca’s financial performance targets for 2009, we were not required to pay the
Contingent Consideration.

All but 1,250,000 shares of our common stock constituting part of the purchase price, as well as any additional shares of our common
stock constituting amounts of Contingent Consideration, were deposited with an escrow agent to be held and released over a 4-year
period, as described below. All shares of our common stock held in escrow were available to satisfy any claim by us for indemnification
under the 30% Purchase Agreement. All shares of our common stock constituting part of the purchase price were held in escrow for a
period of two years following the closing; however, if such shares become eligible for resale by Alvarado pursuant to Rule 144 under
the Securities Act of 1933, such shares could be sold by Alvarado, but only so long as Alvarado made arrangements acceptable to us for
the immediate deposit of the net cash proceeds into escrow to be held in accordance with the terms thereof. All promissory notes issued
by us in connection with the 30% Purchase Agreement, were subject to setoff to satisfy any indemnification claims we may have against
Alvarado.

At the closing of the 30% Purchase Agreement, Alvarado also entered into a two-year amended and restated employment agreement
pursuant to which he would serve as chief executive officer of our Networking Group. Alvarado also executed a non-compete
agreement containing customary non-compete, non-solicitation, non-disclosure and non-disparagement covenants. Finally, eLandia and
Alvarado executed a termination and release agreement pursuant to which each of the parties agreed to terminate certain prior
agreements and to release any claims the parties may have had against one another arising prior to the date of the 30% Purchase
Agreement.

As more fully described in Notes 14 and 17, on October 5, 2010, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Alvarado pursuant to
which Alvarado’s employment relationship with Desca was terminated without cause, the promissory note was amended and the 2.5
million shares were returned to us and cancelled.

NOTE 6 — Deconsolidation of Subsidiary and Discontinued Operations

Our discontinued operations are comprised of (i) our 50% interest in Datec PNG, which was sold in April 2009; (ii) our operations in
Fiji; and (iii) certain eLandia predecessor companies that no longer conduct any operations.
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Through April 17, 2009, we held a 50% interest in Datec PNG, which represented our operations in Papua New Guinea. Due to our
management influence, we consolidated Datec PNG within our consolidated financial statements. Datec PNG provided technology
products, Internet access services and IT services to large corporate organizations. On April 17, 2009 we sold our 50% ownership
interest in Datec PNG to Steamships Ltd. As a result of the sale of Datec PNG, we re-measured the value of the net assets to be sold at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less selling costs. We determined that the sale price of $5.6 million in cash, less selling
costs of $22,427, was the best indicator of the fair value of the assets to be sold. Accordingly, we recorded an impairment charge related
to the goodwill and intangible assets of $10.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2009 and a loss upon the closing of the sale,
including the results of operations for the 17 day period ending April 17, 2009, of $199,000. The write off of the goodwill and the loss
resulted in a net loss on the sale of Datec PNG of $11.0 million, which is included in discontinued operations for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

In April 2009, the Reserve Bank of Fiji announced that Fiji’s currency had been devalued by 20% effective April 16, 2009, and the
President of Fiji annulled the country’s constitution, terminated all the judges in the country and declared himself the head of state. This
triggered an impairment charge to our goodwill in Fiji during the year ended December 31, 2009 due to the anticipated economic
instability and an uncertain business climate. As a result of these factors and the uncertainty caused by such factors, in December 2009
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our Board of Directors approved management’s proposal to dispose of our operations in Fiji. Management began to actively market and
locate a buyer for our operations in Fiji during the quarter ended March 31, 2010. As more fully described in Note 17, on June 24, 2010,
we entered into a settlement agreement with Kelton Investments Ltd. (“Kelton™) and Datec Group Ltd. (“Datec”), as plaintiffs, among
others, pursuant to which 150,000 shares of our common stock have been transferred to us in exchange for our interests in Datec Fiji and
Datec Australia. As a result of the settlement and resolution of the material closing conditions, we re-measured the value of the net
liabilities transferred at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value. We determined that the fair value of the 150,000 shares of our
common stock returned to us was deminimus. Accordingly, we recorded a gain in discontinued operations, which includes the results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, of $2.4 million. That gain includes approximately $3.6 million from the recovery of
accumulated translation gains previously reflected as a component of other comprehensive income.

A summary of our assets and liabilities from discontinued operations as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and our results of discontinued
operations for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 20009 is as follows:

Assets and Liabilities of Discontinued Operations

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Cash $ — 3 249,969
Accounts Receivable, Net — 808,382
Inventory, Net — 232,384
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets — 318,191
Deposits with Suppliers and Subcontractors = 131,042
Assets Held for Sale - Current $ — 3 1,739,968
Property, Plant and Equipment, net $ — 8 354,501
Other Assets — 9,416
Assets Held for Sale - Long-Term $ — 8 363,917
Accounts Payable $ — S 464,292
Accrued Expenses 48,091 668,415
Accrued FCPA Penalty 700,000 500,000
Capital Lease Obligations 10,000 11,190
Deferred Revenue — 73,706
Other Current Liabilities — 20,711
Liabilities from Discontinued Operations - Current $ 758,091 $ 1,738,314
Accrued FCPA Penalty $ 500,000 $ 1,000,000
Liabilities from Discontinued Operations - Long Term $ 500,000 $ 1,000,000
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Results of Discontinued Operations

For the Year Ended December

31,
2010 2009

Revenue $ 5,101,487 $ 16,040,216

Cost of Revenue (3,298,760) (9,510,506)
Sales, Marketing and Customer Support (952,568) (3,067,817)
General and Administrative (760,358) (2,484,988)
Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill — (11,852,969)
Depreciation and Amortization (109,326) (608,411)
Amortization — Intangible Assets — (290,083)
Interest Expense, net (4,119) (50,400)
Other Income 2,438,463 (180,511)
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Net Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 2414819 $ (12,005,469)

NOTE 7 — American Samoa Undersea Cable Transaction

On May 22, 2008, eLandia Technologies, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary (“ETI”), entered into two limited liability company
agreements relating to the redeployment and operation of an undersea fiber optic cable system to provide telecommunications and
internet services to American Samoa.

ETI initially owned 40% of the equity interests in PRR, which was formed to acquire a portion of the Pac-Rim East undersea fiber optic
cable that runs between New Zealand and Hawaii (the “PRE Cable”) and to redeploy a portion of the PRE Cable from Pago Pago,
American Samoa to Keawaula, Oahu, Hawaii (the “ASH Cable”) and to redeploy, subject to business justification, a portion of the PRE
Cable from Pago Pago, American Samoa to Apia, Independent State of Samoa (the “ISS Cable”). ETI also initially owned 26 2/3% of
the equity interests in ASHC, which was formed to acquire, maintain and operate the PRE Cable and ASH Cable. The cost of the
acquisition, construction and related costs of the project were estimated at $24 million.

The acquisition of the PRE Cable and its redeployment was funded by third party financing and contributions by the American Samoa
Government (“ASG”), which is a 33% member of ASHC. ASG committed to contribute $9 million for their investment in ASHC. As of
December 31, 2008, ASG had contributed $3 million. In February and June 2009, ASG contributed an additional $3 million,
respectively, as a result of obtaining third party financing. Operation and maintenance of the ASH Cable will be funded primarily
through telecommunications and internet services contracts. AST has contractually committed to utilizing a portion of the fiber optic
cable capacity to be provided by the ASH Cable.

Additionally, on May 22, 2008, PRR and ASHC entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement for the ASH Cable, which provides for the
purchase of the redeployed and fully operational ASH Cable by ASHC during 2009. ASHC purchased the ASH Cable from PRR in June
2009 for a total consideration of $25.4 million using the proceeds from the Term Loan Agreement with ANZ (see Note 14) and the final
capital contribution from ASG.

On May 30, 2008, PRR entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement, whereby PRR acquired the PRE Cable for an aggregate purchase

price of $4 million. In addition, PRR also committed to pay $2 million as a development fee for the PRE Cable. The amounts were due
to be paid on or before June 30, 2009, with provisions allowing for accelerated timing and payment amounts. These amounts were paid
in June 2009 using the proceeds from the Term Loan Agreement.

For the period from May 22, 2008 through August 7, 2008, PRR and ASHC did not have substantial operations and, accordingly, there
was no allocation of income or loss from these investments.

On August 8, 2008, ETI purchased the 40% membership interests of another partner in PRR and the 26 2/3% membership interests from
the same partner in ASHC for an aggregate cash consideration of $681,114.

On April 29, 2009, ETI acquired an additional 20% interest in PRR, increasing our ownership to 100%, and an additional 13.33%
interest in ASHC, increasing our ownership interest to 66.67%. The total consideration paid for the acquisition of these interests was
nominal.
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NOTE 8 — Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is comprised of:

2010 2009
Accounts Receivable $ 65,767,191 $ 53,697,398
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (2,144,855) (508,261)

$ 63,622,336 $ 53,189,137

The change in allowances for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2010 2009
Balance of allowance for doubtful accounts at beginning of year $ 508,261 $ 1,597,549
Provision for bad debt for the years then ended 1,912,665 316,204
Amounts written off during the years then ended (276,071) (1,405,492)
Balance of allowance for doubtful accounts at end of year $ 2,144,855 § 508,261

Included in accounts receivable is $8.5 million and $14.8 million of unbilled receivables at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
We utilize substantially all of our accounts receivable to collateralize certain debt.

NOTE 9 — Goodwill
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Goodwill represents the excess purchase price paid over the cost of net assets acquired in business combinations accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting. Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 were as

follows:
Latin South
Goodwill: America Pacific Total
Balance at January 1, 2009 $ 16,088,787 $ 2,031,268 $ 18,120,055
Acquisitions in 2009 183,374 885,332 1,068,706
Purchase price adjustment (495,000) — (495,000)
Impairment charge (7,664,100) — (7,664,100)
Foreign currency translation effect (140,964) (17,738) (158,702)
Balance at December 31, 2009 $ 7,972,097 $ 2,898,862 $ 10,870,959
Foreign currency translation effect 214,701 — 214,701
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 8,186,798 $ 2,898,862 $ 11,085,660

On October 16, 2008, eLandia and the former owners of CTT (“CTT Sellers”) entered into a Purchase Agreement and Escrow
Agreement, pursuant to which $600,000 of the purchase price was deposited with an escrow agent to satisfy our indemnification rights.
On September 30, 2009, we agreed to settle certain claims relating to the Net Asset Value of CTT (as defined in the Purchase
Agreement). Pursuant to the terms of the settlement, the CTT Sellers agreed to release the $600,000 escrow amount to us in exchange
for the issuance of 350,000 shares of our common stock to the CTT Sellers, valued at $105,000. We recorded the net settlement amount
of $495,000 as a purchase price adjustment to the goodwill of CTT in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31,
2009.

As a result of the weakened economic environment, we undertook a review of the carrying amount of our goodwill and intangible assets
as of December 31, 2009. The results of our quantitative analysis indicated that no impairment existed in our goodwill and intangible
assets in Latin America; however, we also considered qualitative factors in our assessment. Specifically, we noted that the weakened
economic environment continues to have a negative impact on our operations at Transistemas as evidenced by the significant operating
losses experienced from our operations in Argentina. In addition, we noted the significant country risk that exists in Venezuela (and to a
lesser extent in Ecuador) and that the inherent political uncertainty which exists makes any long-term estimates as to future cash flows
derived from that business extremely volatile. Although the weakened economic environment has affected our subsidiaries in other parts
of Latin America, the effects have been felt to a much lesser extent. While the quantitative analysis supports the current carrying value
of the goodwill and intangible assets in our other Latin America subsidiaries, we believed that an impairment existed from a qualitative
standpoint given the uncertainty and instability of the future economic environment in certain countries of Latin America and the
political risk in some of our markets. Accordingly, we recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $7,664,100 in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations during the year ended December 31, 2009.
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NOTE 10 — Intangible Assets

Intangible asset values and the related accumulated amortization are as follows:

Finite Lived Assets Indefinite Lived

Assets

Contract Telecommunications

Intangible Assets: Customer Lists . Licenses and

Rights

Agreements
Gross Value at December 31, 2009 $ 1,833,100 $ 1,219,000 $ 858,743
Accumulated Amortization at December 31, 2009 (629,783) (1,140,530) —
Net Value at December 31, 2009 $ 1,203,317 $ 78,470 $ 858,743
Gross Value at December 31, 2010 $ 1,833,100 $ 1,219,000 $ 858,743
Accumulated Amortization at December 31, 2010 (891,655) (1,214,478) —
Net Value at December 31, 2010 $ 941,445 § 4,522 $ 858,743

Acquired intangibles with a definite life are amortized on a straight-line basis over weighted average lives. Telecommunications licenses
and agreements are generally perpetual in nature and therefore are not amortized.
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As discussed in Note 9, as a result of the weakened economic environment, we undertook a review of the carrying amount of our
goodwill and intangible assets as of December 31, 2009. Based upon our review, we recorded an intangible asset impairment charge of
$7,335,900 in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Definite Life Assets Indefinite Life
Assets

Contract Telecommunications

Customer Lists . Trade Names Licenses and

Rights

Agreements
Acquired in Connection with Acquisitions during 2009 $ 875,100 $ — 3 — 3 —
Impairment Charge (551,133) (1,257,045) (5,527,722) —
Total $ 323,967 $ (1,257,045) $ (5,527,722) $ —

Weighted Average Life (Years) 7 — —

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortization expense amounted to $0.3 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

The following table outlines the estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets as of December 31, 2010:

Customer Lists Contract Rights Total
For the Year Ending December 31,
2011 $ 261,857 $ 4,522 $ 266,379
2012 261,857 — 261,857
2013 136,406 — 136,406
2014 125,000 — 125,000
2015 125,000 — 125,000
Thereafter 31,325 — 31,325
$ 941,445 $ 4,522 $ 945,967
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NOTE 11 - Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

As of December 31,
2010 2009

Building $ 1,547,025 § 1,547,025
Leasehold Improvements 3,795,116 2,826,084
Network Equipment 38,453,031 37,738,926
Office Equipment 1,071,184 908,817
Furniture and Fixtures 1,133,912 941,789
Vehicles 570,575 626,557

Total Property and Equipment 46,570,843 44,589,198
Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (15,707,898) (9,920,099)

Net Value of Property, Plant and Equipment 30,862,945 34,669,099
Construction in Progress 1,157,916 1,345,732

Total Property, Plant and Equipment, net $ 32,020,861 $ 36,014,831

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to $6.4 million and $5.6 million,
respectively.

NOTE 12 — Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses at December 31, 2010 and 2009 is comprised of:
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2010 2009

Acccrued Cost of Sales $ 3,432,228 $ 2,778,063
Accrued Payroll and Related 3,661,486 3,566,110
Accrued Taxes 3,500,984 3,093,897
Accrued Interest 1,906,725 199,829
Accrued USF Liability 1,080,070 —
Accrued Professional Fees 632,377 920,895
Accrued Other 3,427,288 1,888,044
$ 17,641,158 $ 12,446,838

NOTE 13 — Lines of Credit

We have lines of credit, short-term overdraft and credit facilities with various financial institutions in the countries in which our
individual businesses reside. These facilities are generally secured by assets of the individual companies, such as accounts receivable
and/or inventory. These facilities have original maturity terms ranging from 30 days to one year and bear interest at rates ranging from
4.3% to 28.0%.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the total amount outstanding under the lines of credit, short term overdraft and credit facilities was
$6.1 million and $11.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2010, the maximum amount available under the lines of credit, short-term
overdraft and credit facilities was $7.2 million and the unused portions amounted to $1.1 million, subject (in certain cases) to the
availability of having sufficient collateral under asset based lending arrangements.

On March 16, 2010, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with Stanford International Holdings (Panama) S.A. (“SIHP”), whereby
we paid SIHP $462,500 in full and final settlement of a $2.5 million outstanding line of credit with SIHP. Accordingly, we recorded a
gain on the extinguishment of debt in the amount of $2,037,500 during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Line of credit arrangements include facilities that may contractually expire or mature at various times prior or subsequent to
December 31, 2011. We have classified all lines of credit with contractual expiration or maturity dates more than one year from the
balance sheet date as current liabilities since these arrangements generally feature lockbox arrangements and/or subjective acceleration
clauses.

Our operations in American Samoa are obligated under a loan agreement with ANZ Finance America Samoa, Inc. (“ANZ Finance”) for
a maximum amount of $5,800,000. Of this amount, $800,000 is in the form of a term loan and up to $5,000,000 is in the form of a
revolving line of credit. The revolving line of credit was originally due on October 30, 2007 and the term loan is due on October 30,
2015. In September 2010, ANZ Finance completed their annual review of our outstanding loan agreement and revolving line of credit
and determined that all existing terms remain unchanged and continuing, except for a reduction in the amount available under the
revolving line of credit from $5 million to $3 million. We have pledged all of our assets in American Samoa to secure this obligation.
ANZ Finance noted certain qualitative, nonfinancial breaches, but has not enforced any of the default provisions under the loan
agreement.

55

eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

As aresult of a directive provided by the FCC to the Universal Service Administrative Company (“USAC”) in August 2010, there is a
potential assessment against AST Telecom, LLC (“AST”) stemming from its participation in the federal Universal Service Fund
(“USF”). This directive provided notice to all program participants, including AST, that prior period adjustments would be made to
previously-received USF high-cost support from the USF which could result in retroactive reductions in support already received from
August 2008 through December 2010. These assessments do not result from any wrongdoing by AST, nor is litigation against AST
pending or contemplated. As such, AST is not a defendant or otherwise the target of an administrative investigation. Reductions in
federal USF support to AST, and others, are being made as a part of the FCC’s ongoing implementation of the federal USF program. In
February 2011, another directive was issued indicating that these prior adjustments would be implemented in March 2011. While the
exact amount of these retroactive reductions in support have not been announced by the USAC, we have estimated the amount of AST’s
obligation to be approximately $1.1 million. Accordingly, we recorded a charge of $1.1 million for the retroactive reduction in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations and a corresponding accrued expense payable in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2010. We expect future support payments will be reduced to offset AST’s obligation. In addition, the
annual reduction in funding received from the USF will be reduced by approximately $400,000 per year which we do not consider to be
significant.

As a result of taking this unexpected charge, AST could be considered to be in breach of its interest coverage covenant. While we have
not repaid this amount, nor has ANZ Finance initiated a demand for repayment, we cannot provide any assurance that ANZ Finance will
not make an immediate demand for repayment of this loan. However, we are currently in discussions with ANZ Finance to obtain a
waiver for this covenant violation. Accordingly, the amounts due to ANZ Finance are classified as current liabilities on the
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accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2010, the balance of the revolving line of credit amounted to
$2,549,728 and the balance of the term loan amounted to $438,946.

NOTE 14 — Long-Term Debt

A summary of our outstanding debt obligations is as follows:

As of December 31,
2010 2009
Term Loan Agreements $ 20,389,655 $ 16,672,000
Promissory Notes 2,147,871 2,645,644
Obligations under various long-term borrowing arrangements 21,599,254 7,247,183
Sub-total 44,136,780 26,564,827
Unamortized discounts (37,983) (108,161)
Total long-term debt, net of unamortized discounts 44,098,797 26,456,666
Less: current portion of long-term debt 15,343,251 4,710,072
Long-term debt $ 28,755,546 $ 21,746,594
Obligations to SIBL
Bridge Loan Agreement

On July 21, 2008, we entered into a credit agreement with SIBL (the “Bridge Loan Agreement”), pursuant to which SIBL agreed to
provide a loan to us in the principal amount of up to $40 million. The Bridge Loan Agreement was amended and, pursuant to these
amendments, the maturity date was extended to June 30, 2011. Also, the interest rate was modified to 6% with payments of interest due
on December 31, 2009, December 31, 2010 and June 30, 2011. In addition, we had the option, with respect to any interest payment, to
pay interest in cash or in shares of our common stock based upon the average closing bid and asked prices for our common stock for the
20 trading days prior to the applicable interest payment date. In addition, at the request of SIBL, the loan funding schedule for the
unfunded balance of the loan as of the November 14, 2008 amendment, in the amount of $28 million, was modified to provide for nine
installments during the first quarter of 2009 commencing on February 5, 2009.

On February 6, 2009, as part of a modification to our capital structure, we entered into a Modification Agreement and a Fourth
Amendment with SIBL. Pursuant to the Modification Agreement:

we agreed to further amend the Bridge Loan Agreement (“Fourth Amendment”) to terminate SIBL’s obligation to fund the
balance of $28 million committed by SIBL under the Bridge Loan Agreement;
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in partial consideration of our agreement to terminate the Bridge Loan Agreement, SIBL agreed to convert the $12 million
outstanding principal amount under the Bridge Loan Agreement into 1,777,778 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock and the
accrued interest was cancelled;

as a result of the Fourth Amendment and the termination of the Bridge Loan Agreement, all related loan, security and collateral
documents were also released and terminated. This included the release of guarantees granted by our subsidiaries, eLandia
South Pacific Holdings, Inc. and eLandia Technologies, Inc. (the “Guarantors”), for the benefit of SIBL. In addition, pursuant to
the Fourth Amendment, all security interests and other liens granted to SIBL under securities pledge agreements executed by us
and each of the Guarantors were satisfied and discharged and all collateral pledged was released;

SIBL agreed to surrender for cancellation 16,148,612 shares of our common stock thereby reducing to 49.9% SIBL’s ownership
of our outstanding common stock;

we granted SIBL an option, exercisable through March 31, 2009, to purchase an additional 592,593 shares of our Series B
Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $4 million (the “Option”). The Option expired unexercised,;

SIBL agreed to modify the Series B Preferred Stock as follows:

setting the initial conversion rate (the “Conversion Rate”) for the shares of the Series B Preferred Stock at a rate of seven
shares of our common stock for each eight shares of Series B Preferred Stock;
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providing for an adjusted Conversion Rate of 3.5 shares of common stock for every eight shares of Series B Preferred
Stock in the event that SIBL did not exercise the Option;

providing that the shares of Series B Preferred Stock would be automatically converted into shares of our common stock
. at the then effective Conversion Rate to the extent necessary for SIBL to maintain ownership of 49.9% of the then total
amount of issued and outstanding shares of our common stock;

. removing all voting rights of the Series B Preferred Stock;

providing that the shares of Series B Preferred Stock would have no more rights than our common stock, other than a
liquidation preference; and

adding certain protective provisions providing that the following actions cannot be taken without prior approval of the
holders of the majority of the Series B Preferred Stock outstanding: (a) any change to the rights, preferences or privileges
of the Series B Preferred Stock; or (b) the creation of a new class or series of stock superior to the Series B Preferred
Stock.

SIBL agreed to place all of its shares of our common stock and Series B Preferred Stock in a voting trust pursuant to a voting
trust agreement;

all registration rights agreements between us and SIBL were terminated with no further obligation on our part to file any
registration statement for the benefit of SIBL;

we agreed to amend the employment agreement of Pete R. Pizarro, our Chief Executive Officer (“Mr. Pizarro”), who would
have otherwise been entitled to terminate his employment for “Good Reason;” and

SIBL agreed to the transfer to us, by February 28, 2009, of $2.35 million of indebtedness of our subsidiary, Desca, due to an
affiliate of SIBL in exchange for 344,444 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, or, if such transfer did not occur, a further

. cancellation of 1,801,740 shares of our common stock held under the voting trust agreement. Such transfer and exchange was
not made by SIBL, however, the Voting Trustee has not surrendered the 1,801,740 shares of common stock for cancellation
pending relief from a February 16, 2009 court order in the matter of SIBL.

In accordance with the court order issued by the United States District Court on February 16, 2009, we have not canceled any shares of
our common stock, nor have we issued any shares of our Series B Preferred Stock or converted any shares of our Series B Preferred
Stock into common stock pursuant to the terms of the Modification Agreement. On March 24, 2011, the United States District Court
approved our motion to convert SIBL’s 4,118,263 Series B Preferred Stock into 1,801,740 shares of our common stock and to cancel
1,801,740 shares of our common stock held by SIBL (see Note 24).

We evaluated the issuance of the 1,777,778 shares of Series B Preferred Stock and the option to purchase 592,593 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock in exchange for the $12,000,000 bridge loan, the forgiveness of the related accrued interest payable of $199,618 and the
cancellation of the 16,148,612 shares of common stock and, accordingly, as of December 31, 2009, we recorded:

1) $894,445 for the value of the Series B Preferred Stock issued to SIBL;

2) $-0- for the value of the Option; and
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A contribution to capital of $11,078,506, representing the excess of the fair value of the securities and options issued
over the net carrying value of the debt and common stock surrendered, including $199,618 of accrued interest payable
forgiven, $162 for the cancellation of common stock upon conversion of the promissory note, and $226,829 of costs
incurred in connection with the conversion of the promissory note.

3)

Term Loan Agreements
Term Loan Agreement — ANZ

On June 8, 2009, we entered into a Loan Agreement (“Term Loan Agreement”) with ANZ Finance and ANZ Amerika Samoa Bank
(jointly, “ANZ”) whereby ANZ provided $16,672,000 in the form of a term loan to our subsidiaries, ASHC and Samoa American
Samoa Cable, LLC (“SAS”). ASHC and SAS are the borrowers under the facility and eLLandia and our subsidiary, American Samoa
Hawaii Undeployed Cable, LLC (“ASHUC?”) are the guarantors. The term loan is principally secured by substantially all of the assets
and operations of ASHC, SAS and ASHUC. The term loan bears interest at the U.S. prime rate plus 2% and is due on June 3, 2016. The
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Term Loan Agreement requires seven monthly installments of interest only, followed by 77 monthly installments of $187,319, including
principal and interest, through the maturity date. The remaining unpaid principal balance is due on the maturity date. In the event that a
United States Department of Agriculture (“USDA”) Rural Development ‘Conditional Commitment for Guarantee’ (“USDA Guaranty™)
is obtained in favor of ANZ covering the outstanding amount of the term loan then, as of the effective date of the USDA Guaranty in
favor of ANZ, the interest rate will be decreased to the prime rate plus 1.10%. The term loan is subject to certain financial and non-
financial covenants beginning with the period ended March 31, 2011. The proceeds of the term loan were used to fund the construction,
installation and delivery to customers of a fully operational undersea fiber optic cable linking American Samoa and Samoa to Hawaii
and providing improved long distance telecommunication and data services. In connection with the Term Loan Agreement, we executed
a guaranty in favor of ANZ (the “Guaranty”). Pursuant to the Guaranty, we have unconditionally guaranteed the repayment and other
obligations of ASHC and SAS under the Term Loan Agreement.

In September 2010, ANZ completed their review of our Term Loan Agreement and determined that all existing terms and conditions
remain unchanged and continuing, with the exception of an amendment to the interest coverage ratio covenant. The covenant was
amended whereby the interest coverage ratio will be calculated as EBITDA divided by interest expense paid for the period to be
measured on December 31, 2010. The interest coverage ratio must be a minimum of 2.50 or more.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the carrying value of the Term Loan Agreement was $15,389,655 and $16,672,000, respectively.
Contractual interest expense amounted to $896,224 and $515,815 which was recorded as a component of interest expense in the
accompanying statement of operations as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Strategic Alliance Agreement

On May 24, 2010, eLandia and Desca entered into the Strategic Alliance Agreement with Amper. Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance
Agreement, the parties established an alliance aimed at expanding each party’s access to the Latin American and Caribbean markets and
providing the parties the opportunity to offer their combined portfolio of products, services, technology solutions and technical
resources throughout the region. Amper, a Madrid, Spain based company, is a leader in the design and implementation of integrated
solutions and information systems for civilian and military communications. Medidata, Amper’s majority-owned subsidiary, offers
integrated communications solutions to telecommunications operators, corporations, financial clients and governments in Brazil. The
regional alliance established by the Agreement allows Amper to expand into the 17 local markets in the Latin American and Caribbean
region in which eLandia currently operates under its wholly-owned Desca and CTT brands. The alliance allows us to provide enhanced
support to our regional customers in Brazil. Additionally, eLandia expects to utilize the experience and knowledge of Amper’s
Homeland Security business to address the growing opportunities in critical public safety projects throughout the region and the sales of
Amper’s Access equipment products to its service provider customers. The initial term of the Strategic Alliance Agreement was six
months and was renewed until April 30, 2011.

Pursuant to the Strategic Alliance Agreement, each party designated the other as its non-exclusive agent or distributor to promote the
sale of the parties’ products and services in the Latin American and Caribbean region. Each of the parties are entitled to sales
commissions or product discounts for their sales and promotional efforts under the Strategic Alliance Agreement. The amount of the
commissions or discounts is negotiated on a case-by-case basis based on product line, customer and other factors.

In addition to the marketing and sales opportunities expected to result from the alliance, the parties also agreed to evaluate a potential
equity transaction pursuant to which we would acquire all or a part of Medidata in exchange for the issuance to Amper of a majority of
our capital stock. In consideration of our exclusivity covenants, Amper advanced to us the sum of $5 million, which was funded by
Medidata to Amper. Our repayment obligations with respect to the Exclusivity Advance are secured by certain guarantees, security
agreements and pledges of interests in favor of Amper (collectively, the “Security Documents™). The amounts outstanding under the
Exclusivity Advance accrue interest at 12% per annum until repaid to Amper.
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On December 9, 2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Strategic Alliance Agreement (the “SAA Amendment”). Pursuant to the
SAA Amendment, which was effective as of December 2, 2010, the exclusive dealings covenant set forth in the Strategic Alliance
Agreement was extended until April 30, 2011. In connection with the extension of the exclusivity period, the repayment date for the
Exclusivity Advance was also modified. Pursuant to the SAA Amendment, the Exclusivity Advance is now payable on the earlier of:

. April 30, 2011

the date that future payments are received by Descaserv Ecuador, S.A., an entity wholly owned by a subsidiary of Desca

. Holdings (“Descaserv”), under a certain customer contract;
. the termination of the Contribution Agreement between Amper and eLandia dated July 29, 2010, as amended;
. December 31, 2010 unless the Security Documents are amended consistent with the SAA Amendment provisions; and
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. on February 1, 2011 if, before that date, the parties have not entered into a mutually agreeable amendment to the Contribution
Agreement that affords Amper the option, solely in the event that the FCC consents necessary to complete the transactions
under the Contribution Agreement cannot be obtained prior to February 1, 2011, to acquire Desca Holdings and Elandia/CTT
Holdings, LP (“CTT Holdings”) in a mutually agreeable alternative transaction.

At December 31, 2010, the carrying value of the Strategic Alliance Agreement was $5,000,000. Contractual interest expense amounted
to $338,695 which was recorded as a component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations as of
December 31, 2010 (see Note 24).

Promissory Notes
Telecom New Zealand, Ltd.

On March 2, 2009, we entered into an agreement with Telecom New Zealand, Ltd. (“TNZ”), pursuant to which PRR converted a
$1,500,000 payable to TNZ at December 31, 2008 into a promissory note. The note bore interest at 7% per annum and was due on the
earlier of (i) the date upon which funds were available for payment to TNZ pursuant to the terms of a limited liability agreement with
TNZ and (ii) July 1, 2010. The note was secured by our membership interests in PRR and ASHC.

On March 2, 2009, we entered into another agreement with TNZ, pursuant to which PRR converted a $2,500,000 payable to TNZ at
December 31, 2008 into a promissory note. The note bore interest at 7% per annum and was due on the date upon which the PRE Cable
was redeployed and ASHC determined that the PRE Cable was ready to carry commercial traffic. The note was secured by our
membership interests in PRR and ASHC.

The promissory notes were satisfied in June 2009 using the proceeds from the Term Loan Agreement with ANZ described above.
Former Owners of Transistemas

As discussed in Note 18, on August 27, 2009, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with the former owners of Transistemas
(“Sellers”) in full and final settlement of the Put/Call Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, we agreed to pay
the Sellers $2.6 million as follows:

(1)  $260,000 in cash payable on the date of the Settlement Agreement, and

$2,340,000 payable in the form of a non-interest bearing promissory note due on July 15, 2011. The promissory note requires 22
(i) equal monthly payments of $52,000, with the first payment due on September 15, 2009. The remaining principal balance of
$1,196,000 is due on July 15, 2011.

In addition, as an inducement to settle the Put obligation and execute the promissory note, we agreed to issue to the Sellers 433,333
shares of our common stock, valued at $156,000. We allocated a portion of the note amount of $2,340,000 to the shares based on the
relative fair value of the note and shares. The relative fair value of the shares, which amounted to $146,250, was recorded as a discount
to the promissory note and a corresponding increase to additional paid in capital. This amount is being accreted into interest expense
over the contracted term of the note. For the year ended December 31, 2010, accretion of the discount amounted to $70,178, which was
recorded as a component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. As of December 31, 2010 and
2009, the carrying value of the note was $1,612,000 and $2,132,000, respectively.

Alvarado

In connection with the 30% Purchase Agreement entered into with Alvarado on July 17, 2009, we purchased 3,000,000 Common Units
of Desca for an aggregate purchase price of $1.9 million, consisting of (i) $500,000 in cash, (ii) a $500,000 promissory note payable on
July 1, 2010 (“Note”), and (iii) 2,500,000 shares of our common stock (the “Shares”) valued at $0.9 million. As a result of our purchase
of the 30% Units under the 30% Purchase Agreement, effective July 1, 2009, Desca became a wholly-owned subsidiary (see Note 5).
The promissory note provided for interest to accrue at 6% per annum and all payments of principal and accrued interest to be paid on the
maturity date of July 1, 2010.
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In accordance with the 30% Purchase Agreement, one-half of the Shares were placed into escrow in order to satisfy certain claims for
indemnification which we could have against Alvarado under the 30% Purchase Agreement. As more fully described in Note 17, on
October 5, 2010, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Alvarado, pursuant to which Alvarado’s employment relationship with
Desca was terminated without cause. Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, we agreed to waive any such indemnification claims, with
the exception of any future claims relating to any intentional misconduct by Alvarado, in exchange for the following: (a) all of the

2.5 million Shares (along with any convertible securities held by Alvarado) were returned by Alvarado to the Company for cancellation;
and (b) the payment schedule under the Note was modified to provide for 12 monthly payments of $10,000 each and, thereafter through
the maturity date in January 2013, monthly payments of $32,500 each. Payments on the Note may be accelerated if we receive certain
minimum payments under a material customer contract. In addition, we agreed to transfer our ownership interest in Magna Consult
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L.L.C., a consulting services company, to Alvarado. This consulting company does not engage in direct competition with us or our
subsidiaries.

As a result of the return and cancellation of the 2.5 million shares, valued at $450,000, and the modification of the terms of the Note, we
recorded a decrease to additional paid in capital of $274,024 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the carrying value of the note was $535,871 and $513,644, respectively. Contractual interest
expense amounted to $26,153 and $13,644 which was recorded as a component of interest expense in the accompanying statement of
operations and is also included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Obligations Under Various Long-Term Borrowing Arrangements

We have various long-term loans with a major vendor and several local banks. In Latin America we owe approximately $18.8 million
under various long-term borrowing arrangements at December 31, 2010. These obligations have maturities ranging from 1 year to 5
years that bear interest at rates ranging from 4.3% to 10.0%. Periodic payments on the loans that require regular monthly or quarterly
payments, in aggregate, equate to approximately $63,000 per month. The remaining loans require principal repayment upon maturity of
the loan. These loans are generally secured by substantially all of our Latin American accounts receivable and/or inventory.

In the South Pacific we owe approximately $2.8 million under various long-term borrowing arrangements at December 31, 2010. These
obligations mature in March 2014 and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.5% to 6.0%. Periodic payments on the loans that require
regular monthly payments total approximately $36,000 per month, increasing to $46,000 through 2014. The remaining loans require
principal repayment upon maturity of the loan. These loans are secured by certain South Pacific assets such as property, plant and
equipment or our equity investment in certain South Pacific subsidiaries.

As discussed in Note 13, our operations in American Samoa are obligated under a loan agreement with ANZ Finance for a maximum
amount of $5,800,000. Of this amount, $800,000 is in the form of a term loan and up to $5,000,000 is in the form of a revolving line of
credit.

Maturities of our long-term debt are as follows as of December 31, 2010:

For the Year Ending December 31,

2011 $ 15,343,251
2012 9,910,304
2013 6,331,353
2014 3,500,217
2015 1,840,791
Thereafter 7,172,881
Total $ 44,098,797

NOTE 15 - Contribution Agreement

On July 29, 2010, we entered into a Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution Agreement”) with Amper. As discussed in Note 14, on
May 24, 2010, we entered into a Strategic Alliance Agreement with Amper pursuant to which, among other things, the parties agreed to
evaluate a potential equity transaction. Pursuant to this Contribution Agreement, Amper agreed to acquire 150,745,913 shares of our
newly issued common stock in exchange for the contribution to eLandia by Amper of approximately 90% of the outstanding capital
stock of Hemisferio Norte Brasil, S.L. (“Hemisferio”). Hemisferio has one wholly-owned direct subsidiary, Hemisferio Sul
Participacoes Ltda. (“Hemisferio Sul”), and two indirect subsidiaries, Medidata and XC Comercial e Exportadora Ltda. (“XC”).
Hemisferio Sul owns 88.96% of Medidata, and Medidata owns 100% of XC. Hemisferio, Hemisferio Sul, Medidata and XC are
collectively referred to in the Contribution Agreement as the “Contributed Entities.” The shares of our common stock to be issued to
Amper under the Contribution Agreement will represent approximately 85% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock
following the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement.
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The Contribution Agreement contains standard representations and warranties from each of the parties including securities investment
representations from Amper as well as representations from each of the parties regarding financial statements, regulatory filings, legal
compliance, pending litigation and tax matters. Under the Contribution Agreement, we are required to register the shares of our common
stock being issued to Amper pursuant to the terms of a mutually agreeable registration rights agreement.

Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement, we were granted an option to acquire the balance of Amper’s interest in Hemisferio for
an option price equal to $8.9 million. The option may be exercised for a six-month period following the closing and the option price is
payable by us through the issuance to Amper of additional shares of our common stock at a price per share equal to the fair market value
of our common stock as of the option exercise date.

The closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement was subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions
including, among others, the following: (i) the parties obtaining all applicable third party consents including the approval of the U.S.
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Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) and eLandia obtaining a consent to the Contribution Agreement and general release and
acknowledgment from the receiver for SIBL, (ii) execution of new employment agreements by our chief executive and chief financial
officers, (iii) certain of our executive officers waiving their severance rights under their current employment contracts, and (iv) our
receipt of a fairness opinion from an investment bank.

On December 9, 2010, we entered into a First Amendment to Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution Agreement Amendment”).
Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement Amendment, which was effective as of December 2, 2010, the termination date of the
Contribution Agreement was extended to April 30, 2011. In addition, the Contribution Agreement Amendment provided that if Amper
expected that the FCC consents necessary to complete the transactions under the Contribution Agreement could not be obtained prior to
February 1, 2011, Amper could seek to acquire Desca Holdings and CTT Holdings in an alternative transaction. We agreed to use all
commercially reasonable efforts to finalize the terms and conditions of such alternative transaction by February 1, 2011.

In addition, certain conditions to the closing of the Contribution Agreement transaction were modified or deleted. In this regard, we
were required to take the following actions prior to the closing of the transaction, including among others: (a) establish a senior
management compensation plan for our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer as well as variable compensation plans
applicable to all of our employees and (b) obtain evidence of the termination of that certain Voting Trust Agreement by and among
SIBL, Pete Pizarro and the Company dated February 6, 2009. In addition, pursuant to the Contribution Agreement Amendment the
requirement for stockholder approval for the consummation of the transaction was deleted.

Finally, the Contribution Agreement Amendment modified the termination provisions of the Contribution Agreement and extended the
closing date to April 30, 2011.

As more fully described in Note 24, on March 31, 2011, we conducted a closing in escrow under the Contribution Agreement, whereby
Amper will acquire 150,745,913 shares of our newly issued common stock in exchange for the contribution to eLandia of approximately
79.7% of the outstanding capital stock of Medidata.

NOTE 16 — Capital Lease Obligations

We are obligated under various capital leases under which the aggregate present value of the minimum lease payments amounted to
approximately $3.1 million. The present value of the minimum lease payments was calculated using discount rates ranging from 3.0% to
15.3%.
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The future minimum lease payments under all capital leases at December 31, 2010 are as follows:

For the Year Ending December 31,

2011 $ 1,551,181
2012 1,203,311
2013 674,643
2014 88,191
2015 —
Thereafter —
3,517,326
Less Amounts Representing Interest 396,631
Principal Portion 3,120,695
Less Current Portion 1,514,522
Capital Lease Obligations, net of Current Portion $ 1,606,173

The capital lease obligations are collateralized by underlying vehicles and equipment. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the gross
amount of property and equipment under non-cancelable capital leases was $6.0 million and $3.9 million, respectively, and the amount
of accumulated amortization was $1.9 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

As of December 31, 2010, the total minimum sublease rentals to be received in the future under noncancelable subleases amounted to
$4.6 million.
NOTE 17 — Commitments and Contingencies
Strategic Alliance

In September 2010, we entered into an agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced us $5.5 million (unrelated to the
Exclusivity Advance, as discussed in Note 14), secured by the proceeds of various customer contracts held by Desca. The advance is
due to be repaid in April 2011 and includes approximately $1.8 million of interest expense. The advance is included in customer
deposits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2010. Interest expense amounted to $1.8 million which is
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recorded as a component of interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and is also included in accrued
expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010.

Operating Lease Agreements

We lease space for operations; sales, marketing and customer support; and general and administrative purposes as well as machinery,
vehicles, and network equipment under lease agreements that expire at various dates through December 2029. Certain leases have
renewal options at reduced rates and provisions requiring us to pay maintenance, property taxes and insurance. Generally, all rental
payments are fixed. Management has determined that certain leases expiring within the next year will be renewed at substantially
similar terms as those currently in effect. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the aggregate rent expense for all operating
leases was $4.2 million and $4.0 million, respectively. Future minimum commitments on the above agreements are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 $ 3,452,046
2012 2,256,838
2013 2,217,990
2014 2,243,775
2015 1,583,311
Thereafter 2,034,230

513,788,190

Employment Agreements

We have entered into employment agreements with several of our executives and key officers for initial terms of one to four years,
which can or will be renewed for an additional one to two years thereafter, unless written notice is provided by the respective parties.
The agreements provide, among other things, for the payment of aggregate annual base salaries of approximately $825,000, as well as
such incentive compensation and discretionary bonuses as the Board of Directors may determine. In addition, the employment
agreements provide for up to two years of severance compensation for terminations under certain circumstances. Aggregate potential
severance compensation amounted to approximately $1.2 million at December 31, 2010.
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Modification to Mr. Pizarro’s Employment Agreement

On February 6, 2009, we entered into an amendment to Mr. Pizarro’s Executive Employment Agreement (the “Amendment”). Under
the Amendment, Mr. Pizarro waived any breach by us by reason of our entry into the Modification Agreement and released us of any
liabilities resulting from such breach. In consideration of Mr. Pizarro agreeing to enter into the Amendment, we agreed to provide
certain additional compensatory benefits to Mr. Pizarro as follows:

The exercise price with respect to options to purchase 3,122,000 shares of our common stock previously granted pursuant to the
Mr. Pizarro’s Executive Employment Agreement was reduced from $3.07 to $0.45 per share;

Mr. Pizarro was granted options to purchase an additional 1,000,000 shares of our common stock at $0.45 per share, which
. options vest equally on a monthly basis over a three-year period beginning February 2009, if and only if Mr. Pizarro remains
continuously employed by us until each vesting date, subject to other terms and conditions;

All “unvested” shares of our common stock granted pursuant to Mr. Pizarro as part of a 750,000 share restricted stock award
. pursuant to Mr. Pizarro’s Executive Employment Agreement immediately vested, and all contractual restrictions with respect to
such shares were terminated (see Note 22); and

Mr. Pizarro’s full bonus for 2008 in the amount of $375,000, as provided in his Executive Employment Agreement, was paid
promptly following the execution of the Amendment.

In addition, Mr. Pizarro’s Executive Employment Agreement was further amended to provide as follows:

during 2009, Mr. Pizarro was paid a guaranteed bonus of $375,000, payable in equal bi-monthly installments commencing in
February 2009;

we amended our Policy Governing Insider Trading (the “Policy”) to permit, with our approval, (a) the adoption of written plans
. for trading our securities in accordance with SEC Rule 10b5-1(c) (a “Trading Plan”), and (b) transactions exempt from the
Policy made pursuant to approved Trading Plans from the Policy;
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following the amendment to the Policy described above, we agreed to approve a Trading Plan for Mr. Pizarro for certain shares
of our common stock owned by Mr. Pizarro; and

. we agreed to adopt a written Senior Management Incentive Compensation Plan applicable to years 2010 and beyond.
As more fully described in Note 24, on March 31, 2011, we further amended Mr. Pizarro’s Executive Employment Agreement.
Resignation of Executives

On March 31, 2009, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Oscar Coen, our former Vice President of Business Development.
The Separation Agreement was effective February 28, 2009 and provides for, among other things, severance pay for a period of 12
months and contains a mutual release. The Separation Agreement terminates the employment agreement previously entered into by us
and Mr. Coen except, among other provisions, the confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitation covenants which survive the
termination of the employment agreement. Accordingly, we recorded $194,000 of compensation expense as of December 31, 2009 in
connection with our obligation under the Separation Agreement with Mr. Coen.

On August 13, 2010, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Javier Rodriguez, our former Vice President of Marketing. The
Separation Agreement was effective June 30, 2010 and provides for, among other things, severance pay for a period of 12 months and
contained a mutual release. The Separation Agreement terminates the employment agreement previously entered into by us and

Mr. Rodriguez except, among other provisions, the confidentiality, non-competition and non-solicitation covenants which survived the
termination of the employment agreement. Accordingly, we recorded $200,000 of compensation expense as of December 31, 2010 in
connection with our obligation under the Separation Agreement with Mr. Rodriguez.

On October 5, 2010, we entered into a Separation Agreement with Alvarado. Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, Alvarado’s
employment relationship with Desca was terminated without cause. Alvarado previously served as principal executive officer of Desca.
As part of his separation from Desca, Alvarado has resigned from all positions held with Desca, its subsidiaries and affiliates in each
Latin American jurisdiction in which such entities operate. The Separation Agreement provides for severance pay for a period of 12
months and includes a standard waiver and general release by Alvarado of any and all claims he may have against the Company, Desca
or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates.

As part of the Separation Agreement, Alvarado reaffirmed and ratified the terms of his existing non-compete agreement which contains
customary non-compete, non-solicitation, non-disclosure and non-disparagement covenants. Such non-compete agreement shall remain
in force for a 12-month period following the effective date of the Separation Agreement. Accordingly, we recorded $250,000 of
compensation expense as of December 31, 2010 in connection with our obligation under the Separation Agreement with Alvarado.
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Financial Collapse of SIBL and its Affiliates

In early 2009, pursuant to an action brought by the SEC against SIBL and certain of its affiliates, including its owner Robert Allen
Stanford, alleging, among other things, securities law fraud under both the Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division issued orders to freeze the assets of SIBL and
certain of its affiliates and to appoint a receiver to prevent the waste and disposition of such assets.

On May 15, 2009, the district court in Dallas ruled that the Antiguan liquidators for SIBL are entitled to seek Chapter 15 bankruptcy
protection for SIBL under U.S. law. A Chapter 15 filing assists in resolving cases involving debtors, assets and claimants in multiple
countries. The Antiguan liquidators for SIBL are seeking the authority to file for bankruptcy as a means of safeguarding SIBL’s assets.
The Antiguan liquidators for SIBL and the U.S. Receiver have since agreed, subject to approval of the stipulation by the District Court
for the Northern District of Texas and the Antiguan court, to settle the pending litigation between them regarding SIBL in the United
States. The Antiguan liquidators will withdraw their petition for Recognition of Foreign Main Proceeding Pursuant to Chapter 15 of the
U.S. Bankruptcy Code and will not oppose or interfere with the U.S. Receiver’s status in the United States nor his efforts to take control
of assets, and the proceeds of sale of assets, located in the United States.

On June 2, 2009, we received a letter from the U.S. receiver clarifying that the assets and business operations of eLandia and our
subsidiaries are not part of the Stanford Financial Group Receivership Estate. The receiver’s letter did state that the voting trust
certificates issued to SIBL, representing SIBL’s interest in the shares of our capital stock deposited in the Voting Trust, did constitute
part of the Stanford Financial Group Receivership Estate.

On July 16, 2009, the receiver requested approval from the court to engage a private equity advisor to assist the receiver to properly
manage the investments in the Receivership Estate, assess their value and identify potential buyers, thereby maximizing the value to the
Receivership Estate. These investments include the voting trust certificates issued to SIBL representing SIBL’s interest in the shares of
our capital stock deposited in the voting trust.

As more fully described in Note 24, In connection with the closing of the transactions contemplated in the Contribution Agreement, on
March 31, 2011, we terminated the Voting Trust Agreement.

Foreign Operations
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Our operations in various geographic regions expose us to risks inherent in doing business in each of the countries in which we transact
business. Operations in countries other than the United States are subject to various risks particular to each country. With respect to any
particular country, these risks may include:

* Expropriation and nationalization of our assets or our customers in that country;

* Political and economic instability;

* Civil unrest, acts of terrorism, force majeure, war or other armed conflict;

* Natural disasters including those related to earthquakes, hurricanes, tsunamis and flooding;

« Inflation;

* Currency fluctuations, devaluations, conversion and expropriation restrictions;

* Confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies;

* Governmental activities that limit or disrupt markets, payments, or limit the movement of funds;

» Governmental activities that may result in the deprivation of contract rights; and

* Trade restrictions and economic embargoes imposed by the United States and other countries.
Venezuela

In recent years Venezuela has experienced political challenges, difficult economic conditions, relatively high levels of inflation,

and foreign exchange and price controls. The President of Venezuela has the authority to legislate certain areas by decree, and the
government has nationalized or announced plans to nationalize certain industries and to expropriate certain companies and property.
These factors may have a negative impact on our business and our financial condition.

Since 2003, Venezuela has imposed currency controls and created the Commission of Administration of Foreign Currency (“CADIVI”)
with the task of establishing detailed rules and regulations and generally administering the exchange control regime. These controls fix
the exchange rate between the Bolivar and the U.S. Dollar, and restrict the ability to exchange Bolivar Fuertes for U.S. Dollars and vice
versa. The near-term effect has been to restrict our ability to pay dollar denominated obligations and repatriate funds from Venezuela in
order to meet our cash requirements. In particular, the currency controls in Venezuela have restricted our ability to make payments to
certain vendors in U.S. Dollars, causing us to borrow money to meet these obligations and to be subject to credit holds by vendors,
which have caused delays in the delivery of customer orders thus delaying or causing the loss of sales.
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Prior to 2010, the official exchange rate has remained steady over the last few years despite significant inflation. The exemptions
provided by Venezuela’s Criminal Exchange Law for transactions in certain securities has resulted in the establishment of a legal
indirect “parallel” market of foreign currency exchange, through which companies may obtain foreign currency without requesting it
from the government. The exchange rate in the parallel market (parallel rate) is variable and was about 65 percent less favorable in 2009
when compared with the official rate. The acquisition of foreign currency by Venezuelan companies to honor foreign debt, pay
dividends or otherwise expatriate capital is subject to registration and subject to a process of application and approval by the CADIVI
and to the availability of foreign currency within the guidelines set forth by the National Executive Power for the allocation of foreign
currency. Such approvals have become less forthcoming over time, resulting in a significant increase in our exchange rate and exchange
control risks. We cannot predict if and when we will obtain CADIVI approval to honor foreign debt, distribute dividends or otherwise
expatriate capital using the official Venezuelan exchange rate or the timing of receipt of such approval. For the year ended

December 31, 2009, we submitted approximately $27 million for CADIVI approval, of which approximately $21 million had been
approved and released to us as of December 31, 2009. An additional $2 million was approved and released subsequent to December 31,
2009. In light of the ongoing currency exchange control limitations in Venezuela and the increasing cash balance in the Company’s
Venezuelan subsidiary, starting in January 2009 the Company began to settle certain of its U.S. Dollar-denominated liabilities with
dollars obtained through the parallel market at an exchange rate less favorable than the official rate. In 2009, the Company recorded a
$1.9 million net pretax loss on foreign currency to convert Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes generated by its business to U.S. Dollars at this
parallel rate.

Historically, we have utilized the official rate for the remeasurement of our Venezuelan subsidiary from the Bolivar Fuerte to the U.S.
Dollar. As of December 31, 2009, we changed the rate we used to remeasure and translate our Venezuelan subsidiary’s transactions and
balances from the official exchange rate to the parallel exchange rate, which approximated 5.97 Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes to the

U.S. Dollar on December 31, 2009. The resulting foreign currency exchange loss of approximately $4.4 million was recorded in our
consolidated statement of operations as of December 31, 2009. Our considerations for changing the rate included indications that the
Venezuelan government is not likely to continue to provide substantial currency exchange at the official rate for companies importing
nonessential products, difficulties in obtaining approval for the conversion of local currency to U.S. Dollars at the official exchange rate
(for imported products, royalties and distributions), and delays in obtaining payment approvals.
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On January 11, 2010, the Venezuelan government devalued the Venezuelan Bolivar Fuerte and changed to a two-tier exchange
structure. The official exchange rate moved from 2.15 Bolivar Fuertes per U.S. Dollar to 2.60 for essential goods and 4.30 for non-
essential goods and services, with our products generally falling into the non-essential category. For any U.S. Dollar we obtain at the
official rate to pay for the purchase of imported goods, we will realize benefits in our statements of operations associated with the
favorable exchange rate, as compared to the parallel rate.

We continued to value our net monetary assets using the parallel exchange rate until May 17, 2010, at which time the Venezuelan
government enacted reforms to its foreign currency exchange control regulations (“the exchange control regulations”) to close down the
parallel exchange market and announced its intent to implement an alternative market under the control of the Venezuela Central Bank.
On June 9, 2010, the Venezuelan government introduced a newly regulated foreign currency exchange system, Sistema de
Transacciones con Titulos en Moneda Extranjera (“SITME”), which is controlled by the Central Bank of Venezuela (“BCV”). Foreign
currency exchange transactions not conducted through CADIVI or SITME may not comply with the exchange control regulations, and
could therefore be considered illegal. The SITME imposes volume restrictions on the conversion of Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes to U.S.
Dollars, currently limiting such activity to a maximum equivalent of $350,000 per month.

As aresult of the enactment of the reforms to the exchange control regulations, we changed the rate we use to remeasure Venezuelan
Bolivar Fuerte-denominated transactions from the parallel exchange rate to the SITME rate specified by the BCV, which was quoted at
5.3 Venezuelan Bolivar Fuertes per U.S. Dollar on December 31, 2010. Since this new translation rate was more favorable than the
parallel rate, we recorded a gain of $2.6 million for the nine months ended December 31, 2010. This gain offset the $2.2 million loss
recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2010 resulting from the less favorable parallel rate as of March 31, 2010 compared to
December 31, 2009.

Fiji
In April 2009, the Reserve Bank of Fiji announced that Fiji’s currency had been devalued by 20% effective April 16, 2009, the President
of Fiji annulled the country’s constitution, terminated all the judges in the country and declared himself the head of state. This triggered
an impairment charge to our goodwill in Fiji during the year ended December 31, 2009 and is expected to result in economic instability

and an uncertain business climate in Fiji. As a result of these factors and the uncertainty caused by such factors, in December 2009 our
Board of Directors approved management’s proposal to dispose of our operations in Fiji (see Note 6).
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On June 24, 2010, we entered into a settlement agreement with Sir James Ah Koy, Michael Ah Koy; Kelton Investments Ltd. (“Kelton
Investments”); Kelton; Datec; Anthony Ah Koy; Carolyn Ah Koy; and Monica Ah Koy pursuant to which we agreed to transfer our
interests in Datec Fiji in exchange for the return of 150,000 shares of our common stock.

Current Economic Crisis

The recent global economic crisis has caused a general tightening in the credit markets, lower levels of liquidity, increases in the rates of
default and bankruptcy, and extreme volatility in credit, equity and fixed income markets. These conditions not only limit our access to
capital, but also make it difficult for our customers, our vendors and us to accurately forecast and plan future business activities, and
could cause U.S. and foreign businesses to slow spending on our products and services, which would delay and lengthen sales cycles.
Furthermore, during challenging economic times our customers may face issues, including:

+ the inability to obtain credit to finance purchases of our products;
* customer insolvencies;

* decreased customer confidence to make purchasing decisions;

* decreased customer demand; and

* decreased customer ability to pay their trade obligations.

In addition, the recent economic crisis could adversely impact our suppliers’ ability to provide us with materials and components, either
of which may negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Ah Koy Litigation

Fiji Action
On February 24, 2009, Kelton and Datec, as plaintiffs, filed in the High Court of Fiji at Suva (the “Fiji Court”) an Ex Parte Notice of
Motion for Interim Injunction (the “Motion”). The Motion named as defendants Generic Technology Limited (“Generic’), Datec Pacific
Holdings Ltd., eLandia, the Receiver for Stanford, and the Registrar of Companies. The Motion sought an interim injunction preventing
certain defendants from, among other things, appointing new directors or removing existing directors from the board of directors of

Generic and other entities and also preventing certain defendants from disposing of shares in Generic or its subsidiaries. On
February 27, 2009, the Fiji Court entered an order granting this relief on an ex parte basis.

On March 31, 2009, Kelton and Datec filed a Statement of Claim in the Fiji Action. In essence, the Statement of Claim alleged that the
Amended and Restated Arrangement Agreement dated August 8, 2005 (“Arrangement Agreement”) pursuant to which eLandia acquired
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the subsidiaries of Datec was induced by untrue representations related to the capital to be devoted to those subsidiaries and alleged
investigations of Stanford. It asserted claims for fraudulent misrepresentation, proper construction and enforceability of certain Stock
Purchase Agreements in which claims against eLandia were released, breach of Stock Purchase Agreements, breach of the Arrangement
Agreement, and equitable estoppel. As relief, it sought, among other things, rescission of the Arrangement Agreement and Stock
Purchase Agreements, a declaration as to the scope of the Stock Purchase Agreements, injunctive relief, and damages. On June 24,
2010, we entered into a settlement agreement with the plaintiffs in this case, among others, pursuant to which: (i) 150,000 shares of our
common stock were transferred to us in exchange for our interests in Datec Fiji and Datec Australia, (ii) the parties agreed to dismiss all
pending legal proceedings between them, (iii) the parties exchanged mutual general releases, and (iv) the parties agreed to be subject to
certain non-interference, and non-disparagement covenants. This action was dismissed on August 12, 2010.

eLandia International Inc. v. Sir James Ah Koy, et al.

On March 9, 2009, we filed an action in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, Miami Division (the
“Court”), against Sir James Ah Koy, Michael Ah Koy, Kelton, and Datec. In essence, we alleged that Sir James Ah Koy and his son,
Michael Ah Koy, Kelton, and Datec improperly acted to preclude the sale of our interests in the South Pacific. Among other things, we
asserted that the defendants improperly employed claims and complaints about the Arrangement Agreement that they have released to
favor their own interests at the expense of the Company’s. We asserted claims for breach of fiduciary duty, aiding and abetting breach
of fiduciary duty, conspiracy to breach fiduciary duty, declaratory judgment under various agreements, breach of the implied covenant
of good faith and fair dealing, breach of contract, and tortious interference with business relations. We sought a declaratory judgment,
an injunction, compensatory damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees, and costs.

On June 24, 2010, we entered into the settlement agreement described above and this action was dismissed on June 25, 2010.
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Latin Node FCPA Investigation

On September 14, 2007, following its acquisition, we engaged in a review of Latin Node’s internal controls and legal compliance
procedures within its finance and accounting departments as part of our acquisition and integration of Latin Node. As a result of this
review, certain past payments made to third parties prior to our acquisition of Latin Node on June 28, 2007 were identified as having
been made in the absence of adequate records and controls for a U.S. public company. We conducted an internal investigation to
determine whether any direct or indirect payments by employees of Latin Node or consultants used by Latin Node prior and subsequent
to its acquisition by us were made in violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”). The internal investigation of the FCPA
matter was conducted by a Special Committee of our Board of Directors. The Special Committee retained independent legal counsel to
assist in the investigation of the FCPA matter.

The internal investigation preliminarily revealed that certain payments from Latin Node prior to our acquisition of Latin Node may have
been made in violation of the FCPA. We voluntarily and proactively reported these potential violations to the SEC, the United States
Department of Justice, and the Federal Bureau of Investigation and cooperated fully with these agencies regarding this matter.
Following settlement discussions with the Department of Justice, Latin Node agreed to enter into a plea agreement to resolve the matter
by the payment of a monetary penalty of $2 million for the actions that occurred prior to Latin Node’s acquisition by us. On March 23,
2009, the Department of Justice filed charges in the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida against Latin Node
for actions taken by Latin Node prior to the time that we made our investment in Latin Node. On April 3, 2009, the matter was resolved
and the court approved the plea agreement reached with the Department of Justice. In accordance with the terms of the settlement
agreement, we paid $500,000 promptly following the settlement date, and the remaining $1,500,000 will be paid in three equal
installments of $500,000 each by January 31, 2010, January 31, 2011 and January 31, 2012, respectively. On March 22, 2010, the court
approved a modified payment schedule such that the $500,000 payment originally due on January 31, 2010 will now be paid in the
following manner: $50,000 on March 31, 2010, $125,000 on May 15, 2010, $125,000 on July 15,2010, $125,000 on October 15, 2010
and $75,000 on December 15, 2010. On March 17, 2011, the court approved a modified payment schedule such that the January 31,
2011 payment of $500,000 will now be paid by making payments of $50,000 on the fifteenth of every month until December 15, 2011,
when we will pay the balance on any arrears. The remaining January 31, 2012 payment remains unchanged but may be accelerated upon
completion of a number of conditions agreed upon by the Department of Justice and eLandia.

Latin Node Litigation

On January 22, 2008, an action was commenced against Latin Node in the 11th Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida,
by Juan Pablo Vasquez, Olivia de la Salas, and Gloria Vasquez, former employees of Latin Node (the “Plaintiffs’). The Plaintiffs were
terminated with “cause” by Latin Node and have brought an action for breach of contract. The Plaintiffs sought damages (including but
not limited to severance pay and compensation for accrued but unused vacation pay), together with attorneys’ fees. On June 26, 2009,
the court entered a notice of lack of prosecution in this case and directed the parties to appear on September 18, 2009 for a hearing on
the court’s motion of dismissal for lack of prosecution in the case. On September 21, 2009, the court issued an order dismissing the
action for lack of prosecution.

Assignment for the Benefit of Creditors — Latin Node
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On June 12, 2008, Latin Node filed for an assignment for benefit of creditors in the 11th Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County,
Florida. As part of this proceeding, all of the assets of Latin Node were transferred to Michael Phelan, Esq., assignee. On July 17, 2008,
most of these assets were sold to the highest bidder, Business Telecommunications Services, Inc. (“BTS”). The immediate proceeds
from the sale of these assets were used to pay administrative costs. A final court order approving the disposition of the proceeds from
the sale of all other assets was scheduled for May 21, 2009. However, on May 20, 2009, Empresa Hondurefia de Telecomunicaciones
filed a Motion for Continuance or in the alternative, a Motion to stay the hearing. At a hearing held on September 17, 2009, the court
appointed a Special Examiner to conduct an examination and determine whether the claims made by Hondutel were well-taken. The
Special Examiner’s report was issued on February 16, 2010. The Special Examiner determined that Latin Node and/or eLandia did not
act improperly in this matter. On April 27, 2010 the court granted the Order Approving Assignee’s Final Report, Fixing Fees,
Discharging Assignee and Closing Case on this matter. As a result of the court order, the assignment for the benefit of creditors
proceeding was concluded after the expiration of Hondutel’s right to appeal thirty days from the date of the court order.

Action Against Granados et al., for Indemnification

On June 27, 2008, we filed an action against Jorge Granados, individually and Retail Americas VoIP, LLC, a Delaware limited liability
company (“RAV?) in the 11th Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida. The action asserted claims for contractual
indemnification, breach of contract, breach of the obligation of good faith and fair dealing, fraud, fraudulent inducement, unjust
enrichment, and specific performance against the escrow agent.

67
eLandia International Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

These claims arose from the transaction where we purchased 80% of the equity of Latin Node for $20 million pursuant to a preferred
stock purchase agreement. The gravamen of the action was that Jorge Granados and RAV failed to disclose as part of the preferred stock
purchase agreement that Latin Node had made payments to various parties in Central America in violation of the FCPA and one of Latin
Node’s vendors claimed that it was owed $4.4 million. In connection with the transaction, 375,000 shares of our common stock had
been deposited with an escrow agent to secure the indemnification obligations of the selling parties.

On February 12, 2009, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with Jorge Granados and RAV pursuant to which (i) the 375,000 shares
of our common stock issued to RAV in connection with the transaction were returned to us by the escrow agent (see Note 19), (ii) we
exchanged mutual general releases with Jorge Granados and RAV, (iii) Jorge Granados resigned as a director of Latin Node and a
manager of RAV, and (iv) Jorge Granados agreed to be subject to certain non-competition, non-solicitation and non-disclosure
covenants. The action was dismissed on March 13, 2009.

General Legal Matters

From time to time, we are involved in legal matters arising in the ordinary course of business. While we believe that such matters are
currently not material, there can be no assurance that matters arising in the ordinary course of business for which we are, or could be,
involved in litigation, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Customer and Vendor Concentrations

At December 31, 2010, we had one customer in our Latin American segment that represented approximately 17% of our gross accounts
receivable.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, one vendor in our Latin American segment represented approximately 58% of our consolidated
cost of products sales and services. At December 31, 2010, the amount due to this vendor was approximately 25% of our total accounts
payable.

NOTE 18 — Common Stock, Subject to Potential Redemption

Concurrent with the closing of our investment in Transistemas, we entered into a Put/Call Agreement with the former owners of
Transistemas (the “Sellers”) which provided for a put and call right pursuant to which on July 1, 2009, subject to certain terms as
defined in the agreement, (a) the Sellers could require that we purchase the 433,333 shares of our common stock for a cash purchase
price of $6.00 per share, as calculated in accordance with this agreement, or (b) we could require that the Sellers sell us the 433,333
shares of our common stock for a cash purchase price calculated in accordance with this agreement.

On July 1, 2009, the Sellers delivered notice to us of their intention to exercise the Put. Due to effects on our operations of the current
worldwide economic crisis, we determined that it would not be in our best interests to comply with the terms and conditions of the Put/
Call Agreement and, therefore, the Sellers claimed that we had breached our obligations under the Put/Call Agreement to purchase the
Put shares and, as a result, we owed the Sellers $2.6 million.

On August 27, 2009, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Sellers in full and final settlement of the Put/Call Agreement.
Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, we agreed to pay the Sellers $2.6 million as follows:

(1) $260,000 in cash payable on the date of the Settlement Agreement, and
(ii) $2,340,000 payable in the form of a non-interest bearing promissory note due on July 15, 2011.
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In addition, as an inducement to settle the Put obligation and execute the promissory note, we agreed to issue to the Sellers 433,333
shares of our common stock (see Note 19).

NOTE 19 - Stockholders’ Equity
Description of Authorized Capital

We are authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.00001 per share and 35,000,000 shares of
preferred stock with a par value of $0.00001 per share.

The preferred stock may be issued in series, with designations, preferences, conversion rights, cumulative, relative participating,
optional or other rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions as determined by our Board of Directors. We are currently authorized
to issue the following series of preferred stock:

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.00001 par value; 6,500,000 shares authorized. The Series A Convertible Preferred
Stock is convertible into shares of common stock at a conversion price of $5.00 per share and has a liquidation preference

. whereby holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive $5.00 per share prior to the distribution
of any assets to the holders of any common stock, and then shall be entitled to share with the holders of the common stock, the
remaining assets available for distribution.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, $0.00001 par value; 14,074,074 shares authorized. The Series B Preferred Stock is
convertible into common shares at a conversion price of $6.75 per share and has a liquidation preference whereby holders of the
Series B Preferred Stock shall be entitled to receive $6.75 per share prior to the distribution of any assets to the holders of any
common stock or other class of capital stock or equity.
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Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock

Effective February 6, 2009, we amended our Certificate of Incorporation with the filing of an Amended and Restated Certificate of
Designations, Rights and Preferences of Series B Preferred Stock (“Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation”). Under the

Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation, all voting rights of the Series B Preferred Stock were removed. As a result of the
Amended and Restated Certificate of Designation, the Series B Preferred Stock has the following protective provisions:

. a liquidation preference; and

at all times that shares of Series B Preferred Stock remain outstanding, we may not, without prior approval of the holders of the
majority of the Series B Preferred Stock outstanding:

. change the rights, preferences or privileges of the Series B Preferred Stock; or

. create a new class or series of stock having a preference over or otherwise being superior to the Series B Preferred Stock.

In addition, the Conversion Ratio for the Series B Preferred Stock, previously one share of our common stock for each share of Series B
Preferred Stock, was modified such that the shares of Series B Preferred Stock are now convertible into common stock based on a ratio
of 3.5 shares of common stock for every eight shares of Series B Preferred Stock.

On February 16, 2009, the United States District Court issued a temporary restraining order on behalf of the SEC against R. Allen
Stanford, three Stanford companies, including SIBL, and two company executives freezing all corporate and personal assets of the
companies and the three executives. Subsequent to the issuance of the court order, and in accordance with such order, we have not
canceled any shares of our common stock, nor have we issued any shares of our Series B Preferred Stock or converted any shares of our
Series B Preferred Stock into common stock pursuant to the terms of the Modification Agreement (see Note 24).

Voting Trust Agreement

In connection with the termination of the Bridge Loan Agreement, SIBL agreed to place 12,364,377 shares of our common stock and
4,118,263 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, representing all shares of our capital stock then owned by SIBL, into a voting trust.
Pursuant to a Voting Trust Agreement, SIBL appointed Mr. Pizarro to act as the trustee. With certain limited exceptions, Mr. Pizarro
was granted discretionary voting power with respect to all shares of stock placed in the voting trust by SIBL. However, Mr. Pizarro was
required to vote the shares in accordance with and in the same proportion as the holders of the remaining outstanding shares of our
common stock voting on any of the following matters (which will be determined by a vote of the shares other than those represented by
the voting trust certificates): (i) the sale of the Company whether by merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all the assets or
other similar transaction; and (ii) if the Company desires to increase the amount of shares of our common stock issuable pursuant to any
stock option or other equity plan in an amount exceeding the greater of 9,500,000 shares of our common stock or 15% of the total
amount of outstanding common stock. Additionally, SIBL retained its right to vote with respect to certain issues pertaining to the Series
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B Preferred Stock including any change to the rights, preferences or privileges of the Series B Preferred Stock or the creation of a new
class or series of stock superior to the Series B Preferred Stock.

Under the Voting Trust Agreement, SIBL agreed that the shares in the voting trust could not be transferred during the term of the voting
trust. Notwithstanding these lock up provisions, SIBL could instruct the trustee to transfer, during any three month period, an amount of
shares of our common stock equivalent to 1% of the then total outstanding shares of common stock. Any such transfers were to be made
in compliance with the limitations of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933. The Voting Trust Agreement was to terminate on the
earlier of (a) five years from the date of the agreement, (b) the consummation of a change in control transaction, or (c) the date upon
which SIBL owns less than 25% of our common stock.

As more fully described in Note 24, on March 24, 2011, the United States District Court approved our motion to terminate the Voting
Trust Agreement. Accordingly, in connection with the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement, we
terminated the Voting Trust Agreement on March 30, 2011.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

On February 6, 2009, in connection with the Modification Agreement with SIBL (see Note 14), we issued 1,777,778 shares of our
Series B Preferred Stock. In addition, we granted SIBL the Option, exercisable through March 31, 2009, to purchase an additional
592,593 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase price of $4 million. The Option expired unexercised.
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Common Stock Issuances

On February 6, 2009, in connection with the Modification Agreement with SIBL, we cancelled 16,148,612 shares of our common stock
(see Note 14).

On February 6, 2009, in connection with Mr. Pizarro’s Amendment relating to the 750,000 restricted common shares granted to
Mr. Pizarro under his Executive Employment Agreement, 562,500 shares of the restricted common stock were vested and issued to him
(see Note 22).

In connection with the Settlement Agreement with Jorge Granados and RAV, we cancelled 375,000 shares of our common stock. The
shares were valued at $450,000, based on the closing price of our common stock on February 12, 2009, the settlement date.
Accordingly, we recorded a gain on the settlement of the litigation in the amount of $450,000, which is included in discontinued
operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2009.

In May 2009, we issued 1,900 shares of our common stock to persons attending an eLandia marketing event.

On July 17, 2009, under the terms of the 30% Purchase Agreement, we issued to Alvarado 2,500,000 shares of our common stock,
valued at $0.9 million based on the closing stock price of $0.34 on July 17, 2009 (see Note 5).

On August 27, 2009, pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, we issued to the former owners of Transistemas 433,333 shares
of our common stock valued of $156,000 based on a closing stock price of $0.36 on August 27, 2009 (see Note 18).

On September 30, 2009, we issued 350,000 shares of our common stock to the CTT Sellers, valued at $105,000 based on the closing
stock price of $0.30 on September 30, 2009 (see Note 9).

On March 17, 2010, we issued 100,000 shares of our common stock to a consultant for services to be provided over a period of twelve
months, commencing on April 1, 2010. The value of the shares, amounting to $30,000, is being amortized as consulting expense over
the term of the agreement.

In August 2010, we issued 10,000 shares of our common stock in exchange for a 30% interest in Desca Panama, S.A. thereby increasing
our ownership to 90%. The value of the shares was determined to be $5,500. The total consideration paid for the acquisition of this
interest was nominal.

On October 5, 2010, in connection with his Separation Agreement, Alvarado returned to us and we cancelled 2,500,000 shares of our
common stock. The value of the shares, amounting to $450,000, was recorded to additional paid in capital.

Common Stock Purchase Warrants

A summary of warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 is as follows:

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Exercise Exercise
Warrants Price Warrants Price

Outstanding at January 1 1,437,384 $ 3.682 1,437,384 $ 3.682
Issued — —
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Exercised — —

Cancelled (1,150,000) 3.080

Outstanding at December 31 287,384 $ 6.090

1,437,384

3.682

Weighted Average Fair Value Issued During the
Year

NOTE 20 — Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components of loss before income taxes from continuing operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2010
United States $ (22,195,309)
Foreign 1,941,795
Loss from continuing operations before provision for income taxes $ (20,253,514)
70

2009

(35,173,777)
(21,828,076)

(57,001,853)
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The provision for income taxes from continuing operations is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2010
Current tax provision:
United States $ —
Foreign 1,896,181
Total current 1,896,181
Deferred tax benefit:
United States (205,205)
Foreign (157,286)
Total deferred (362,491)
Total Provision (Benefit) $ 1,533,690

2009

95,367

95,367

323,145
(666,929)

(343,784)

(248.417)

Deferred income taxes are provided for the tax effects of temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of

assets and liabilities. Significant temporary differences at December 31, 2010 and 2009:

December 31,

2010
Current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 642,828
Inventory 547,392
Unbilled revenue 390,469
Other —
Venezuela reserve 833,914
Valuation allowance (1,947,568)
Total current deferred tax asset (liability) 467,035
Non-current deferred tax assets (liabilities):
Depreciation (191,231)
Argentina reserve 59,950
Stock compensation 1,666,871
Difference in amortizable intangibles 254,249
Difference in intangibles with indefinite lives (323,145)
Tax loss carryover 32,499,744
Charitable contribution carryforward 1,142
Valuation allowance (34,229,228)
Total non-current deferred tax asset (261,648)
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2009

266,852
142,023
(675,849)
513,948
(922,823)

(675,849)

(36,409)
1,228,624

(482,336)

(323,145)
36,533,403

(36,401,392)

518,745
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Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $ 205,387 $ (157,104)

Desca entities operate in different countries and are subject to taxation in separate jurisdictions. Therefore, we are required to calculate
and provide for income taxes in each of the separate jurisdictions on a global basis and the net operating losses of unprofitable entities
cannot be used to offset the income of more profitable entities. This involves making judgments regarding the recoverability of deferred
tax assets which can affect the overall effective tax rate. In addition, changes in the geographic mix or estimated level of pre-tax income
can affect the overall effective tax rate. The impact on income taxes from the operations of Fiji and Datec PNG have been excluded (see
Note 6).

At December 31, 2010, we had federal and Florida net operating loss (NOL) carryovers of $67,345,000 and $62,460,000 respectively,
which expire through 2030. We also had a capital loss in 2008 totaling $33,153,000 which expires December 31, 2013. In addition, at
December 31, 2010, we had foreign net operating loss carryovers of approximately $20,219,000 which will expire through 2017.
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We have $5,606,000 of NOL’s that are subject to limitations under Internal Revenue Code Section 382. This amount is expected to
increase upon the closing of the transaction with Amper (see Note 24).

As of December 31, 2010, our NOL and capital loss carryovers were completely offset by valuation allowances.

Tax years in which net operating loss carryovers were created remain open for examination until the related carryovers are either
utilized in future periods or expire. Open tax years for U.S. federal, state and local jurisdictions include the tax periods ended
December 31, 2007, through December 31, 2010. Open tax years for certain Latin American jurisdictions include the tax periods ended
December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2010. The Company is not currently under examination in any jurisdiction.

A valuation allowance is required to be established when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be
realized. In making this assessment, management considers the level of historical taxable income, scheduled reversal of deferred tax
liabilities, tax planning strategies, and projected future taxable income. The valuation allowance of $36,177,000 is comprised of
$32,500,000 that relates to the deferred tax asset for net operating losses ($25,342,000 of which is U.S. Federal and $7,158,000 of which
is foreign) that management has determined will more likely than not expire prior to realization and $3,677,000 which relates to other
temporary differences that management estimates will not be realized due to our tax losses.

We recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the provision for income taxes in our consolidated
statement of operations. Our policy for recording interest and penalties associated with audits is to record such items as a component of
income tax expense.

There have not been any material changes in our liability for unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, during the years
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. We do not currently anticipate that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly
increase or decrease within the next twelve months.

The following is a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate from continuing operations:

As of
December 31
2009 2008

U.S. statutory rate 34.0% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit 4.6 3.2
Difference between federal and foreign rates (1.1 (0.4)
Goodwill impairment — (4.9)
Other net (0.3) 0.7

37.2 32.6
Valuation allowance (44.8) (32.6)
Effective tax rate (7.6) 0.0%

No provision was made for U.S. or foreign taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are considered to be
permanently reinvested. Such earnings have been and will continue to be reinvested but could become subject to additional tax if they
were remitted as dividends, or were loaned to the Company or a U.S. affiliate, or if the Company should sell its stock in the foreign
subsidiaries. It is not practicable to determine the amount of additional tax, if any, that might be payable on the undistributed foreign
earnings.

Effective January 1, 2004, the American Samoa Government, approved a ten year tax exemption for the members of AST for all income
and excise taxes incurred within the Territory of American Samoa. The exemption was given for the purpose of promoting economic
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activity and employment within the Territory of American Samoa. AST must continue to meet certain investment requirements in order
for the exemption to continue.
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NOTE 21 — Related Party Transactions
Latin America

Our Latin American subsidiaries utilized the services of a professional consulting firm, in which we hold a 20% ownership. During
2010 and 2009, we paid approximately $0.1 million and $0.5 million, respectively, to such consulting firm to assist with the completion
of certain projects. This amount was included in general and administrative expenses on our consolidated statement of operations.

South Pacific

On February 14, 2003, we entered into a management agreement with Level Best, Inc. (“LBI”). Under the terms of the agreement, LBI
was to provide day to day management services to one of our South Pacific subsidiaries for a period of three years. Effective January 31,
2006, we amended and restated our management agreement with LBI. Under the terms of the new agreement, LBI supplied us with our
South Pacific subsidiary Chief Operating Officer through January 31, 2007 and to supply us with our Chief Technology Officer through
January 31, 2009. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, management fees charged under this agreement amounted to $0
and $33,700, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we paid $15,000 and $117,700, respectively, for lease payments, management fees
and legal fees to related parties.

NOTE 22 — Share Based Payments
2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan

In July 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the creation of the 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (“2007 SOIP”), which
authorizes the issuance of equity grants of up to 2,606,700 shares to certain key employees. On September 7, 2007, this action was
approved by a majority vote of the stockholders.

2008 Executive Incentive Plan

On September 12, 2008, we adopted the 2008 Executive Incentive Plan (“2008 Plan”). The purpose of the 2008 Plan is to promote our
future success and growth by providing stock options and other equity interests in eLandia to our employees, officers, directors,
consultants and advisors. The 2008 Plan provides for the issuance of options, restricted stock awards, unrestricted stock awards,
deferred stock awards, performance grants and incentive awards. The 2008 Plan provides for the issuance of both incentive stock
options (“ISO’s”) and non-qualified stock options (“NQO’s”). ISO’s may only be granted to officers and employees and NQO’s may be
granted to directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors. We have reserved 7,744,000 shares of common stock for issuance
under the 2008 Plan.

On June 4, 2009, we approved amendments to our 2008 Plan and our 2007 SOIP. The 2008 Plan was amended to permit the repricing of
stock options granted thereunder and to increase the number of shares of our common stock authorized and reserved for issuance
thereunder to 9,500,000. The 2007 SOIP was amended to permit the repricing of stock options granted thereunder.

Stock Options

Options granted under the 2008 Plan and the 2007 SOIP generally vest over periods of four years with 25% vesting on the 12 month
anniversary of the date the options were granted and monthly vesting thereafter of 1/48™ of the original grant. The options expire no
later than ten years from the date of grant. Compensation cost arising from share-based awards is recognized as expense using the
straight-line method over the vesting period and is included in selling, general and administrative expense in our consolidated statements
of operations.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we granted options to purchase 2,252,500 shares of our common stock at a weighted average
exercise price of $0.75 per share to certain employees and Directors. The weighted average fair value of the underlying common stock
was $0.32 per share based upon the closing trading price on the dates of grant. The options have a ten year contractual term and vest
over a period of four years. Weighted-average assumptions relating to the estimated fair value of these stock options on their date of
grant, which we estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model are as follows: risk-free interest rate of 3.7%; expected
dividend yield of zero percent; expected option life of six years; and volatility of 77%. The aggregate grant date fair value of the awards
amounted to $415,775. We recorded share-based compensation expense during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 of
$111,965 and $88,859, respectively, related to these awards.

On June 4, 2009, we approved a modification to the exercise price of all options outstanding under the 2008 Plan and 2007 SOIP,
whereby the exercise price of all such options was decreased to $0.45 per share, representing the average of the high and the low trading
price on that date. All other terms of the outstanding options remained the same. The fair market value of our common stock on the date
of modification was $0.30 per share. The weighted-average grant date fair value of the modified options utilizing the original exercise
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prices was $0.05 per share. The weighted-average grant date fair value of the modified options utilizing the modified exercise price was
$0.16 per share. Weighted-average assumptions relating to the estimated fair value of these stock options on the date of modification,
which we estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model are as follows: risk-free interest rate of 2.56%; expected dividend
yield of zero percent; expected option life of 4.9 years; and volatility of 77%. The modification resulted in an incremental fair value of
$638,025, of which $152,268 and $247,540 was recorded as compensation expense during the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively. Unrecognized compensation cost of $174,575 will be amortized over the remaining expected option life of 2 years.
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, we granted options to purchase 1,745,000 shares of our common stock at a weighted average
exercise price of $0.45 per share to certain employees and Directors. The weighted average fair value of the underlying common stock
was $0.19 per share based upon the closing trading price on the dates of grant. The options have a ten year contractual term and vest
over a period of four years. Weighted-average assumptions relating to the estimated fair value of these stock options on their date of
grant, which we estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model are as follows: risk-free interest rate of 2.33%; expected
dividend yield of zero percent; expected option life of six years; and volatility of 188.95%. The aggregate grant date fair value of the
awards amounted to $229,950. We recorded share-based compensation expense during the years ended December 31, 2010 of $26,348
related to these awards.

Forfeitures are required to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. Forfeiture rates were evaluated separately for officer and key employee grants and all other grants. A substantial
majority of the stock options still subject to vesting as of December 31, 2010 have been granted to certain officers and key employees
that are expected to fully vest. The remaining stock options granted to employees are expected to have a forfeiture rate of approximately
10%.

The expected term of stock options represents the average period the stock options are expected to remain outstanding and is calculated
using the approach prescribed for “plain vanilla” options. We used this approach as we did not have sufficient historical information to
develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and post-vesting employment termination behavior. The expected stock
price volatility for our stock options was determined by examining the historical volatilities for industry peers for periods that meet or
exceed the expected term of the options, using an average of the historical volatilities of our industry peers as we did not have sufficient
trading history for our common stock. We will continue to analyze the historical stock price volatility and expected term assumption as
more historical data for our common stock becomes available. The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on the U.S. Treasury
instruments whose term was consistent with the expected term of our stock options. The expected dividend assumption is based on our
history and expectation of dividend payouts.

A summary of stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Weighted
Number of Weighted Aver.ag.e Aggregate
Options Average Remaining Intrinsic Value
Exercise Price Contractual
Term

Balance at January 1, 2010 7,622,875 $ 0.45
Granted 1,745,000 045
Canceled (1,418,458) 0.45
Balance at December 31, 2010 7,949,417 $ 0.45 7.9 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 4,202,054 $ 0.45 7.7 $ —

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.13 and
$0.18, respectively. Total compensation cost recognized for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 for stock options granted to
employees amounted to $1.2 million and $1.3 million, respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to unvested stock
options at December 31, 2010 amounted to $1.3 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.2 years.

At December 31, 2010, there were 4,157,283 shares available under the combined plans to be granted at future dates.
Restricted Stock Awards

On March 10, 2008, we granted 750,000 restricted common shares to Mr. Pizarro, who was then serving as our President, prior to his
appointment as Chief Executive Officer. The restricted shares vested monthly over a three-year period. The fair value of the common
stock at the date of grant was $0.75 per share based upon our closing market price on the date of grant. The aggregate grant date fair
value of the award amounted to $562,500, which was to be recognized ratably as compensation expense over the vesting period. In
connection with Mr. Pizarro’s Amendment, 562,500 unvested shares of our common stock granted to Mr. Pizarro immediately vested,
and all contractual restrictions with respect to such shares were terminated. We recorded $411,458 of compensation expense during the
year ended December 31, 2009 with respect to this award.
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NOTE 23 — Segment Information

Our discontinued operations are comprised of (i) our 50% interest in Datec PNG; (ii) our operations in Fiji; and (iii) certain eLandia
predecessor companies that no longer conduct any operations.

Below is a summary of the results by segment for the year ended December 31, 2010:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2010

Corporate and

Latin America South Pacific Discontinued Consolidated
Operations

Revenue

Product Sales $ 81,826,832 § 544,696 $ — S 82,371,528

Services 54,054,720 14,495,468 — 68,550,188
Total Revenue 135,881,552 15,040,164 — 150,921,716
Cost of Revenue

Product Sales 65,711,617 553,692 — 66,265,309

Services 34,515,772 4,701,213 — 39,216,985
Total Cost of Revenue 100,227,389 5,254,905 — 105,482,294
Gross Profit 35,654,163 9,785,259 — 45,439,422

26.2% 65.1% 0.0% 30.1%

Expenses

Sales, Marketing and Customer Support 19,675,287 884,717 — 20,560,004

General and Administrative 18,234,543 3,187,501 7,416,278 28,838,322

Trasnaction Related Expenses — — 1,033,621 1,033,621

Depreciation and Amortization 2,525,914 3,740,021 136,373 6,402,308

Amortization — Intangible Assets — 335,820 — 335,820
Total Expenses 40,435,744 8,148,059 8,586,272 57,170,075
Operating Income (Loss) (4,781,581) 1,637,200 (8,586,272) (11,730,653)
Interest Expense, Net (5,680,683) (1,374,439) (451,697) (7,506,819)
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt 2,037,500 — — 2,037,500
Other Income (Expense) (2,939,040) (242,949) 128,447 (3,053,542)
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit (1,048,087) (485,603) — (1,533,690)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations — — 2,414,819 2,414,819
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to eLandia $ (12,411,891) $ (465,791) $ (6,494,703) $ (19,372,385)
Total Assets $ 116,962,373  $ 35,671,603 $ 495374 § 153,129,349
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Below is a summary of the results by segment for the year ended December 31, 2009:
For the Year Ended December 31, 2009
Corporate and
Latin America South Pacific Discontinued Consolidated
Operations

Revenue

Product Sales $ 110,639,219 $ 533,252 § — 3 111,172,471

Services 50,081,648 12,307,183 — 62,388,831
Total Revenue 160,720,867 12,840,435 — 173,561,302
Cost of Revenue

Product Sales 88,051,132 587,465 — 88,638,597

Services 32,457,159 4,339,352 — 36,796,511
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Total Cost of Revenue 120,508,291 4,926,817 — 125,435,108

Gross Profit 40,212,576 7,913,618 — 48,126,194
25.0% 61.6% 0.0% 27.7%
Expenses
Sales, Marketing and Customer Support 26,305,265 1,372,425 — 27,677,690
General and Administrative 25,800,356 2,983,879 11,452,837 40,237,072
Impairment of Intangible Assets and Goodwill 15,000,000 — — 15,000,000
Depreciation and Amortization 2,662,635 2,840,377 80,353 5,583,365
Amortization — Intangible Assets 3,481,546 952,921 — 4,434,467
Total Expenses 73,249,802 8,149,602 11,533,190 92,932,594
Operating Income (Loss) (33,037,226) (235,984) (11,533,190) (44,806,400)
Interest Expense, Net (4,384,401) (979,668) 5,511 (5,358,558)
Change in Value of Noncontrolling Interest Purchase 814,127 o o 814,127
Obligation
Other Income (Expense) (7,755,658) 426,493 (321,857) (7,651,022)
Income Tax (Expense) Benefit 66,387 182,030 — 248,417
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations — — (12,005,469) (12,005,469)
Net Income (Loss) Attributable to eLandia $ (44,296,771) $ (607,129) § (23,855,005) $ (68,758,905)
Total Assets $ 117,355,321 § 41,690,055 $ 652,117 $ 159,697,493

NOTE 24 — Subsequent Events

(M

2
3)
“)

)

(6)

United States District Court Order

On March 24, 2011, the United States District Court issued a court order approving our motion to:

authorize SIBL’s receiver to act on SIBL’s behalf in connection with the matters addressed in the court order or related Modification
Agreement between SIBL and eLandia;

direct SIBL’s receiver to agree to the termination of the Voting Trust Agreement;
convert the 4,118,263 shares of Series B Preferred Stock held by SIBL into 1,801,740 shares of our common stock;
cancel the above 1,801,740 shares of our common stock owned by SIBL;

direct SIBL’s receiver to release eLandia from any claims that SIBL’s receiver or the Receivership Estate may have with respect to
elLandia; and

direct SIBL’s receiver to refrain from taking any action in contravention to the Amper Transaction.

Termination of Voting Trust Agreement

In connection with the provisional closing of the transactions contemplated in the Contribution Agreement described below, on March
30,2011, we terminated the Voting Trust Agreement. Under the Voting Trust Agreement, SIBL had placed 12,364,377 shares of our
common stock and 4,118,263 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock, representing all shares of our capital stock owned by SIBL, into a
voting trust.

Upon the termination of the Voting Trust Agreement, the 12,364,377 shares of our common stock were reissued in the name of SIBL. In
addition, the 4,118,263 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock were automatically converted into 1,801,740 shares of our common stock
in accordance with the current conversion ratio as set forth in the Certificate of Designations, Rights and Preferences of the Series B
Preferred Stock. Such 1,801,740 shares of our common stock were immediately cancelled as required by the terms of that certain
Additional Modification Agreement, dated February 9, 2009, between SIBL and the Company. We obtained the consent and
acknowledgment of the receiver for SIBL for the issuances and cancellation of shares described above.
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Amper Transaction

On March 31, 2011, we executed and delivered certain closing documents under the Contribution Agreement subject to the closing
documents being held in escrow pending the receipt from our transfer agent a stock certificate representing 150,745,913 shares of our
common stock issued in the name of Amper and stock certificates representing the 5,223,517 capital shares of Hemisferio transferred to
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the name of the Company which transfer requires registration with certain Spanish and Brazilian authorities, and certain other related
legal opinions. The closing of the transactions contemplated by the Contribution Agreement was subject to various conditions, all of
which were satisfied, waived or deferred pursuant to the escrow arrangement prior to the closing, including: (i) obtaining the consent of
the FCC, (ii) receipt of a fairness opinion from our investment bank, (iii) receipt of waivers executed by our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer with respect to any severance obligations of the Company which may be triggered by the closing of the
Contribution Agreement transactions, and (iv) receipt of a consent of the receiver for SIBL to the transactions contemplated by the
Contribution Agreement. We expect that the requirements with respect to the recordation of the ownership of the Brazilian subsidiaries
of Hemisferio will occur prior to the end of May 2011. Upon receipt of these pending items by the escrow agent, the escrowed materials
will be released, the closing will be consummated and control will be transferred to the respective parties.

In connection with the closing of the Contribution Agreement transaction, on March 31, 2011 we entered into an Amended and Restated
Executive Employment Agreement with Mr. Pizarro (the “Pizarro Employment Agreement”) which superseded and replaced Mr.
Pizarro’s prior employment agreement. The Pizarro Employment Agreement has an initial term of four years. As in his previous
employment agreement, Mr. Pizarro will receive a base salary of $375,000 and may also receive an annual performance bonus of up to
100% of his base salary in accordance with criteria to be set by our Board of Directors in a written plan. As further inducement for
Amper to enter into the Contribution Agreement, Mr. Pizarro agreed to waive certain rights including the vesting of 4,200,000
previously issued and partially vested stock options, and agreed to the cancellation thereof, as well as his right to terminate his prior
employment agreement for “Good Reason” as a result of a change of control triggered by the Amper transaction and the severance
payments to which Mr. Pizarro would be entitled to as a result thereof. Mr. Pizarro was reissued options to purchase up to 4,200,000
shares of our common stock (the same amount as was cancelled by the Company), at an exercise price of $0.45 per share and subject to
a new vesting schedule. The options will vest as follows (i) 25% of the options will vest on the three year anniversary of the grant date,
and (i) 75% will vest equally, on a quarterly basis, over a 12-month period commencing on the three year anniversary of the grant date,
if and only if Mr. Pizarro remains continuously employed by the Company from the date of the Pizarro Employment Agreement until
each respective vesting date.

In exchange for and as consideration for the waiver of certain rights described above, Mr. Pizarro received the following: (a) 1,120,000
shares of Company common stock; and (b) $240,000 in cash which amount will be used in part to satisfy the income tax obligations
related to such consideration.

In connection with the closing of the Contribution Agreement transaction, on March 31, 2011 we entered into an Amendment of
Executive Employment Agreement with Harley L. Rollins, our chief financial officer (the “Rollins Employment Agreement”). Pursuant
to such amendment, the term of the Rollins Employment Agreement has been extended for a three-year term. Under the terms of the
Rollins Employment Agreement, as amended, Mr. Rollins will receive an annual base salary of $250,000 and he may also receive an
annual performance bonus of up to 50% of his base salary, based upon a written bonus plan to be approved by our Board of Directors.
As further inducement for Amper to enter into the Contribution Agreement, Mr. Rollins agreed to waive certain rights including the
vesting of 1,000,000 previously issued and partially vested stock options, and agreed to the cancellation thereof, as well as his right to
terminate the Rollins Employment Agreement for “Good Reason” as a result of a change of control triggered by the Amper transaction
and the severance payments to which Mr. Rollins would be entitled to as a result thereof. Mr. Rollins was reissued options to purchase
up to 1,000,000 shares of our common stock (the same amount as was cancelled by the Company), at an exercise price of $0.45 per
share and subject to a new vesting schedule. The options will vest as follows: (i) 25% of the options will vest on the three year
anniversary of the grant date, and (i1) 75% will vest equally, on a quarterly basis, over a twelve-month period commencing on the three
year anniversary of the grant date, if and only if Mr. Rollins remains continuously employed by the Company from the date of the
amendment until each respective vesting date.

In exchange for and as consideration for the waiver of certain rights described above, Mr. Rollins received the following: (a) 392,000
shares of Company common stock; and (b) 84,000 in cash which amount will be used in part to satisfy the income tax obligations
related to such consideration.

Unaudited consolidated pro forma information giving effect to the acquisition of Medidata as if the transaction had occurred on January
1, 2010 is not presented due to the impracticability of obtaining this information as the transaction has not effectively closed and control
has not been transferred to the respective parties. Approximate total tangible assets of Medidata as of December 31, 2010 amounted to
$91.2 million. Revenues and earnings before taxes for the year 2010 were approximately $101.2 million and $2.9 million, respectively.
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SamoaTel Acquisition

On March 31, 2011, our wholly-owned subsidiary, AST Telecom, LLC (“AST”), consummated the closing under a Share Sale and
Purchase Agreement with The Government of the Independent State of Samoa (“Samoa”) pursuant to which, among other things,
Bluesky SamoaTel Investments Limited (“BSI”), a subsidiary of AST, acquired 75% of the issued and outstanding capital shares of
SamoaTel Limited (“SamoaTel”) in exchange for $11 million. We own approximately 78% of BSI and the remaining 22% is owned by
other investors. SamoaTel is a provider of telecommunications products and services in Samoa and offers a full range of services
including fixed line, mobile, data and calling card services for homes and businesses in Samoa.
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In connection with the closing of the SamoaTel Share Sale and Purchase Agreement, AST entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with ANZ, pursuant to which ANZ committed to provide financing of up to $5,500,000 in the form of a five year term
loan described below (the “Loan”). In addition, ANZ committed to provide up to $3,500,000 in a two year letter of credit facility which
AST may use to issue letters of credit to various vendors (the “Facility”’). AST is the borrower under the Loan Agreement and the
Facility. The Loan and the Facility are principally secured by substantially all of the assets and operations of AST. The Loan bears
interest at the rate of 2.5% above the prime rate. AST paid ANZ a fee of $82,500 at closing. At closing, AST borrowed the full amount
available under the Loan and used the proceeds for the purchase of SamoaTel. In connection with the Loan Agreement and the Facility,
we increased our existing guaranty and security agreements in favor of ANZ (respectively, the “Guaranty”) to include the amounts
borrowed under the Loan Agreement and the Facility. Pursuant to the Guaranty, we have unconditionally guaranteed the repayment and
other obligations of AST under the Loan Agreement and the Facility. In connection with the Loan Agreement and the Facility, AST
executed a stock pledge agreement of all of its interest in the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of BSI.

The violation of the interest coverage ratio on AST’s term loan, as discussed in Note 13, may also trigger certain cross-default
provisions contained in this Loan Agreement. As such, AST could also be considered to be in default under this Loan Agreement. As
noted in Note 13, we are currently in discussions with ANZ Finance to obtain a waiver for the interest coverage covenant violation
which occurred as a result of the USF retroactive reduction obligation.

The acquisition of SamoaTel will be accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities will be recorded at their estimated fair values, and operating results for SamoaTel will be included in the
consolidated financial statements from the effective date of acquisition. The purchase price will allocated on a preliminary basis using
information currently available. The allocation of the purchase price to the assets and liabilities acquired is expected to be finalized
during the third quarter of 2011, as more information is obtained regarding asset valuations, liabilities assumed and revisions of
preliminary estimates of fair values made at the date of purchase. Approximate total tangible assets of SamoaTel as of December 31,
2010 amounted to $22.9 million.

Credit Agreement — Medidata

In April 2011, we entered into a Credit Agreement with Medidata, pursuant to which Medidata advanced to us $6.0 million. The
advance is due to be repaid on December 31, 2011 and bears interest at LIBOR plus 3%.
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

ITEM 9.

None.

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain a system of disclosure controls and procedures that is designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required
to be disclosed by us in reports that we file and submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the
time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls also are designed to reasonably assure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Disclosure controls include components of internal control over financial reporting, which consists of control processes designated to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements in
accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”). Our management, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Exchange Act), as of December 31, 2010.

Based on their evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, our Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2010, the end of the period covered by this report
because of the material weakness in internal controls over financial reporting described below.

Due to the material weaknesses described below, our management performed additional analyses and other post-closing procedures
including reviewing all significant account balances and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements contained in this Annual Report
to ensure our consolidated financial statements are in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, management believes that the consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report fairly present, in all material respects, our financial condition, results of operations, and
cash flows for all periods presented.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Our internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for external
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reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on the interim or annual consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Our management, under the supervision and with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010 based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of
Sponsor Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a
material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Management identified the
following control deficiencies which represent material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010:

We did not maintain a sufficient depth of personnel with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience and training
in the selection and application of GAAP commensurate with financial reporting requirements in certain of our Latin American

. subsidiaries. This control deficiency could result in material misstatements of significant accounts and disclosures that would
result in a material misstatement to our interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or
detected. Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.
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We did not maintain effective control over certain spreadsheets utilized in the period-end financial reporting process.
Specifically, we did not have complete compliance with company prescribed spreadsheet control policies. This control
deficiency did not result in audit adjustments to the 2010 interim or annual consolidated financial statements. However, this
control deficiency could result in a material misstatement of the aforementioned accounts or disclosures that would result in a
material misstatement to our interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected.
Accordingly, management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material weakness.

. We did not have effective entity level controls as defined in the COSO framework. These weaknesses included:

. Lack of sufficient formalized and consistent finance and accounting policies and procedures;

Lack of controls to provide reasonable assurance that accounts were complete and accurate and agreed to detailed
support and that reconciliations of accounts were properly performed, reviewed and approved;

Lack of adequate communication of the delegation of authority guidelines and employees’ duties and control
responsibilities.

. Lack of a fraud risk assessment and anti-fraud program

These control deficiencies did not result in audit adjustments to the 2010 interim or annual consolidated financial statements. These
control deficiencies could result in a material misstatement of the aforementioned accounts or disclosures that would result in a material
misstatement to our interim or annual consolidated financial statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly,
management has determined that these control deficiencies constitute a material weakness.

Because of these material weaknesses, management concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the criteria in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

Management has undertaken procedures, such as additional inquiries and financial and other analytical reviews, in order to conclude
that reasonable assurance exists regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
contained in this Annual Report. Additionally, management ensures that certain high-risk processes and related significant accounts such as
deferred tax, goodwill and other intangibles are only processed and recorded at or via the corporate level. Accordingly, management believes
that the consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K fairly present, in all material respects, our financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows for the periods presented.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to final rules of the
SEC that permit us to provide only management’s report in this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
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It is important to note that though no significant changes were made to internal controls in the fourth quarter of 2010, we are
implementing enhancements and changes to internal control over financial reporting in 2011 to provide reasonable assurance that errors and
control deficiencies will not recur. These remediation efforts began in 2008 and represent our plan to remediate the material weaknesses
identified above, with some of the remediation plans impacting only one material weakness, and other remediation plans, after their complete
implementation, remediating several of the material weaknesses.

We recognize the importance of the control environment as it sets the overall tone for the organization and is the foundation for all other
components of internal control. Consequently, remediation programs have begun to eliminate material weaknesses related to our control
environment. The remediation programs that we have initiated are as follows:

We recognize the importance of having staff with competencies required for the accurate interpretation of GAAP.
Consequently, to eliminate material weaknesses identified with respect to staffing and training, management has continued
efforts to increase the depth and upgrade the skill sets of our accounting group through continuing education and ongoing
training in the selection and application of GAAP while maintaining staffing with appropriate skills and experience in the
application of GAAP commensurate with our financial reporting requirements. Chief among these efforts is the development of
Controllership Guide and coordinated on-line education program;

Because of our reliance on spreadsheets to facilitate the reporting process, we recognize the importance of having effective
. spreadsheet controls. We are enforcing spreadsheet control policies, especially those affecting spreadsheets that are critical to

the preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in accordance with GAAP and SEC regulations;

We recognize the need for good entity level controls that among other things, establish a positive “tone at the top”. To this end
we are performing the following:

Continue to mandate and monitor 100% compliance with our on-line Code of Business Conduct and FCPA training and

certifications;
. Development, circulation and training of accounting and finance policies;
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. Development and compliance of an account reconciliation policy;
. Establishment of a whistle blower mechanism; and
. Communicate and train employees on the delegation authority document that augments all defined organizational
responsibilities.
ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this item will be included in our definitive information statement relating to the annual election of directors
to be filed no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal report covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be included in our definitive information statement relating to the annual election of directors
to be filed no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal report covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K will be included in our definitive information statement relating to the
annual election of directors to be filed no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal report covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
and is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) The following table sets forth information with respect to equity compensation plans (including individual compensation
arrangements) under which equity securities are authorized for issuance as of December 31, 2010:
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Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders
Equity compensation plans not

Number
of securities to be issued
upon exercise of
outstanding options,

average exercise price
of outstanding options, warrants

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance under
equity compensation plans
(excluding securities reflected in

Weighted

approved by security holders

Total

warrants and rights and (rl;l)ghts column (a))
(@ (©)
7,949,417 $ 0.45 4,157,283
— 3 — —
7,949,417 $ 0.45 4,157,283

dividend, stock split, combination, recapitalization, or similar event.

Our stock option plan provides for a proportionate adjustment to the number of shares reserved for issuance in the event of any stock

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be included in our definitive information statement relating to the annual election of directors

to be filed no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal report covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by

reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be included in our definitive information statement relating to the annual election of directors

to be filed no later than 120 days after the end of the fiscal report covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporated herein by

reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Exhibit No.

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

(a) Exhibits.

Description of Document

Order Confirming Joint Plan of Reorganization and Granting
Debtors’ Motion to Substantively Consolidate Bankruptcy
Cases, In the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western
District of Arkansas Fayetteville Division, dated as of
September 14, 2004.

Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Merger among
eLandia Solutions, Inc., eLandia AST Acquisition, Inc., W&R
South Pacific L.P., SIBL, AST Telecom L.L.C., dated as of
August 15, 2005.

Amended and Restated Arrangement Agreement between
eLandia Solutions, Inc., eLandia South Pacific Holdings, Inc.,
eLandia Datec Acquisition Ltd., Datec Group Ltd., Datec
Pacific Holdings, Ltd., SIBL, Michael J. Ah Koy, James M.
Ah Koy, Krishna Sami, Kelton Investments Limited, Sami
Holdings Ltd., Sydney Donald(Trip) Camper 111, Eddie
Crowston and Harley L. Rollins, dated as of August 8, 2005.

Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among Centra
Industries, Inc., Centra Acquisition, Inc., eLandia Solutions
Incorporated, Stanford Venture Capital Holdings, Inc., and the

Method of Filing

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on
February 13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on
February 13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.
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stockholders of eLandia Solutions Incorporated, dated as of

May 20, 2004.
31 Certificate of Tncorporation of the Company. Il’;e\gl(())(l)lgly filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
39 Bylaws of the Company. Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.
Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
33 Amended and Restated Bylaws Adopted January 16, 2007. February 20, 2007.
34 Amended and Restated Certificate of Designations, Rights Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
’ and Preferences of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
41 Co-Sale and First Refusal Agreement by and between SIBL Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
’ and W&R South Pacific, L.P., dated January 31, 2006. 13, 2006.
Security Agreement by and among the Company (formerly
49 known as Centra Industries Inc.), Midwest Cable Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
’ Communications of Arkansas, Inc., and Stanford Venture 13, 2006.
Capital Holdings, Inc., dated as of October 25, 2004.
43 Satisfaction and Release of Promissory Notes and Security Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
’ Interests by SIBL, dated as of January 30, 2006. 13, 2006.
44 Form of Warrant issued by eLandia in favor of SIBL dated Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
’ February 16, 2007. Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.
45 Registration Rights Agreement dated February 16,2007, by ~ Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
’ and among eLandia and SIBL. Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.
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Exhibit No. Description of Document Method of Filing
46 Form of Warrant filed by eLandia in favor of SIBL, dated Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
’ November 21, 2007. Form 8-K dated November 21, 2007.
47 Registration Rights Agreement, dated November 21, 2007, by Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
’ and between eLandia and SIBL. Form 8-K dated November 21, 2007.
9.1 Memorandum of Agreement between SIBL and Kelton Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
’ Investments, Ltd., dated December 8, 2005 August 25, 2006.
92 Voting Trust Agreement by and among SIBL, Pete R. Pizarro, Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form
’ as trustee, and eLandia dated February 6, 2009. 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
101 Form of Indemnification Agreement (Principal Executive Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
) Officer). ended December 31, 2007.
. . . Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement (Executive Officer). ended December 31, 2007.
103 Form of Indemnification Agreement (Director). Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year

ended December 31, 2007.
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10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Form of Lock-Up Agreement.

Employment Agreement between the Company and Harley L.
Rollins, dated as of July 1, 2005.

Stock Subscription Agreement between the Company and
Sydney D. Camper, dated as of July 29, 2005.

Stock Purchase Agreement between the Company and Harley
L. Rollins, dated as of July 29, 2005.

Stock Subscription Agreement between the Company and
Harley L. Rollins, dated as of July 29, 2005.

IBM Business Partner Stock Purchase Agreement between
IBM New Zealand Limited and Datec (Fiji) Ltd. the Company
and Harley L. Rollins, dated as of September 12, 2002.

Lease Agreement by and between the Company and Southern
Centers Associates I, LLP, dated January 30, 2004 (relating to
property at 1500 Cordova Road in Ft. Lauderdale, FL), and
First Addendum to Lease dated, May 27, 2006.

Lease Agreement by and between Kelton Investments Limited
and Datec Fiji Ltd., dated April 1, 2005 (relating to property
at 68 Gordon Street in Suva, Fiji)

Lease Agreement by and between Kelton Investments Limited
and Network Services Ltd, dated April 1, 2005 (relating to
property at 63 Albert Street in Auckland, New Zealand)

Lease Agreement by and between Jewel Properties Limited,
DatecKelton Investments Ltd. and Datec Group Fiji Ltd.,
dated October 13, 2004 (relating to property at 63 Albert
Street in Auckland, New Zealand).

Lease Agreement by and between Datec PNG Limited and the
Independent State of Papua New Guinea, dated September 10,
2003 (relating to property at Allotment 32 Section 38 in
Hohola, N.C.D. in Papua New Guinea).
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Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on
February 13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on
February 13, 2006.

Exhibit No.

10.15

10.16

10.17

Description of Document

Lease Agreement by and between Centrepoint Limited and
Datec Solomon Islands Limited, dated December 1, 2004
(relating to property at 611 Mendana Avenue in Honiara,
Solomon Islands).

Lease Agreement by and between Datec Samoa Limited and
Justin Parker Trading as J Parker Investment, dated March 22,
2004 (relating to property at in the Parker Building in Apia,
Samoa).

Constitution of Datec (PNG) Limited (relating to the Datec
PNG Pty Joint Venture)

Method of Filing

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on
February 13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.
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10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

Stockholders’ Agreement for Datec PNG Pty Limited
between Steamships Pty Limited and Kelton Investments
Limited (relating to the Datec PNG Pty Joint Venture).

License Agreement between Tower Top Investments, Inc. and
the Company, dated April 1, 2006.

License Agreement between Tower Top Investments, Inc. and
the Company, dated April 1, 2006

License Agreement between Tower Top Investments, Inc. and
the Company, dated April 1, 2006.

License Agreement between Tower Top Investments, Inc. and
the Company, dated April 1, 2006.

Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and
Michael J. Ah Koy, dated February 1, 2006.

Note Purchase Agreement between the Company and SIBL,
dated February 10, 2006.

First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement between the
Company and SIBL, dated July 24, 2006.

Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and
Michael D. McCutcheon, dated August 1, 2006.

Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and
Harry G. Hobbs, effective August 28, 2006.

Employment Agreement between the Company and Barry 1.
Rose, dated January 31, 2006.

Amended and Restated Management Agreement between the
Company and Level Best, Inc., effective as of January 31,
2006.

Distributor Agreement between Canon Australia Pty Limited
and Datec (PNG) Limited, dated June 14, 2006.

Authorized Alliance Support Organization Agency
Agreement, dated September 19, 2003, between Datec
Australia Pty Ltd. and Hewlett-Packard Australia Pty Ltd.

Purchase Agreement between eLandia Technologies, Inc. and
Chickasaw Wireless, Inc., dated as of October 20, 2006.
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Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10 filed on February
13, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A filed on
August 25, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2006.2 filed on February 20,
2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
February 20, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
February 20, 2007.

Exhibit No.

10.33

Description of Document

Loan Agreement among AST Telecom, LLC, as Borrower,
ANZ Finance American Samoa, Inc. and ANZ Amerika

Method of Filing

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
February 20, 2007.
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10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

Samoa Bank, as Lenders, and ANZ Finance American Samoa,
as Agent, dated October 30, 2006.

Security Agreement among eLandia, Inc., eLandia South
Pacific Holdings, Inc., and eLandia Datec Acquisition Ltd., in
favor of ANZ Finance American Samoa, Inc., dated

October 30, 2006.

Indemnity, Subrogation and Contribution Agreement among
AST Telecom, LLC, as Borrower, and eLandia, Inc., eLandia
South Pacific Holdings, Inc., eLandia Datec Acquisitions,
Inc., Generic Technology Limited, Datec (Fiji) Limited and
Network Services Limited, et al, dated October 30, 2006.

Continuing Guaranty Security Agreement among eLandia,
Inc., eLandia South Pacific Holdings, Inc., and eLandia Datec
Acquisition Ltd., as Guarantors, in favor of ANZ Finance
American Samoa, Inc. and ANZ Amerika Samoa Bank, as
Lenders, and ANZ Finance American Samoa, as Agent, dated
October 30, 2006.

Convertible Note Purchase Agreement dated February 16,
2007, by and among eLandia and SIBL.

Convertible Promissory Note dated February 16, 2007 issued
by eLandia in favor of SIBL

Stock Pledge Convertible Note Purchase Agreement dated
February 16, 2007, by and among eLandia and SIBL.

Credit Agreement dated February 16, 2007, by and among
eLandia and Latin Node; Latin Node, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company; Latinode Communications Corporation, a
Florida corporation; NSite Software, LLC, a Florida limited
liability company; Tropical Star Communications, Inc., a
Florida corporation; TS Telecommunications, Inc., a Florida
corporation; and Total Solutions Telecom, Inc., a Florida
corporation (collectively, the “Latin Node Entities”).

Secured Promissory Note dated February 16, 2007 issued by
the Latin Node Entities and its subsidiaries in favor of
eLandia.

Security Agreement dated February 16, 2007 by and among
eLandia and the Latin Node Entities.

Stock Pledge Agreement dated February 16, 2007 by and
among eLandia and the Latin Node Entities.

Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated February 16, 2007
by and among eLandia, Latin Node, RAV, and Jorge
Granados.

Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and
Michael J. Ah Koy dated January 1, 2007.

Executive Employment Agreement between eLandia and
Michael D. McCutcheon dated February 7, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
February 20, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10/A-2 filed on
February 20, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated 10/A-2 filed on February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated 10/A-2 filed on February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
Form 8-K dated February 16, 2007.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006.

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007.
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First Amendment to Convertible Note Purchase Agreement

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year

1047 dated April 11, 2007 by and between eLandia and SIBL. ended December 31, 2007.
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Exhibit No. Description of Document Method of Filing
10.48 Letter from Amerika Samoa Bank dated April 17, 2007. Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007.
1049 Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and Previously filed as an exhibit to Form 10-Q for the quarter
' Laura Janke Jaeger dated April 23, 2007. ended June 30, 2007 filed August 20, 2007.
10.50 Credit Agreement, dated October 2, 2007, by and between Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
) Desca and eLandia. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
10.51 Secured Promissory Note, dated October 2, 2007, issued by Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
) Desca in favor of eLandia. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
10.52 Borrower Pledge and Security Credit Agreement, dated Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
) October 2, 2007, by and between Desca and eLandia. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
10.53 2Aé\éz;rat;io Plgigi and SZTurltydAgrzementéiite(]i)Octo‘t.)erf2, Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
. , by and between Alvarado and issued by Desca in favor . = "o ” 005 0 2. 2007
of eLandia.
Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
10.54 Guaranty of Alvarado dated October 2, 2007. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007
Preferred Unit Purchase Alvarado Pledge and Security . Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
10.55 Agreement, dated October 2, 2007, by and among eLandia,
Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
Desca, Bella and Alvarado.
1056 Credit Agreement Guaranty of Alvarado, dated October, 2, Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' 2007, by and between eLandia and SIBL. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
1057 Secured Promissory Note dated October 2, 2007, issued by Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' and among eLandia in favor of SIBL. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
1058 Collateral Assignment Agreement, dated October 2, 2007, by  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
) and between eLandia and SIBL. Form 8-K dated October 2, 2007.
Amendment No. 1 to Preferred Unit Purchase Agreement,
1059 dated November 21, 2007, by and among eLandia, eLandia/  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' Desca Holdings, LLC, Desca Holding LLC and Jorge Enrique Form 8-K dated November 21, 2007.
Alvarado Amado.
10.60 Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 21, Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' 2007, by and between eLandia and SIBL. Form 8-K dated November 21, 2007.
Security Agreement, dated June 2.9’ 2007, by. and among Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
10.61 Laurus Master Fund, Ltd., eLandia, Inc., Latin Node, Inc. and ded September 30. 2007
certain subsidiaries of Latin Node, Inc. ended septembet 59, )
Guaranty, dated June 29, 2007, executed by eLandia, Inc. and . o
10.62 Retail Americas VOIP, LLC in favor of Laurus Master Fund, Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter

Lid. ended September 30, 2007.
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Equity Pledge Agreement, dated June 29, 2007, by and among
Latin Node, Inc., Latin Node, LLC, eLandia, Inc., Latin Node

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter

10.63 Europe, GmbH, Retail Americas VOIP, LLC and Laurus ended September 30, 2007.
Mater Fund, Ltd.
Secured Converjuble Term Note, dated.June .29’ 200.7’. .. Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
10.64 executed by Latin Node, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in ended September 30. 2007
favor of Laurus Mater Fund, Ltd. P ’ ’
Secp red Revolving Note, Qated .June 29.’ .2097’ N xecuted by Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
10.65 Latin Node, Inc. and certain of its subsidiaries in favor of ended September 30. 2007
Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. P ’ ’
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Exhibit No. Description of Document Method of Filing
10.66 Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 29, 2007, by and  Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
) between Latin Node, Inc. and Laurus Master Fund, Ltd. ended September 30, 2007.
10.67 Executive Employment Agreement between the Company and Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
' John Hamm dated July 23, 2007. ended September 30, 2007.
10.68 Executive Employment Agreement between eLandia and Pete Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
' R. Pizarro dated February 15, 2008. ended December 31, 2007.
. . Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 14C Information
10.69 2007 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. Statement filed on October 17, 2008,
. . Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 14C Information
10.70 2008 Executive Incentive Plan. Statement filed on October 17, 2008.
1071 Executive Employment Agreement between eLandia and Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
' Harley L. Rollins effective September 1, 2008. ended September 30, 2008.
1072 Modification Agreement between eLandia and SIBL dated Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' February 6, 2009. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
1073 Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement between eLandia Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' and SIBL dated February 6, 2009. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
1074 Amendment to Executive Employment Agreement between Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' eLandia and Pete R. Pizarro dated February 6, 2009. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
1075 Additional Modification Agreement between eLandia and Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' SIBL dated February 6, 2009. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
1076 Termination Agreement between eLandia and SIBL dated Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on
' February 6, 2009. Form 8-K dated February 6, 2009.
. . Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-K for the year
10.77 Separation agreement between eLandia and Oscar Coen. ended December 31, 2008.
Loan Agreement dated June 8, 2009, by and between . o
10.78 American Samoa Hawaii Cable, LLC, and Samoa American Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter

Samoa Cable, LLC, and ANZ Finance American Samoa, Inc.,

ended June 30, 2009.
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an American Samoa corporation, and ANZ Amerika Samoa
Bank as agent for Lenders.

Continuing Guaranty dated June 8, 2009, by eLandia
International Inc. for the benefit of ANZ Amerika Samoa

Previously filed as an exhibit to the Form 10-Q for the quarter
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC.

Date: April 15, 2011 B /s/ PETE R. PIZARRO
y:

Pete R. Pizarro, Chairman of the Board
(Chief Executive Officer)

Date: April 15,2011 B /s/ HARLEY L. ROLLINS, III
y:

Harley L. Rollins, II1, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Annual Report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on April 15, 2011.

/s/ PETE R. PIZARRO
FTE [ZARK Chairman of the Board of Directors (Chief Executive Officer)

Pete R. Pizarro

/s/  HARLEY L. RoLLINS, III . . . .. . . .
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting

Harley L. Rollins, ITI Officer)

/s/" CHARLES J. FERNANDEZ .
Director

Charles J. Fernandez

/s/ DR. M. LEWIS TEMARES .
Director

Dr. M. Lewis Temares

/s/ ANGEL MEDINA .
Director

Angel Medina
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Exhibit 10.84
FIRST AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC ALLIANCE AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO STRATEGIC ALLIANCE AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of the 2nd day of December
2010 (the “Amendment”), by and among Amper, S.A. (“Amper”), eLandia International Inc. (“Elandia”) and Elandia/Desca Holdings LLC
(“Desca Holdings™). Elandia and Desca Holdings are collectively referred to herein as the “Elandia Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Amper and the Elandia Parties entered into that certain Strategic Alliance Agreement, dated May 23, 2010 (the “Original
Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, Amper and the Flandia Parties wish to amend the Original Agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth
herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree that the foregoing Recitals are true and accurate
and are incorporated herein and further agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Definitions. Capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined in this Amendment have the meanings assigned
to them in the Original Agreement.

2. Amendment to Section 5.C of the Original Agreement. Section 5.C of the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the following:
C. The exclusivity right granted by Elandia to Amper in exchange for the Exclusivity Advance shall last until 5:00 p.m. (Madrid
time) on April 30, 2011.”

3. Amendment to Section 5.G of the Original Agreement. The first sentence of Section 5.G of the Original Agreement is hereby
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
“G. Elandia in consideration of the Advance Payment and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which
is hereby acknowledged, hereby agrees that commencing on the date hereof until, 5:00 p.m. (Madrid time) on April 30, 2011 (the
“Exclusivity Period”), Elandia shall not, and shall not authorize or permit any of its Representatives to, directly or indirectly:”

4. Amendment to Section 6.D of the Original Agreement. Clause (i) of Section 6.D of the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in
its entirety and replaced with the following:

“(i) on the earlier of (a) April 30, 2011; (b) the date that payments (other than the payment received in November, 2010) are received
by DescaServ (to the extent of any such payments) in respect of the DescaServ Contract (as “DescaServ Contract” is defined in
Section 7.B. of this Agreement); (c) the termination of the Contribution Agreement between Amper and Elandia dated July 29, 2010,
as amended; (d) December 31, 2010 unless the following occurs on or prior to December 31, 2010 (in which case this Subsection (d)
shall no longer apply): the Security Documents (including the commercial trust documents associated with the DescaServ Contract
receivable) are amended to (A) include all payments under the DescaServ Contract as collateral (other than the payment received in
November, 2010) and (B) clarify the new scheduled repayment date of April 30, 2011 of the Exclusivity Advance; and (e) February
1, 2011 unless the following occurs on or prior to February 1, 2011 (in which case this Subsection (e) shall no longer apply): the
terms and conditions of the purchase of Elandia/Desca Holdings LLC and Elandia/CTT Holdings, LP by Amper have been agreed
upon to the mutual satisfaction of Amper and Elandia;”

5. Amendment to Section 6.E of the Original Agreement. Section 6.E of the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced with the following:

“E. Upon any occurrence set forth in clauses (ii) or (iii) of Section 6.D above or Section 7.C(i) or (iv) below, the Elandia Parties,
jointly and severally, shall be liable to pay Amper at the time that repayment of the Exclusivity Advance and interest thereon is
due an additional sum equal to (a) 700,000 Euros and (b) the reasonable out of pocket due diligence costs incurred by Amper in
evaluating the Elandia Parties, not to exceed 700,000 Euros; provided that the payments described in (a) and (b) of the preceding
clause shall be payable only if the events described in this Section 6.E. occur prior to April 30, 2011. Upon any occurrence set
forth in clauses (ii) or (iii) of Section 7.C below, the Elandia Parties, jointly and severally, shall be liable to pay Amper at the time
that repayment of the Exclusivity Advance and interest thereon is due an additional sum equal to the reasonable out of pocket due
diligence costs incurred by Amper in evaluating the Elandia Parties, not to exceed 700,000 Euros; provided that this additional sum
shall be payable only if the events described in this Section 6.E. occur prior to April 30, 2011.”

6. Amendment to Annex A of the Original Agreement. Annex A of the Original Agreement is amended and restated in its
entirety and replaced with Annex A as set forth on Annex A attached hereto.
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7. Other Agreements. Amper and the Elandia Parties shall immediately direct the trustee under the commercial trust documents
associated with the DescaServ Contract receivable to pay the November 2010 payment due under the DescaServ Contract to Elandia or its
assignee. No later than December 31, 2010, Amper and the Elandia Parties shall amend the Security Documents, including the commercial trust
documents associated with the DescaServ Contract receivable to: (a) include all payments under the DescaServ Contract as collateral (other than
the payment received in November, 2010); and (b) to clarify the new scheduled repayment date of April 30, 2011 of the Exclusivity Advance.

8. Miscellaneous.
(@)  The Original Agreement is reaffirmed and ratified in all respects, except as expressly provided herein.

(b)  This Amendment shall be deemed to have been drafted equally and jointly by each of the parties. All parties have been advised
and have had the opportunity to consult with and have this Amendment reviewed by separate and independent counsel prior to the execution
hereof and by each party’s execution and delivery of this Amendment such party shall be deemed to either have had such a review or to
voluntarily waive such review. The parties acknowledge that they were not coerced or intimidated to execute this Amendment, and that in
executing this Amendment, the parties and their respective counsel have not relied upon any oral or written statements or acts made by any
other party other than as expressly set forth in this Amendment.

(c)  In the event of any conflict between the terms or provisions of this Amendment and the Original Agreement, then this
Amendment shall prevail in all respects. Otherwise, the provisions of the Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

(d)  The parties shall execute and deliver any other instruments or documents and take any further actions after the execution of this
Amendment, which may be reasonably required for the implementation of this Amendment and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(¢) This Amendment may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original
copy of this Amendment and all of which together will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement. A facsimile or e-mail delivery of
a “.pdf” format data file of a signature shall be deemed an original signature.

[Signatures Begin on Following Page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the date first above written.

AMPER S.A

By: /s/ Alfredo Redondo
Name: Alfredo Redondo
Title: CEO

ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Pete R. Pizarro
Name: Pete R. Pizarro
Title: President & CEO

ELANDIA/DESCA HOLDINGS LLC

By: /s/ Pete R. Pizarro
Name: Pete R. Pizarro
Title: Manager

ANNEX A
The Security Documents consist of:

Guaranty and Pledge Agreement dated May 23, 2010 by Elandia International, Inc., Elandia/Desca Holdings, LLC in favor of Amper, S.A.
The commercial trust agreement “Fideicomiso Mercantile” dated May 19, 2009, the Pledge Agreement dated May 23, 2010, and the commercial
escrow agreement “Encargo Desca-Acciones” dated May 26, 2010.
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Exhibit 10.85
SEPARATION AGREEMENT

THIS SEPARATION AGREEMENT (“the Agreement”) is entered into on the sth day of October, 2010, by and among Jorge Enrique
Alvarado Amado, an individual (“Alvarado”), Elandia/Desca Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on behalf of itself and all
of its Subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”), and eLandia International Inc., a Delaware corporation (“eLandia”). Alvarado, the Company
and eLandia are each referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

Preliminary Statements

A. Alvarado is currently employed by the Company pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Executive Employment Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009 (the “Employment Agreement”), a copy of which is attached as Exhibit A hereto;

B. Pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009 (the “Purchase Agreement”), eLandia acquired certain equity
interests in the Company from Alvarado;

C. In connection with the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement, eLandia delivered to Alvarado: (i) a promissory note
in the principal amount of $500,000 representing a portion of the purchase price under the Purchase Agreement (the “Note”), and (ii) 2,500,000
shares of common stock of eLandia (the “eLandia Shares”), one-half of which are currently being held pursuant to an Escrow Agreement, dated
as of July 1, 2009 (the “Escrow Agreement”) in order to satisfy certain claims for indemnification which eLandia may have against Alvarado
under Purchase Agreement;

D. Asacondition to eLandia’s obligations under the Purchase Agreement, the Parties entered into that certain Amended and Restated
Non-Compete and Non-Solicitation Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009 (the “Non-Compete Agreement”), a copy of which is attached as
Exhibit B hereto;

E. The Parties have agreed that Alvarado’s employment with the Company shall be terminated effective as of the date hereof; and

F. In consideration of the Company’s willingness to provide Alvarado with severance pay, and for other good and sufficient
consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Alvarado is willing to release the Company and eLandia of any claims that
Alvarado might have against the Company or eLandia, and make the other commitments set forth in the Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual promises, covenants and releases contained within this Agreement and for other good
and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows:
= =

AGREEMENT

1. Preliminary Statements. All of the foregoing Preliminary Statements are true and correct and hereby incorporated into this
Agreement.

2. Termination of Employment; Resignations. Alvarado’s employment relationship with the Company is hereby terminated for other
than Cause (as defined in the Employment Agreement) effective as of the date hereof (the “Separation Date”) pursuant to Section 5(d) of the
Employment Agreement. Except as otherwise provided herein, as of the Separation Date all employment rights, privileges, responsibilities and
liabilities of the Parties are hereby terminated. Except as set forth herein and in the Employment Agreement (with respect to provisions which
specifically survive termination thereof), the terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement are hereby terminated with no further force
or effect. Effective upon the Separation Date, Alvarado hereby resigns as an officer, director and all other positions held with the Company
and all Subsidiaries and Affiliates thereof. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, all powers of attorney and similar authorizations
held by Alvarado are hereby terminated with no further force or effect. Alvarado shall promptly execute and deliver such documents and take
such further actions as the Company or eLandia shall require in order to effectuate the foregoing resignations and terminations in each of the
jurisdictions in which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries have operations.

3. Irrevocable Termination of Participation and Entitlement. Alvarado acknowledges that as of the Separation Date, Alvarado has
been paid all amounts and benefits due to him and that except as otherwise provided herein, the Company is not and shall not be obligated to
pay any additional money, amounts or benefits to Alvarado. Alvarado agrees and recognizes that Alvarado’s relationship with the Company
has been permanently and irrevocably severed, that Alvarado will not apply for or otherwise seek re-employment with the Company, eLandia
or any of their respective Affiliates and Subsidiaries at any future time, or apply for or otherwise seek employment with any successor to such
entities, and that neither the Company, eLandia nor any of their respective Affiliates, Subsidiaries or successors has any obligation, contractual
or otherwise, to rehire, recall, or re-employ Alvarado in the future. Alvarado further agrees that this forbearance to seek future employment as
just stated is purely contractual and is in no way involuntary, discriminatory, or retaliatory.

4. Severance Pay. Subject to Alvarado’s full compliance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company shall pay
Alvarado his base salary in the amount of $250,000 for a 12-month period (the “Severance Period”) following the effective date hereof. Such
payment shall be payable in installments consistent with the Company’s normal payroll schedule, subject to applicable withholding and other

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document


http://www.secdatabase.com

taxes. In addition, subject to Alvarado’s timely electing COBRA continuation coverage, the Company shall continue to pay health insurance
premiums in the same proportion as if Alvarado had remained an active employee for purposes of group medical coverage for Alvarado and his
family (as in effect immediately prior to Alvarado’s termination) until the earlier of: (1) the expiration of the Severance Period; or (2) the date
upon which Alvarado becomes eligible for coverage under the group health plans of another employer.

2

5. Additional Consideration. In addition to the severance pay and other benefits set forth above, Alvarado shall be entitled to the
additional consideration described below. The following payments are subject to Alvarado’s full and continuing compliance with the provisions
of this Agreement, the Non-Compete Agreement and the surviving provisions of the Employment Agreement. All efforts by Alvarado set forth
below shall be made in full compliance with applicable laws and the policies and procedures of the Company and eLandia.

(a) Alvarado shall use his commercially reasonable best efforts to assist eLandia in securing the November 2011 payment under
its customer contract with Corporacion Nacional de Telecomunicaciones del Ecuador (“CNT”). If eLandia receives full payment in the
approximate amount of $10.6 million from CNT (less any applicable withholding that may be legally or contractually required), plus any
associated value added tax, at a cost (interest or otherwise) to eLandia of less than $900,000, prior to December 31, 2010, Alvarado shall be
entitled to a bonus payment in the amount of $100,000. Such bonus shall be payable within three business days of eLandia’s receipt of the
payment from CNT. In the event that the payment from CNT is not received prior to December 31, 2010, Alvarado shall not be entitled to any
bonus payment under this Section 5(a).

(b) Alvarado shall use his commercially reasonable best efforts to assist eLandia in securing the November 2010 payment under
its customer contract with CNT. If eLandia receives full payment in the approximate amount of $10.6 million from CNT (less any applicable
withholding that may be legally or contractually required), plus any associated value added tax, prior to December 15, 2010, Alvarado shall
be entitled to a bonus payment in the amount of $75,000. Such bonus shall be payable within three business days of eLandia’s receipt of the
payment from CNT. In the event that the payment from CNT is not received prior to December 15, 2010, Alvarado shall not be entitled to any
bonus payment under this Section 5(b).

(c) Alvarado shall use his best efforts to assist eLandia in securing payment under its customer contract with Petroleos de Venezuela
S.A. (“PDVSA”). If eLandia receives payment of at least 95% of the outstanding balance due from PDVSA prior to November 30, 2010,
Alvarado shall be entitled to a bonus payment in the amount of $75,000. Such bonus shall be payable within three business days of eLandia’s
receipt of the payment from PDVSA. In the event that the payment from PDVSA is not received prior to November 30, 2010, Alvarado shall
not be entitled to any bonus payment under this Section 5(c).

In connection with Alvarado’s collection efforts under this Section 5, eLandia shall reimburse Alvarado for any reasonable out-of-pocket
business and travel expenses actually incurred by Alvarado, provided that, eLandia must pre-approve all such expenses in writing prior to being
incurred by Alvarado and such reimbursement shall be subject to Alvarado submitting proper substantiation of the subject expenses.

3

6. Claims Under the Purchase Agreement. Alvarado acknowledges that eLandia has certain set-off rights with respect to amounts
due under the Note and certain indemnification claims under the Purchase Agreement which may be satisfied with all or a portion of the
eLandia Shares. Subject to the terms of this Section 6, eLandia hereby waives (and releases Alvarado from) any such Purchase Agreement
indemnification claims for matters arising prior to or following the Separation Date; provided, however, that such waiver and release with
respect to Purchase Agreement indemnification claims for matters arising following the Separation Date shall not apply to such claims relating
to or arising from any intentional misconduct by Alvarado. Any payments to Alvarado under this Section 6 are subject to Alvarado’s full and
continuing compliance with the provisions of this Agreement, the Non-Compete Agreement and the surviving provisions of the Employment
Agreement. With respect to eLandia’s waiver of its outstanding indemnification rights and claims as described above, Alvarado and eLandia
agree as follows:

(a)  Alvarado shall immediately surrender to eLandia all stock certificates representing the eLandia Shares in Alvarado’s possession
and shall irrevocably instruct the escrow agent under the Escrow Agreement to immediately deliver to eLandia all certificates representing the
eLandia Shares currently being held in escrow. In addition, Alvarado shall immediately surrender to eLandia for cancellation all warrants (or
other convertible securities) to purchase shares of common stock of eLandia held by Alvarado. Alvarado shall execute and deliver to eLandia
such stock powers and other assignment documents as eLandia shall deem necessary to transfer all of Alvarado’s right, title and interest in the
eLandia Shares any all warrants to eLandia. Alvarado hereby represents and warrants that such eLandia Shares and warrants are free and clear
of any and all security interests, pledges, claims and other encumbrances;

(b) The Note, as modified by that certain letter agreement dated July 25, 2010, is hereby further amended and modified to provide
that eLandia will pay the outstanding balance thereof to Alvarado in monthly installments in accordance with the payment schedule set forth
on Exhibit C attached hereto, until paid in full; provided, however, the entire outstanding balance under the Note shall be due within three
business days of eLandia’s receipt of the November 2011 payment of $10.6 million from CNT. In the event eLandia does not receive payment
from CNT of the $10.6 million in full (less any applicable withholding that may be legally or contractually required), or at the reduced amount
allowed pursuant to Section 5(a), then payments shall continue to be made in monthly installments as set forth on Exhibit C until the Note is
fully paid. Except as modified hereby, the terms and conditions of the Note shall remain the same and eLandia shall continue to have the right to
set-off amounts due under the Note to satisfy any claims which eLandia may have as a result of or relating to actions or omissions by Alvarado
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occurring after the Separation Date, subject to the waiver of indemnification claims by eLandia described in the introductory paragraph of this
Section 6.

(¢) Upon the effective date of this Agreement, eLandia shall transfer to Alvarado all of its (or any of its Subsidiaries’) current
ownership interest in Magna Consult L.L.C., a Florida limited liability company, or any of its Affiliates (collectively, “Magna Consult”), and
shall execute and deliver such documents as may be reasonably necessary to effectuate such transfer; provided, however, that such transfer shall
be subject to the prior written approval of Jose Luis Molina, CEO of Magna Consult. Historically, Magna Consult has been solely engaged in
providing consulting services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time following the Separation Date and through the expiration of the
Restricted Period (as defined in the Non-Compete Agreement), Magna Consult engages in network and systems integration product sales or
managed services, Alvarado shall immediately transfer back to eLandia the ownership interests in Magna Consult previously owned by eLandia
ownership interests in Magna Consult previously owned by eLandia.

4

7. Release of Claims by Alvarado. In consideration of the promises made by the Company in this Agreement, Alvarado, on
Alvarado’s own behalf, and on behalf of Alvarado’s relatives and heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, irrevocably and unconditionally
releases, waives, acquits, and forever discharges the Company, eLandia, any entities Affiliated to the Company or eLandia by common
ownership, including parent and Subsidiary corporations, and their current and former officers, directors, managers, employees, and their
respective agents, officials, representatives, attorneys, insurance carriers and any other entity related to or Affiliated with them (collectively,
“the Releasees”), of and from any and all manner of actions, suits, claims of any kind or nature whatsoever, known or unknown, in law or
equity, including, without limitation of the foregoing general terms, any claims against any of the Releasees arising out of or in connection with
the Purchase Agreement or Alvarado’s employment and/or the termination of Alvarado’s employment with the Company, and any claims of
discrimination, wrongful discharge, breach of contract, tort and any other personal injury claims, and any claims that the Company violated
any law and any claim for additional benefits, and specifically including any rights and claims relating to defamation, workers’ compensation,
fraud, misrepresentation, battery, false imprisonment, intentional or negligent infliction of emotional distress, negligent or willful hiring/
retention/supervision, fraudulent inducement for entering into this Agreement, breach of any covenant of good faith and fair dealing, negligence,
commission, vacation pay, overtime pay, termination or severance pay, the proceeds of any insurance or disability plans, or any other fringe
benefits of any kind whatsoever. Alvarado covenants and agrees that, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, he will not sue or file
or institute or maintain any lawsuit, grievance or arbitration against the Company with respect to any of the claims, matters and issues covered
by this release, under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, the Americans with Disabilities Act, any federal or
state whistleblower statute, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, ERISA, the Equal Pay Act, the Fair
Labor Standards Act, the Florida Civil Rights Act or any federal, state, or local laws (or ordinances) prohibiting employment discrimination or
restricting an employer’s right to take personnel action with respect to its employees (each as amended) as well as any other regulation, under
the common law of any province or state, or under any contract or any other theory of relief. Further, in any legally authorized action, Alvarado
waives the right to any form of recovery, compensation or other remedy or relief of any kind. In the event that Alvarado violates any part of
this paragraph, the Company shall be entitled to recover damages from Alvarado, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and the costs of
defending such a suit or claim. This release does not apply to any default by the Company under this Agreement or the Note or any action to
enforce this Agreement or the Note.

8. Acknowledgements. Alvarado acknowledges being advised in writing, before signing this Agreement, that Alvarado should consult
an attorney regarding this Agreement. Alvarado acknowledges being given a period of at least 21 days within which to consider this Agreement,
and that Alvarado has knowingly and voluntarily entered into this Agreement in consideration of the severance pay and other consideration
provided by the Company.

9. Alvarado’s Revocation Right and Effective Date of the Agreement. For a period of seven days following the execution of this
Agreement, Alvarado may revoke or cancel this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not become effective or enforceable until this revocation
period has expired. In other words, this Agreement shall automatically become effective in seven days following execution unless Alvarado
revokes it first. Alvarado shall provide the Company and eLandia with a signed, written notice of revocation if Alvarado desires to exercise this
right.

10. Return of Company Documents and Materials. As of the Separation Date, Alvarado shall have returned to the Company
all documents, letters, notes, programs, software, media, photographs, lists, manuals, records, financial information, notebooks, and similar
repositories of or containing “Confidential Information” (as defined in the Employment Agreement), including all copies thereof, whether
prepared by Alvarado or others, that are in Alvarado’s possession. Except as set forth on Exhibit D attached hereto, Alvarado hereby represents
and warrants that, as of the Separation Date, there are no materials or other items of Confidential Information (or containing Confidential
Information) which are in the possession of Alvarado. Alvarado hereby reaffirms and ratifies his non-disclosure obligations as set forth in
Section 6 of the Employment Agreement and shall not at any time divulge, communicate, use to the detriment of the Company, eLandia or
any of their respective Affiliates and Subsidiaries, or for the benefit of any other Person or Persons, or misuse in any way, any Confidential
Information. Alvarado reaffirms that any such Confidential Information shall be deemed a valuable, special and unique asset of the Company
or eLandia, as the case may be, that has been received by Alvarado in confidence and as a fiduciary, and Alvarado shall remain a fiduciary to
the Company and eLandia with respect to all of such information.
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11. Confidentiality. Alvarado agrees that he will not, either directly or indirectly, disclose the terms of this Agreement to any other
Person, other than to members of Alvarado’s immediate family (if Alvarado first obtains a confidentiality commitment from such Persons),
Alvarado’s tax advisors and attorneys, the Internal Revenue Service, or unless required to do so by court order or lawfully issued subpoena.
Alvarado specifically agrees not to disclose the amount of severance except as permitted by this Section.

12. Restrictive Covenants. Alvarado hereby restates, ratifies and reaffirms each and every term, condition, covenant and agreement
heretofore made by Alvarado in the Non-Compete Agreement and such terms, conditions, covenants and agreements are incorporated herein
as if fully set forth in this Agreement; provided, however, that (i) the non-solicitation of employees restrictive covenant set forth in Section
1(d) of the Non-Compete Agreement shall not apply to Alvarado’s solicitation of Gerardo Guarino, Vivian Pineda or Viviana Lopez; and (ii)
the non-solicitation of Restricted Customers restrictive covenant set forth in Section 1(c) of the Non-Compete Agreement shall not apply to
Alvarado’s solicitation through Magna Consult, solely for consulting services, of current Restricted Customers of the Company meeting the
following criteria: existing customers of Magna Consult which are also currently existing Restricted Customers of the Company. The Parties
shall, in good faith, identify the Restricted Customers of the Company which meet the foregoing criteria within five days of the date of this
Agreement. It is expressly understood by the Parties that this exception to the Non-Compete Agreement shall not apply to the solicitation of
Restricted Customers in connection with network and systems integration product sales or managed services which shall not be permitted.
Alvarado agrees that he shall continue to be bound by each of the restrictive covenants and other obligations set forth in the Non-Compete
Agreement for a period of 12-months from the Separation Date.

13.  Covenant Not to Sue.

(a) Alvarado, directly or indirectly, individually or through any entity he may own or otherwise Control or is Affiliated with,
promises not to institute any future suits or proceedings at law, in equity, in arbitration or any administrative or bankruptcy proceedings in
any domestic or foreign jurisdictions against the Company, eLandia, or any of their respective Affiliates, Subsidiaries, officers, directors,
employees, attorneys, representatives or agents for or on account of any claim or cause of action arising out of any event that occurred prior to
the effective date of this Agreement, including but not limited to any claim or cause of action described in this Agreement or based upon any
matter purported to be released hereby, and further agrees that no such claim shall be instituted by anyone else on behalf of Alvarado.

(b) Each of the Company and eLandia, directly or indirectly, individually or through any entity the Company or eLandia may own
or otherwise Control or are Affiliated with, promises not to institute any future suits or proceedings at law, in equity, in arbitration or any
administrative or bankruptcy proceedings in any domestic or foreign jurisdictions against Alvarado or any of his Affiliates for or on account of
any claim or cause of action arising out of any event that occurred prior to the effective date of this Agreement.

14. Further Agreements. Alvarado agrees that as further consideration for receipt of the severance and other payments set forth above,
he will fully cooperate with the Company and eLandia to the extent possible, in the location of any documents and the completion of any
tasks which relate to Alvarado’s previous duties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Alvarado shall execute and deliver all such
documents and shall take such actions as the Company shall deem necessary to transfer and assign to the Company all right, title and interest
in and to all property and assets (tangible and intangible) of the Company or eLandia or any of their respective Affiliates and Subsidiaries
including, without limitation, domain names (including Desca.com) and all other intellectual property of the Company or eLandia or any of
their respective Affiliates and Subsidiaries.

15. Ownership of Copyrights and Trade Secrets. All information, technology, software or systems developed or generated by the
Company or eLandia during Alvarado’s employment by or relationship with the Company, including all intermediate and partial versions
thereof (“Work Product”), whether or not protected by copyright, are the sole property of the Company and Alvarado shall at all time hereafter
refrain from using, directly or indirectly, any such Work Product. All copyrightable aspects of the Work Product are “works made for hire”
within the meaning of the Copyright Act of 1976 (“the Act”), as amended, of which the Company is deemed the “author” within the meaning
of said Act. All such copyrightable works, as well as all copies of such works in whatever medium fixed or embodied, are owned exclusively
by the Company and Alvarado hereby expressly disclaims any interest in such Work Product. In the event and to the extent that any of the
Work Product, or any part or element thereof, is found as a matter of law not to be a “work made for hire” within the meaning of the Act,
Alvarado hereby assigns to the Company the sole and exclusive right, title and interest in and to all such works, and all copies of them, without
further consideration, and agrees to assist the Company to register and, from time to time thereafter, to enforce all patents, copyrights and other
intellectual property rights and protections relating to any of the Work Product.
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16. Additional Agreements. The Parties agree to the following additional terms and conditions:

(a) Following the Separation Date, the Company and eLandia, as the case may be, shall use their commercially reasonable best
efforts to promptly obtain releases of any personal guaranties executed by Alvarado for the benefit of the Company, eLandia or any of their
respective Subsidiaries. In connection with such efforts, the Company and eLandia shall indemnify and hold Alvarado harmless from any
liability, loss, cost or expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) associated with such personal guaranties and the enforcement thereof by
the subject third parties.
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(b) Following the Separation Date, the Company shall promptly reimburse Alvarado for all reasonable expenses actually paid or
incurred by Alvarado through the date hereof all of which are identified in detail on Exhibit E attached hereto. Such reimbursement shall
be subject to Alvarado submitting proper substantiation and the terms and conditions of the Employment Agreement with respect to expense
reimbursement.

(¢) Upon the Separation Date, Alvarado shall deliver to the Company all Company credit cards in his possession for immediate
cancellation. The Company shall waive and release Alvarado from any amounts charged to such credits cards, by any Person other than
Alvarado, following the date which Alvarado delivers same to the Company.

(d) Alvarado shall continue to make payments with respect to a Land Rover vehicle (VIN# ) located in
Costa Rica and which is currently titled in the name of the Company. Alvarado shall also continue to maintain, at his expense, insurance for the
vehicle covering the Company and himself for Alvarado’s use of the vehicle. At such time as all payments have been made in full with respect
to the vehicle and Alvarado provides the Company with written evidence of such payoff, the Company shall take such actions as are reasonably
necessary to transfer the title to such vehicle to Alvarado.

17. Representations. Each Party hereby represents and warrants to each other Party that:
(a) It has the full power, capacity, authority and right to execute and deliver this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder.

(b) This Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary action and constitutes such party’s valid and binding agreement,
enforceable against such party in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent
transfer, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ rights and to general equity
principles.

(c) No approval, authorization, consent or filing is required in connection with its execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement which has not heretofore been obtained or made.

In addition, Alvarado hereby represents and warrants that, at all times during his employment by the Company: (i) he has not intentionally
violated any applicable laws, regulations and rules relating to the operations of the Company or otherwise; and (ii) he has not intentionally
breached his fiduciary duties.

18. Disclaimer of Liability. The Agreement does not constitute and shall not be construed as an admission of liability or wrongdoing
by any of the Parties, or by the Releasees, and the Parties expressly deny that they have done anything wrong or unlawful in connection with
Alvarado’s employment, or the termination of that employment.

19. Certain Definitions. As used herein, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

“Affiliates” (including the term “Affiliated with”) means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person that directly, or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by, or is under common Control with such specified Person.

“Control” (including the terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”), with respect to the relationship between or among
two or more Persons, means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or to cause the direction of the affairs or management
of a Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise, including, without limitation, the ownership, directly
or indirectly, of securities having the power to elect a majority of the board of directors or similar body governing the affairs of such Person.

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a
joint venture, an unincorporated organization, or any other business entity, or a governmental entity (or any department, agency, or political
subdivision thereof).

“Restricted Customers” means any Person to whom or to which goods or services within the business of the Company were provided
by the Company (or any Affiliate of the Company), during the 12-month period prior to the date of the closing of the Purchase Agreement,
or at any time during the Restricted Period (as defined in the Non-Compete Agreement), and any potential customer of the Company (or any
Affiliate of the Company) which was actively solicited during the 12-month period prior to the date of the closing of the Purchase Agreement,
or at any time during the Restricted Period.

“Subsidiary” or “Subsidiaries” means, with respect to any Person, any corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association,
or other business entity of which (i) if a corporation, a majority of the total voting power of shares of stock entitled (without regard to the
occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers, or trustees thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or
indirectly, by that Person or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of that Person or a combination thereof or (ii) if a limited liability company,
partnership, association, or other business entity (other than a corporation), a majority of the partnership or other similar ownership interests
thereof is at the time owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by that Person or one or more Subsidiaries of that Person or a combination
thereof and for this purpose, a Person or Persons own a majority ownership interest in such a business entity (other than a corporation) if such
Person or Persons shall be allocated a majority of such business entity’s gains or losses or shall be or Control any managing director or general
partner of such business entity (other than a corporation). The term “Subsidiary” shall include all Subsidiaries of such Subsidiary.
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20. Entire Agreement. This Agreement (along with the Non-Compete Agreement and the surviving provisions of the Employment
Agreement) the entire agreement between or among the Parties with regard to the matters set forth herein, and supersedes any and all prior
negotiations, correspondence, understandings, and agreements between or among the Parties with respect to the subject matter thereof. There
shall be no modifications or amendments to this Agreement, except by instrument in writing executed by authorized representatives of the
Parties hereto.

21. Notices. All notices that are required or may be given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
sufficient in all respects if given in writing and delivered personally or by a recognized courier service or by registered or certified mail, postage
prepaid, to Alvarado at his last known address as set forth in the Company’s records, and to eLandia and the Company at their respective
addresses. Any such notice under this Section shall be deemed to have been duly given on the date of personal delivery or on the date of delivery
by a national overnight courier service, or on the date of postmark if mailed by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

22. Agreement Inures to the Benefit. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties hereto and
their respective officers, directors, agents, representatives, employees, servants, Affiliates, Subsidiaries, attorneys, heirs, successors, assigns, or
other representatives, if any, of each of the Parties hereto.

23. Execution of Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

24. Governing Law; Dispute Resolution. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with,
the substantive laws of the State of Florida, without giving effect to any conflict-of-laws rule or principle that might result in the application of
the laws of another jurisdiction. Each of the Parties agree that all disputes, claims, actions or lawsuits between them, arising out of or relating to
this Agreement, or for alleged breach of this Agreement, shall be heard and determined by a state court sitting in Miami-Dade County, Florida,
or by the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida, or by any of the appellate courts which review decisions of those
courts (collectively, the “Florida Courts”). The Parties expressly submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Florida Courts for adjudication of all
such disputes, claims, actions and lawsuits arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or for alleged breach of this Agreement, and agree not
to bring any such action or proceeding in any other court. Each of the Parties waive any defense of inconvenient forum as to the maintenance of
any action or proceeding brought pursuant to this Section of the Agreement in the Florida Courts, and waive any bond, surety, or other security
that might be required of the other Parties with respect to any aspect of such action, to the extent permitted by law; provided, however, that each
of the Parties may bring a proceeding in a different court, jurisdiction or forum to obtain collection of any judgment, or to obtain enforcement
of any injunction or order, entered against the other Parties by the Florida Courts.
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25.  Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED
BY APPLICABLE LAW ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT.

26. Equitable Remedies: Additional Remedies. In addition to instituting and prosecuting an action to obtain damages and other
relief for violations or breaches hereof, each Party shall be entitled to obtain injunctive and other equitable relief, or any combination of the
foregoing that the Parties may elect to pursue in accordance with this Agreement. All remedies provided by this Agreement shall be deemed
to be cumulative and additional and not exclusive of one another or of any other remedy available to the Parties at law or in equity. In the
event that Alvarado shall breach any of the provisions of this Agreement, the Non-Compete Agreement or any of the surviving provisions of
the Employment Agreement or if any of Alvarado’s representations and warranties set forth herein or therein are untrue, in addition to all other
rights which the Company or eLandia shall have hereunder, the Company and eLandia (as the case may be) shall have the right to immediately
terminate all payments to Alvarado hereunder including, without limitation, all severance payments and all payments arising under the Purchase
Agreement and the Note, and Alvarado hereby releases the Company and eLandia from any claims, losses or damages arising therefrom.

27. Attorney’s Fees. In the event of a dispute between or among the Parties with respect to this Agreement, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to recover such Party’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, whether incurred during trial, on appeal or in bankruptcy proceedings.

28. Full Knowledge and Volition. Alvarado acknowledges executing this Agreement freely and voluntarily and knowingly and
without coercion or threats of any kind. Alvarado also acknowledges and confirms that the only considerations for signing the Agreement are
the terms and conditions stated in the Agreement, that no other promise or agreement of any kind, except those set forth in the Agreement,
has been made by any Person to cause Alvarado to sign the Agreement, and that Alvarado fully understands its meaning and intent. Employee
also acknowledges being informed that various federal, state and local laws prohibit employment discrimination based on age, sex, race, color,
national origin, religion, disability, and marital status, and that these laws are enforced by the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission
and/or other federal, state and local agencies. Alvarado also acknowledges being advised to discuss the Agreement with Alvarado’s personal
attorney and being told that in any event Alvarado should thoroughly review and understand the Agreement before signing it.
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29. Construction. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one Party than the other, merely by virtue of the fact
that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being recognized that each of the Parties have contributed substantially and
materially to the negotiation and preparation of this Agreement.

[Signatures Begin on Following Page|
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WHEREFORE, the Parties have duly executed this Separation Agreement as of the date first written above.

/s/ Jorge Enrique Alvarado Amado
Jorge Enrique Alvarado Amado

ELANDIA/DESCA HOLDINGS, LLC

By: /s/ Harley L. Rollins
Name: Harley L. Rollins
Title:  CFO

ELANDIA INTERNATIONAL INC.

By: /s/ Harley L. Rollins
Name: Harley L. Rollins
Title:  CFO
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Pete R. Pizarro, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eLandia International Inc.;
Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
2. necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in all
3. material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this Annual Report;
The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
4, defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:
designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
a under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
’ subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual
Report is being prepared;
designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
b. designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Annual Report our
c. conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report based on such evaluation; and
disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
d. registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of this Annual Report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
5. reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
a. which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and
b Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
’ registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
Date: April 15,2011 /s/ Pete R. Pizarro

By:

Pete R. Pizarro
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Harley L. Rollins, III, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of eLandia International Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this Annual Report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
2. necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this Annual Report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this Annual Report, fairly present in all
3. material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this Annual Report;

The issuer’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
4. defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and we have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this Annual
Report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this Annual Report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
Annual Report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fourth fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth quarter in the case of this Annual Report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
5. reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

Date: April 15, 2011

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ Harley L. Rollins, III

Harley L. Rollins, III
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Pete R. Pizarro, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to my knowledge, the Annual Report of eLandia International Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Form
10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of eLandia International Inc.

Date: April 15, 2011 By: /s/ Pete R. Pizarro

Pete R. Pizarro
Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Harley L. Rollins, III, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that, to my knowledge, the Annual Report of eLandia International Inc. on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010,
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such
Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of eLandia International Inc.

Date: April 15,2011 /s/ Harley L. Rollins, III

Harley L. Rollins, III
Chief Financial Officer
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